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COMMISSIONER ROY I. DABNEY, JR. 
1942-1999 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 
lost a leader and friend with the sudden and untimely passing of 
Commissioner Roy I. Dabney, Jr. on June 3, 1999. 

Mr. Dabney was one of the longest-serving Commissioners, 
from 1983 tol991, and again from 1993 to 1999. He was 
Acting Chairman of the Prince George's County Planning Board 
from 1994 to 1995, and Vice Chairman since 1995. 

During his tenure, Commissioner Dabney contributed in 
countless ways to the Commission, lending considerable 
financial knowledge and expertise as past Chairman and Vice 
Chairman of the Employees ' Retirement System Board of 
Trustees, and as an active participant in many internal projects 
and studies. 

Whether participating in Commission and Planning Board 
meetings, public hearings, special events, employee retirement 

and farewell parties, budget sessions, community meetings, or staff meetings, Commissioner Dabney was 
"always there" for the Commission and its employees. 

Roy's professional activities were eclipsed only by his many affiliations, chairmanships, presidencies and board 
memberships of civic and community organizations. 

Throughout his long and distinguished career, Roy received countless awards, proclamations and honors for 
his outstanding community service, and, in 1996, was selected to carry the Olympic Torch as a "Community 
Hero". 

Mr. Dabney's life and career were governed by a tireless desire to make a difference in his community. His 
considerable contributions to his community spanned several decades and impacted countless lives. His 
imposing, yet gentle presence, and his unequivocal support and love for the Commission and its employees 
will be sorely missed by all. 
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• PARTI • 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

A popular tour and rental site, Montpelier Mansion is included in the National Register of Historic Places. 
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MN 
THE I MARYL~ND-NATIONAL 

pp 
CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

6611 Kenilworth Avenue • Riverdale, Maryland 20737 

~tc September 7, 1999 

Commissioners: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1999 is hereby submitted. This Report was prepared by the Commission's Finance Department. 
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, 
rests with the Commission. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner 
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various Funds and Account Groups of the 
Commission. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Commission's financial activities 
have been included. This Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Article 28, Sections 2-113 and 7-107, 
of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial and Statistical. The 
Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the Commission's background and organization, and the Commission's 
program highlights. The Financial Section includes the General Purpose Financial Statements, and the combining and individual 
fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditors' report on the financial statements and 
schedules. The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multiyear 
basis. 

The Commission is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996, 
as revised and U.S . OfficeofManagementand Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of Federal financial assistance, findings and 
recommendations, and auditors' reports on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, 
which are contained in a separate report, is available from the Office of the Secretary-Treasurer. The Commission is also 
required to file a Uniform Financial Report with the Maryland State Department of Legislative Services by November 1 of each 
year. 

The Reporting Entity and Its Services 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission is a body corporate of the State of Maryland established by 
the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The Commission is a bi-county agency serving both Montgomery and Prince George's 
Counties. It is empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional system of parks in the defined Metropolitan 
District in Montgomery and Prince George's Counties, and to prepare and administer a general plan for the physical development 
of a defined Regional District for the two Counties. The Commission also conducts the recreation program for Prince George's 
County. 

This Report includes all Funds and Account Groups of the Commission. Exhibits l to 6 present aggregate data for the 
Commission in total by fund type and account group, including the Commission's Employees' Retirement System. Separate 
financial data pertaining to Montgomery County and Prince George's County, respectively, are set forth in the Notes to Financial 
Statements. The Commission is reported as a joint venture by both Montgomery and Prince George's County governments. 

Exhibits 1 to 6 and the Notes to Financial Statements comprise the General Purpose Financial Statements, which include all 
the data essential for a fair presentation of the Commission's financial position and operating results. The General Purpose 
Financial Statements are prepared in conformance with the generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to state and 
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local government entities promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and, pursuant to Article 28, Section 2-113, have been audited by a public accounting firm selected by the 
Commission. The Arthur Andersen LLP auditors' report is included in the Financial Section of this Report. The General 
Purpose Financial Statements may be issued separately from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

The Commission's economic condition and outlook for the future continue to be positive due to two factors . First, at year-end, 
the Commission has a budget basis fund balance in the General Fund of $48,079,000. Of this amount, $9,333,000 is designated 
to fund fiscal year 2000, $4,954,000 (approximating 3% of the General Fund budget for fiscal year 2000) is designated for 
unforeseen circumstances, $19,176,000 is designated to fund the operating, maintenance and debt service costs of future Prince 
George's County facilities, and $14,616,000 is uncommitted as ofJune 30, 1999. Second, property taxes, which constituted 
approximately 92% of the Commission's General Fund Revenues in fiscal year 1999 are expected to continue to be a stable 
source of revenue, with at least moderate growth. The assessed value of all taxable real property has continued to grow 
modestly, contributing to an increase in General Fund property tax revenues from $156,486,000 to $159,245,000 (1.8%). The 
tax rates remained the same in fiscal year 1999 as in fiscal year 1998. The Montgomery and Prince George's unemployment 
rates as of July 1999 were 2. 0% and 3. 8% respectively, in comparison to the 3. 9% State-wide and 4 .5 % national unemployment 
rates. The unemployment rates have continuously declined for the past three years. The fiscal impact of the State of Maryland 
electricity deregulation on the Commission is uncertain. Management continues to monitor developments and will use 
conservative estimates when preparing future tax revenue and utility expenditure estimates. 

The Commission's excellent financial position and continued emphasis on administrative and financial management, and 
financial systems provide a solid foundation to respond to the continuing challenge to provide enhanced public services at an 
economical cost. 

Major Initiatives 

The Commission enjoyed an excellent program year in fiscal year 1999. The major accomplishments of the Commission are 
set forth in the Program Highlights section of this Report. 

Financial Information 

Management of the Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure 
that the assets of the Commission are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are 
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The 
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The 
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: ( 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and 
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

Single Audit. As a recipient of Federal, State and County financial assistance, the Commission also is responsible for ensuring 
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those 
programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management and the internal audit staff of the 
Commission. 

As a part of the Commission's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control 
structure, including that portion related to Federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the Commission 
has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results of the Commission's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 1999, provided no instances of material weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable 
laws and regulations. 

Budgeting Controls. The Commission maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure 
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Montgomery County and Prince 
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George's County governments. Activities of the General Fund which include a transfer for debt service expenditures are 
included in the annual appropriated budget. Project length financial plans are adopted for the Capital Projects Funds. The level 
of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established within each 
individual fund. 

The Commission's accounting records for its general governmental operations including park operation and maintenance, 
recreation (Prince George's County only), planning and zoning, administration, debt service, and capital projects are maintained 
on a modified accrual basis, with the revenue being recorded when available and measurable. Expenditures are recorded when 
the services or goods are received, or, under the encumbrance system, which is used in the budget preparation and control 
process, when a purchase order or contract has been issued. The accounting records for the Commission's Enterprise Funds, 
Internal Service Funds, and Employees' Retirement System are maintained on the accrual basis. 

The Commission maintains an internal auditing staff that reports to the Secretary-Treasurer. This staff performs recurring 
internal audits throughout the Commission's offices and facilities, and inspection and verification of major construction projects. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, a total of 207 facility audits were performed, and 8 construction projects were 
inspected. 

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the Commission's internal accounting 
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 

General Government Activities - General Fund (Exhibits A-1, A-2 and A-3) 

The Commission's park, recreation, planning and general administrative functions are financed primarily by five legally 
designated property taxes that must be levied on a separate County basis. These functions are accounted for in accounts within 
the General Fund. 

The Commission experienced a favorable budget to actual variance of$1 l ,124,000. In Montgomery County, the $1 ,698,000 
positive variance of the Administration and Park Accounts was primarily a result of favorable property tax collections that 
exceeded the budget by $307,000, charges for planning services that exceeded the budget by $270,000, interest earnings that 
exceeded the budget by $191,000, savings in the park operations and planning divisions of $525,000, non-departmental savings 
from liquidation of prior year encumbrances of$196,000, and debt service savings of $305,000. The variance, together with 
July 1, 1998 undesignated fund balances, resulted in budget basis fund balances at June 30, 1999 totaling $5,021,000. The 
fiscal year 2000 budget was adopted with a funding source from fiscal year 1999 of $2, 194,000 for fiscal year 2000 
expenditures and $1,652,000 for unforeseen circumstances (approximating 3% of the fiscal year 2000 operating budget). The 
remaining $1,175,000 is undesignated as of June 30, 1999. 

In Prince George's County, the $9,426,000 positive variance of the Administration, Park and Recreation Accounts was largely 
a result of property taxes that exceeded the budget by $4, 183,000; interest earnings, including interest transferred from the 
Capital Projects Funds of $2,203,000 and excluding interest transferred to the Capital Projects Funds of $2,021 ,000, that 
exceeded the budget by $474,000; and expenditure savings of $7,441,000, offset by additional operating transfers of 
$2,519,000. The variance, together with July 1, 1998 undesignated fund balances, resulted in budget basis fund balances at 
June 30, 1999 totaling $43,058,000. The fiscal year 2000 budget was adopted with a funding source from fiscal year 1999 of 
$7,139,000 for fiscal year 2000 expenditures, $3,302,000 for unforeseen circumstances (approximating 3 % of the fiscal year 
2000 operating budget), and $19,176,000 for the operating costs and debt service of future facilities. The remaining 
$13,441,000 is undesignated as ofJune 30; 1999. Prince George's County fund balances reflect the plan to stabilize property 
tax rates at the 1993 rate by utilizing reserves accumulated to offset future tax rate increases. 

Comparative summaries of the Montgomery County Administration and Park Accounts and the Prince George's County 
Administration, Park and Recreation Accounts on the Commission's budget basis, before debt service and other financing 
sources and uses, are as follows ($000's). 

- 8 -



MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Revenue Source -
Property Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Interest Earnings 
Other 

County Total 

Expenditure Classification -
Personal Services 
Supplies, Materials, other 

Services and Charges 
Capital Outlay 

County Total 

PRINCE GEORGE • S COUNTY 

Revenue Source -
Property Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Interest Earnings 
Other 

County Total 

Expenditure Classification -
Personal Services 
Supplies, Materials, Other 

Services and Charges 
Capital Outlay 

County Total 

Actual 
FY99 

$ 59,013 
499 

2,276 
832 
141 

$62,761 

$43,398 

15,349 
744 

$ 59,491 

$100,231 
897 

6,740 
2,992 

299 
$111,159 

$ 61 ,628 

27,790 
2,375 

$ 91,793 

Actual 
FY98 

$58,999 
525 

2,131 
889 
74 

$62,618 

$42,169 

14,142 
1 014 

$57,325 

$ 97,488 
662 

6,493 
3,823 

321 
$108,787 

$59,504 

27,767 
4 563 

$91,834 

Increase (Decrease) 
Amount Percent 

$ 14 
(26) 
145 
(57) 

67 
$ 143 

$1,229 

1,207 
(270) 

$2,166 

$2,743 
235 
247 

(831) 
(22) 

$2,372 

$2,124 

23 
(2,188) 

$ (41) 

0.0% 
( 5.0) 
6.8 

(6.4) 
90.5 

0.2% 

2.9% 

8.5 
(26.6) 

3.8% 

2.8% 
35.5 
3.8 

(21 . 7) 
__{§J!) 

2.2% 

3.6% 

0.1 
(48.0) 

0.0% 

The property tax revenue in Montgomery County remained fairly constant from fiscal year 1998 to fiscal year 1999. Fiscal 
year 1998 revenues included unusually high collections from prior years of $ 1,700,000 versus $800,000 in fiscal year 1999. 
This decrease was offset by current year collections which reflected a 2.4% growth in assessable base in fiscal year 1999 and 
the full year's impact of the prior year's assessable base growth. The applicable tax rate of 21.40 cents was unchanged. The 
increase in Prince George's County property tax revenue reflected 2.1 % growth in fiscal year 1999, the full year's impact of 
the prior year's assessable base growth, and a $400,000 increase in prior year collections. The applicable tax rate of 60.38 
cents was unchanged. The interest earnings decreases reflected lower investment balances and a lower average rate of return 
throughout fiscal year 1999. Charges for services were up in Montgomery County by $145,000, due primarily to increases 
in planning and sales fees, collections of ballfield registrations, and shelter and community building fees . The charges for 
services increased in Prince George's County primarily due to higher recreation revenues for trips and excursions . Prince 
George's intergovernmental revenues increased in fiscal year 1999 due primarily to the $ 190,000 award of the Federal 
"COPSMORE" grant. The changes in personal services charges were due primarily to the June 28, 1998, 2.75% non­
bargaining unit cost of living adjustment (COLA), the union COLAs ranging from 2.25% to 2.75%, and merit increases. The 
increase in personal services was partially offset by a decrease in employer retirement contributions. The capital outlay decrease 
in Prince George• s County is due primarily to the 1998 purchase of a police computer-aided dispatch system and computer 
enhancements. 

Debt Administration - Debt Service Funds (Exhibits B-1 and B-2) and Enterprise Funds (Exhibits D-1 and D-2) 

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the Commission• s general obligation debt, which includes Park Acquisition and 
Development Bonds (Park Bonds) and Advance Land Acquisition Bonds (ALA Bonds). The outstanding issues totaling 
$156,130,000 and the related debt service requirements to maturity are set forth in Note 10 of the Notes to Financial Statements. 
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The Commission's general obligation bonds are unconditionally guaranteed by the County for which issued. Debt service 
expenditures for general obligation bonds and ALA Bonds totaled $15,173,000 (Montgomery - $3,619,000, Prince George's 
- $11,554,000) for the fiscal year. 

Of the outstanding debt, park acquisition and development bonds (Park Debt) totaled $146,965,000 at June 30, 1999. Park 
debt, and the related debt service expenditures, totaled $14,108,000 (Montgomery - $2,994,000, Prince George· s -
$11, 114,000) for the fiscal year. The Commission's Metropolitan District (Park) tax includes a mandatory tax for debt service 
for Park Debt of nine cents in Montgomery County and ten cents in Prince George's County. Debt service payments approxi­
mated 1.1 cent of the mandatory debt service tax proceeds for Montgomery County and 7 .1 cents for Prince George's County. 
The remainder of the proceeds of the mandatory taxes was used for park operation and maintenance expenditures in the 
respective Counties. 

In fiscal year 1999, the Commission issued $21,000,000 Prince George ' s County Park Acquisition and Development Refunding 
Taxable Bonds, SeriesX-2, with a maturity date of August 1, 2002, and a fixed interest rate of 5%, the proceeds of which were 
used to retire $21,000,000 Prince George's County Park Acquisition and Development Variable Rate Bond Anticipation Notes, 
Series V-2. This sale was undertaken to replace tax exempt debt with taxable debt to enable the Commission to expand the use 
of the Prince George's County Sports and Leaming Complex. On July 30, 1998, the Commission also issued $7,000,000 
Montgomery County Park Acquisition and Development Bonds, Series U-2, which mature over the period through August l , 
2018, at a true interest cost of 4.53%. 

The Commission's outstanding general obligation bonds continue to have favorable ratings as follows. 

Montgomery County 
Prince George's County 

Moody's Investors Services, Inc. 
Aaa 
Aa2 

Standard & Poor's Rating Services 
AAA 
AA 

The Commission's revenue bonds and revenue notes payable which totaled $13,658,000 at June 30, J 999, are accounted for 
in the Enterprise Funds. The revenue bonds and notes are not general obligations of the Commission or Montgomery County 
and are payable solely from revenues generated from revenue producing facilities. Debt service expenditures for the revenue 
bonds and notes totaled $850, 143 for the fiscal year. 

The Commission also issued a $6,000,000 Cabin John Regional Park Ice Rink 1999 Revenue Note at an interest rate of5 .16% 
with a fifteen year term to finance the reconstruction and expansion of the existing ice rink in Cabin John Regional Park. 

The outstanding proprietary fund debt as of June 30, 1999, and the related debt service requirements are set forth in Note 10 
of the Notes to Financial Statements. 

Capital Improvements - Capital Projects Funds (Exhibits C-1 and C-2) 

Proceeds of general obligation park acquisition and development issues are accounted for in Capital Projects Funds until the 
projects are completed. Completed projects and construction in progress at year-end are capitalized in the General Fixed Assets 
Account Group. During fiscal year 1999, projects totaling $14,660,000 were completed. 

Montgomery County authorized projects totaling $21,323,000 in fiscal year 1999, of which $2,381 ,000 is funded by the 
Commission from bonds. The amount of fiscal year 1999 budget allocated to acquisition of parkland is $520,000, and 
$20,803,000 for development. The remaining projects are for nonlocal parks, which are funded primarily by Montgomery 
County Government and Maryland Program Open Space, and·an ice rink which will be funded from enterprise operations. The 
largest project currently under construction in Montgomery County is the South Germantown SoccerPlex within the South 
Germantown Recreational Park. The Commission has formed a partnership with a non-profit organization, The Maryland 
Soccer Foundation, Inc., to make the plan a reality through planned private funding of $11,000,000 of the total $20,000,000 
project. The SoccerPlex will consist of twenty-two soccer fields, i.e., twenty one outdoor fields and a championship tournament 
field, an indoor arena with two multi-purpose athletic fields, and supporting facilities and infrastructure. 
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Prince George's County authorized projects totaling $21,174,000 in fiscal year 1999 of which $5,349,000 is to be funded by 
current and future Commission bonds. The amount of fiscal year 1999 budget allocated to acquisition of parkJand is 
$2,187,000, and $18,987,000 for development. Major projects included authorization for increased fund ing of the Prince 
George's Sports and Learning Complex of$7,800,000, enhancements for the Gardens Jee Houseof$1,500,000, and additional 
funding for Community Park Schools of $900,000. 

Financial activity for 1999 and 1998 is summarized as follows ($000's). 

Montgomert Coun!Y Prince George's Coun!Y 
FY 1999 FY 1998 FY 1999 FY 1998 

Proceeds of Debt Issuance $7,000 $ - $ $21 ,000 
Intergovernmental Revenues -
Federal 422 371 
Maryland Program Open Space 1,304 2,387 9,049 1,092 
Local ~ 3,885 

Total 12,422 6,272 9 471 22,463 
Transfers In -

General Fund 290 140 3,468 5,240 
Trust Fund 313 412 35 

Sale of Land 156 234 
Other Revenues __ 1 2,126 314 

Total 603 ~ 5,785 5,788 
Expenditures and Other -
Acquisition 688 1,365 5,781 2,396 
Development 6,951 7,896 30,947 15,247 

Total 7,639 9,261 36,728 17,643 

Authorized and Funded Projects 6,697 1 311 23,393 44,865 
Working Capital 6,697 1 311 23,393 44,865 

Self-Supporting Recreational and Cultural Facilities -Enterprise Funds 
{Exhibits D-1, D-2, and D-3) 

The Commission has determined that certain recreational and cultural facilities should be predominantly self-supporting through 
user fees . Enterprise Fund accounting and reporting is used to emphasize the self-supporting nature of these activities and to 
provide improved cost accounting information. Enterprise Fund accounting, which is on a commercial accounting accrual basis, 
more accurately reflects whether individual facilities return the full cost of the program. 

One Enterprise Fund has been established in each County to account for the various facilities . Separate cost centers are 
maintained for each major type of facility including an historical airport, four ice rinks, eight golf courses, four enclosed tennis 
facilities, four conference centers, an equestrian center/multipurpose arena, a trap and skeet center, certain regional park 
facilities, a sports and learning center, and a marina which is currently closed for renovation. 

The Commission's objective is that user fees and operating transfers in (subsidies) for all facilities cover operating expenses, 
excluding depreciation, but including payments for capital outlay. The Montgomery County Enterprise Fund fell short of the 
goal by approximately $1,442,000 including operating transfers in of $86,000, and after payments for capital outlay and 
improvements totaling $3,960,000. The Montgomery County Enterprise cash is used to partially fund Capital Improvement 
Projects, which amounted to $3,727,000 in fiscal year 1999. The Prince George's County Enterprise Fund exceeded the goal 
by $2,503,000 including operating transfers in of$5,070,000, and after payments for capital outlay of$259,000. At year end, 
$1 ,990,000 was transferred from the General Fund to the Enterprise Fund for start-up costs for the Prince George's Sports and 
Learning Complex. 
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Summary comparative results of the financial operations of the Enterprise Funds for fi scal years 1999 and 1998 follow ($000's). 

Montgomery Prince George's 
County County 

FY 1999 FY 1998 FY 1999 FY 1998 
Operating Revenues $11 ,128 $1 1,275 $ 5,335 $5,272 
Operating Expenses 

Excluding Depreciation 8,696 9,378 7 643 7,287 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Excluding Depreciation 2,432 1,897 (2,308) (2,015) 
Depreciation 665 1,535 991 1,256 
Operating Income (Loss) $1,767 $ 362 $ (3,299) $(3,271) 

Comparative Montgomery County key data are as follows. 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Revenues Excluding De12reciation 
Facility FY 1999 FY 1998 Change FY 1999 FY 1998 Change 

Conference Centers $ 327,358 $ 443,876 $ (116,518) $ (158,338) $ (148,019) $ (10,319) 
Golf Courses 6,989,681 6,627,272 362,409 1,940,300 1,386,832 553,468 
Ice Rinks 1,396,410 2,151,180 (754,770) (248,745) 131,069 (379,814) 
Indoor Tennis 1,079,305 1,023,329 55,976 523,068 414,208 108,860 
Park Facilities 1,335,182 1,029,349 305,833 375 779 112,120 263,659 

TOTAL $1 1,127,936 $11,275,006 $ (147,070) $2,432,064 $1,896,210 $535,854 

Total Enterprise Fund revenues decreased by 1.3% and operating income, excluding depreciation, improved by 28.3%. 
Operating income at the golf courses and park facilities increased 39.9% and 235.2% respectively, due to favorable weather 
conditions during the year. Ice rink revenues decreased 35.1% due to the warm winter, competition from The Gardens Ice 
House, a private ice rink, and the closing of Cabin John Ice Rink in March for construction. Conference center revenues 
decreased 26.3% due to the closing of the Silver Spring Armory. 

Comparative Prince George's key data are as follows. 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Revenues Excluding De12reciation 
Facility FY 1999 FY 1998 Change FY 1999 FY 1998 Change 

Airport $ 218,549 $ 239,197 $(20,648) $ (327,899) $ (324,025) $ (3,874) 
Equestrian Center/Arena 911 ,855 927,245 (15,390) (1,576,910) (1,361,619) (215,291) 
Golf Courses 2,378,134 2,279,026 99,108 149,814 106,314 43,500 
Ice Rinks 481 ,000 515,040 (34,040) (118,179) (60,144) (58,035) 
Regional Parks 302,182 292,027 10,155 (181,372) (126,430) (54,942) 
Trap & Skeet Center 1,043,059 1,019,667 23,392 (83,811) (46,096) (37,715) 
Bladensburg Marina (170,060} (202,820) 32,760 

TOTAL $5,334,779 $5,272,202 $ 62,577 $(2, 308,417) $(2,014,820} · $(293,597} 

Total Enterprise Fund revenues increased by 1.2%, however, the operating loss, excluding depreciation, increased by 14.5%. 
Favorable weather conditions helped the golf courses, regional parks, and trap and skeet range revenues. The Commission looks 
forward to the opening of the Prince George's Sports and Learning Complex (Sportsplex) scheduled for February 2000. The 
Sportsplex is a 235,000 square foot facility containing a field house with a 200 meter track, gymnastic center, aquatic center, 
fitness center, and learning component all connected by a central atrium. The 80-acre site will also have a 400 meter outdoor 
track, play area, pond and other recreational features. 

Internal Service Funds (Exhibits E-1, E-2 and E-3) 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the consolidated financing of those goods or services that are provided centrally 
to the departments on a cost reimbursement basis. Internal Service Funds are used to account for the Commission's group 
insurance and risk management programs; the executive office building on Kenilworth A venue in Prince George's County; the 
recording of annual and sick leave earned, taken and accrued by employees; the administrative leave used by employees who 

• 12 -



are bargaining unit members; and financing of capital equipment purchases. The Commission has fully funded the short-term 
portion of the annual and compensatory leave liability required to be recorded in the financial statements, and has funded 60% 
of the long-term portion. 

The Capital Equipment Funds permit spreading the cost of capital outlay to the operating funds over a period not to exceed six 
years. Risk management net cost decreased $519,000, from $3,557,000 in fiscal year 1998 to $3,038,000 in fiscal year 1999 
as a result of a decrease in automobile and general liability insurance payments. The Commission's risk management program 
consisting of self-insuring smaU losses and commercially insuring against large losses, in combination with an intensive safety 
program, has produced substantial savings since its inception in 1979, and has also improved the employee safety record. Total 
group insurance costs for active employees and retirees increased 3.4% from $13,058,000 in fiscal year 1998 to $13,508,000 
in fiscal year 1999 due to the overall increases to group insurance plan premium rates. 

Fiduciary Activities - (Exhibits 6, and F-1, F-2, and F-3) 

Fiduciary activities include the Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, the Employees' Deferred Compensation 
Expendable Trust Fund, the Maryland State Retirement System (MSRS) Agency Fund, and a number of Expendable Trust 
Funds. Pension Trust Fund investments resulted in an overan gain of7.7%. The Commission contributed $2,972,000 to the 
Employees' Retirement System as determined by the actuarial valuation as of July 1, 1998, which is used for financial reporting 
purposes in the accompanying report. This represented a 44% decline from the $5,337,000 contribution in fiscal year 1998. 
An actuarial valuation as of July l , 1999, still in progress, indicates a net market value of Pension Trust Fund assets 
approximating $453,350,000, up $26,000,000 during the year primarily due to investment returns . 

Cash Management 

The Commission's accounting system operates under a pooled cash fund concept. This method reduces the efforts needed to 
manage cash and investments since bank accounts and investments are consolidated in a Treasurer's Fund instead of having 
separate bank accounts and investments for each Fund. Investments of the Treasurer's Fund earned interest income of 
$6,796,000 during fiscal year 1999. The average rate ofreturn on the Commission's cash and investments during fiscal year 
1999 was 5.2%. 

General Fixed Assets 

The general fixed assets of the Commission are those assets used in general governmental functions and exclude the fixed assets 
of the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds. The assets, which are valued principally at cost, had a book value of 
$517,898,000 at June 30, 1999, an increase of almost $44,000,000 during the year. 

Other Information 

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The accounting firm 
of Arthur Andersen LLP was selected by the Commission. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, 
the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996, as revised and related 0MB Circular A-
133. The auditors' report on the General Purpose Financial Statements, and the combining and individual fund statements and 
schedules is included in the Financial Section of this Report. The auditors' reports related specifically to the single audit are 
available from the Secretary-Treasurer upon request. 

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to the Commission for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. 
The Commission has received this award continuously since fiscal year 1973. In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, the Commission must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. This Report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and we are submitting it to the 
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another Certificate. 
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In addition, the Commission also received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual budget for 
fiscal year 1999. The Commission has received this award continuously since fiscal year 1987. In order to qualify for the 
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the Commission's budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories e 
including policy documentation, financial planning and organization. 

Year 2000: The Commission has a Year 2000 (Y2K) program mission to manage the processes and technology to ensure that 
no mission-critical services fail, or are disrupted as a result of date problems related to the year 2000. The Commission expects 
a smooth transition into the next millennium. Although minor problems could occur, the Commission expects to resolve all of 
its mission-critical Year 2000 problems before January 1, 2000. The Commission does not expect any Year 2000 problems 
to have a material adverse effect on its financial health, or its ability to meet the needs of its public in a timely manner. 

Nevertheless, the Commission does not have control over the readiness of others. It is possible that while the Commission may 
be fully compliant and prepared, external unforeseen issues could adversely affect the business continuity of the Commission. 
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COMMISSION BACKGROUND AND ORGANIZATION 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission is a body corporate of the State of Maryland, 
established by the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The laws governing the Commission were codified 
in 1959, recodified in 1975 to be Article 66D of the Annotated Code of Maryland and again in 1983, to be 
Article 28. 

The Commission is a bi-county agency, empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional 
system of parks in a defined Metropolitan District within the Maryland Counties (Montgomery and Prince 
George's) adjacent to the District of Columbia; and the Commission is empowered to prepare and administer 
a general plan for the physical development of a larger Regional District in the same area. 

As development and urbanization of the area have progressed, the two Districts have been enlarged by the 
General Assembly. They now embrace all of Maryland's Montgomery and Prince George's Counties, except 
for certain incorporated municipalities in each County and, for the Metropolitan District only, Election Districts 
No. 4 and No. 8 in Prince George's County. 

Responsibility for public recreation in Prince George's County and the County Recreation Department was 
transferred to the Commission in July, 1970 as a result of legislative action. This legislation provided that 
taxes to support recreation be imposed county-wide and that the County Council may require the Commission 
to institute new recreation programs. The County Executive appoints a Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
which works closely with the Commission in setting policy. 

The Commission consists often members, five appointed by Montgomery County and five by Prince George's 
County. In Montgomery County, all five of the Commissioners are appointed by the County Council and 
confirmed by the County Executive. Montgomery County Commissioners may not be appointed for more than 
two consecutive terms. In Prince George's County, all five of the Commissioners are appointed by the County 
Executive and confirmed by the County Council. Each County designates one of its Commissioners for the 
position of Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Commission. The Commission elects one of such designees as 
its Chairman and the other as its Vice-Chairman. The designee of each County also serves as the Chairman 
of that County's Planning Board. Under the Commission's rules of procedure, the Chairmanship and Vice­
Chairmanship of the Commission rotate annually between the two designees. Tem1s of office are staggered 
and no more than three members from each County may belong to the same political party. 

The Commission coordinates and acts on matters of interest to both Counties. Two regional offices are 
maintained, one in each County. The Commission meets once each month regularly, the site of the meetings 
alternating between the two regional offices. The members of the Commission from each County serve as 
separate Planning Boards to facil itate, review and administer the matters affecting only their respective County. 
To carry out their functions, the County Planning Boards meet at least once a week. The County Councils set 
priorities for the Planning Boards' park and planning operations through their annual determination and 
periodic review of the Commission;s operating and capital improvement budgets and work programs. 

The Commission administers a park system which currently contains over 51,000 acres. It is composed of 
stream-valley parks, large regional parks, neighborhood parks and park-school recreational areas. Its staff 
consists of over 1,940 career employees - planners, park and recreation administrators, park police and 
administrative staff. In addition, it employs approximately 4,600 seasonal workers, primarily for its numerous 
park and recreation programs. 

- 16 -



The operating and administrative functions of the Commission are financed primarily by property taxes levied 
for the Commission by the two Counties. The Commission has the authority to sell general obligation bonds 
to fund approved park acquisition and development projects. 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
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PROGRAM ffiGHLIGHTS 

INTRODUCTION: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission continued its mission to improve 
the quality oflife for the citizens of Montgomery and Prince George's Counties and for the communities in which they 
live, work and raise their families. Once again, the Commission's unequaled leadership in the fields of Planning, Parks 
and Recreation gained prestigious national recognition. The Prince George's County Planning Department earned the 
American Planning Association's Special Community Initiative Award for its work in the Port Towns revitalization 
planning area; the Port Towns project also merited a Joint Center for Sustainable Community Award from the National 
Governors Conference. The Parks and Recreation Department received the 1999 Award for Excellence from the 
National Association of Counties, the National Organization on Disability and the JC Penney Company for its model 
inclusion program for persons with disabilities. The Commission's Public Affairs staff brought home eight top awards 
from the National Association of Counties Information Officers. The Commission was proudly notified of its selection 
once again as a finalist for the National Gold Medal for excellence in parks and recreation management. As a four-time 
national gold medalist and seven-time nominee, the Commission has achieved a level of excellence unparalleled by any 
other agency in the nation. 

The Commission pursued several public/private partnerships, producing dramatic results. With extensive public input, 
South Germantown Recreational Park's SoccerPlex received approval and major funding from state, county, 
Commission and private sources, particularly the Maryland Soccer Foundation, Inc., to begin design and construction 
of an indoor soccer stadium and 22 tournament fields, tennis and aquatic facilities, nature center and many other 
features. Work proceeded on the multimillion dollar Prince George's Sports and Leaming Complex, built with support 
from the Washington Redskins. The community also celebrated the grand openings of the College Park Aviation 
Museum, the Youth Golf Training Facility, Shirley Povich Field and Hadley's Playground, all outstanding examples 
of public/private partnerships. 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PARK AND PLANNING 

Focusing on Silver Spring/Takoma Park Areas: An innovative revitalization strategy was included as part of the 
comprehensive amendment to the Sector Plan for the Silver Spring Central Business District (CBD). This strategy is 
presently being used in the development and review of projects in the core area of the Silver Spring CBD. Additional 
housing, a headquarters building for Discovery Communications and a major retail project are under development 
within this core area of the Silver Spring CBD as part of the revitalization strategy. 

1-270 Initiatives: Several national models of successful employment centers were examined including Austin, Texas; 
Research Triangle, North Carolina; Silicon Valley, California; and Princeton, New Jersey; and several livability 
characteristics of these model employment centers identified. The findings of this employment center analysis will be 
used in preparing recommendations for improving the I-270 Corridor in Montgomery County. 

Planning for the Potomac Subregion: The Community-Based Planning Division continued preparing recommendations 
for the Potomac Subregion, with promotion of development patterns concurrent with environmental protection as a 
central theme. Rural and rustic roads, water and sewer policies, new community facilities , and modifications to the 
existing land use and zoning will be included in this master plan. 

Protecting Rural Communities: A recently-completed study of regulations affecting rural zones recommended 
changes to the existing regulations to allow the use of private roads in rural developments, to establish cluster 
development options, and to provide more flexible septic requirements. These recommendations strengthen the 
protection of quality farmland and open space in Montgomery County. 
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Planning for Future Transportation Infrastructure: For the first time the Department began looking at growth 
scenarios to the year 2050, to make sure all planning has a focused vision of the future. As part of a transportation 
policy report, alternative transit and roadway network modeling helps guide near-term investJnents in transportation 
infrastructure. This modeling will provide a context for County Council decisions and recommendations to the State 
Legislature. Avoiding negative community impact in both the location and design of new infrastructure has been a 
central theme in participation with the State's congestion relief study and design review of County projects. 

Focusing on the Environment: As the administrative agency for the Forest Conservation Ordinance, the Department 
developed and will be suggesting amendments to the existing law to ensure the intent of the law is carried out in its 
implementation and that unnecessary regulatory submissions are eliminated. Increasing the survival rate for reforested 
areas and retaining existing forest stands are principle areas of the law in need of revision. Each year, the forest 
conservation program is responsible for planting trees in 600 acres. Throughout the park system, a major campaign 
is underway to upgrade maintenance yards to meet new environmental regulations. 

Respecting the County's Past: The Department published an award-winning book on the history of Chevy Chase, 
which is now in its second printing. Designation of historic resources in Chevy Chase continued and staff is also 
reviewing Olney area resources in advance of updating the master plan. Historic area work permits are an ever 
increasing work load as the number of historic resources expands. Rehabilitation of park historic resources is underway 
with the stabilization of the Oliver Watkins House and the reconditioned barn. Public and private partnerships are 
sought to ensure continued maintenance of historic structures. 

Implementing the Park, Recreation, and Open Space Plan: Providing for increased use of existing ballfields and 
the construction of additional ballfields continued as a prime focus. The County Council's "Kids First" initiative 
requires reducing the number of youths turned away from organized play due to the lack of fields. Installing lighting 
on selected existing fields will increase the hours of play, and renovations will bring fields back into condition for 
increased play. The Commission-appointed task force suggested several long-term projects, such as eight school field 
renovations, and policy modifications. The Commission's use of a comprehensive Facility Scheduling database in 
partnership with Montgomery County's Community Use of Public Facilities Office and the Department of Recreation 
assured greater efficiency in scheduling new and existing fields, and an increased construction rate for park trails 
responded to the expressed needs of County residents. 

Geographic Information System (GIS): The Department is undertaking an inventory of park facilities in a GIS 
readable format. This will provide information available throughout the Department and the County. The GIS Team 
is converting the County's 30-40 years of zoning maps into the GIS. Although boundary lines are complete, additional 
work will make them legal. The GIS Team is developing the digital street address coverage, due for completion in 
December 1999. 

Understanding the Economy: In April, the Department presented the second annual update of the economy study to 
the County Council. Updates will provide valuable input for budget considerations. Results of the interview and focus 
group phase of the Site Characteristics Study were presented at the same time. Both studies show an increasingly 
healthy economy. In addition, the site characteristics study indicates industry appreciation of the recently streamlined 
development review process. 

Streamlining the Development Review Process: To automate components of the development review process, the 
Department used a consultant to develop a comprehensive, integrated computer system which staff is now implementing. 
It supports improved tracking and monitoring; eliminates redundancies; improves interagency coordination; uses 
client/server technology and the Oracle system; is maintainable and expandable; and integrates with the GIS and other 
systems. The computer system is scheduled to "go live" in mid-October 1999. Development Review staff continue 

- 20 -



to work closely with the Maryland-National Capital Building Industry Association to improve the development approval 
process. Updating application forms, checklists, and submission requirements to more accurately reflect the current 
process is underway. 

Parks' Capital Improvements Program: For the first time, the Department tracked the Capital Improvements 
Program's "cumulative obligations" rate, considered a more leading indicator of productivity than expenditure. 
Generally, a level of obligations that exceeds the expenditure for a given year points to an increased level of expenditure 
in the following year. By May 1999, the cumulative obligation reached $19.5 million toward a year-end goal of$24.3 
million. Significant accomplishments included: the completion of Fairland Recreational Park and Brookview Local 
Park; the renovation of Bullis Local Park; the beginning of construction at Needwood Golf Course Maintenance Yard, 
Calverton-Fairland and McKnew Local Parks, and Ovid Hazen Wells Park; and enclosed ice rinks at Cabin John and 
Wheaton Regional Park. 

Public-Private Partnerships: Plans for new facilities at South Germantown Recreational Park mandate simultaneous 
development of some public amenities along with the SoccerPlex, facilitated by a partnership involving the state, 
county and Maryland Soccer Foundation. Hadley's Playground at Falls Road Local Park, a $700,000 initiative of the 
mother of a child with disabilities, opened in June featuring communication signage used by autistic children, Braille, 
and a rubberized ground cover made of recycled tires. The Bethesda Big Train, a collegiate baseball team, played its 
first home game on June 4 in the new Shirley Povich Field in Cabin John Regional Park, thanks to the financial support 
of a local baseball club. 

Land Acquisition: Parkland increased by 144 acres in four stream valley parks, plus 34 acres at Fairland Recreational 
Park, and 95 additional acres at South Germantown Recreational Park. A joint acquisition with the Board of Education 
of almost 13 acres established the new Airy Hill Local Park, which will be shared by Paint Branch High School. The 
park system now totals more than 29, 100 acres. 

Natural Resources: For the first time, the Smithsonian, the U.S. Botanic Gardens and Brookside Gardens 
collaboratively sponsored a major eight-week Orchid Show in Brookside' s Conservatory. The Gardens also hosted five 
major flower shows in the new Visitors Center. To improve boating and fishing, an aquatic weed suppression program 
treated 35 acres oflakes and ponds. More than 25 acres of parkland were reforested and a soil amendment program 
promoting tree health care was implemented. The completed restoration of the pond at Brookside Nature Center, 
supported by a grant from the Chesapeake Bay Foundation, interprets the link between suburban water quality care 
and the Bay's health. 

Volunteers in Parks: Supported by a grant from the Chesapeake Bay Foundation, the Stream Striders Program 
recruited, trained and placed 28 adult volunteers, who in turn educated 35 volunteer groups in a variety of conservation 
projects. The Department also served as a Student Service Learning site, offering high school students opportunities 
in community service while earning credits toward graduation. One volunteer gardener at the Black Hill Visitor Center 
received the Governor's Award for Volunteerism, while the Department was honored with the "Agency Volunteer 
Award" by the Maryland Recreation and Parks Association. 

Excellence in Park Policing: The Montgomery County Park Police Division achieved national accreditation status 
from the Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies. The Division's technology program was 
specifically designated as a national exemplary program. A new Mentor Officer Program enhanced retention and 
professional development of new recruits and career officers. The Division also received several awards, including the 
Council of Government's 1998 K-9 Team Enforcement Award. 
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PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION: Continuing a tradition of excellence and national recognition 
for park and recreation programming and management, the Department offered a growing and culturally diverse 
population a wide variety of park and recreation programming, with patron visitation at parks and facilities numbering 
into the millions. To better address citizen needs, the Department embarked upon an ongoing and wide-scale marketing 

and customer service program. 

The guaranteed potential for quality park and recreation opportunities was clearly evident with the on-going 
development of key projects to include: the multi-use, multi-faceted Prince George's Sports and Learning Complex; 
the environmentally friendly project known as the Bladensburg Waterfront Park, Phase I; and the groundbreaking for 
the WB&A Trail, a key segment in the Washington, Baltimore and Annapolis regional hiker-biker-equestrian trail 
system. Significant development and facility renovation took place during this period to include: the grand opening of 
the $6 million College Park Aviation Museum; the development and grand opening of the Prince George's County 
Youth Golf Training Center funded in-part by a grant from the United States Golf Association; and renovations to the 
Ardmore Recreation Center, Hamilton Magruder Park, the Newton White Mansion Atrium, historic Snow Hill Manor, 

and numerous playgrounds throughout the park system. 

Special events and festivals offered throughout the County proved to be crowd pleasers, some of which included: the 
Hispanic Festival; Marlborough Day; the 6th Annual Bluebird Blues Festival; the Montpelier Spring Festival; the 
College Park AeroFair; the ever-popular Winter Festival of Lights that attracted over 114,000 visitors; the Harlem 

Renaissance Festival; and month-long Black History events . 

The Upper Marlboro and Glenridge Child Care Centers continued to serve as model employer child care programs, 
hosting numerous private, county and state officials interested in estabiishing similar programs in their jurisdictions. 
Excellence in child care continued as the Summer Lunch program, offered in cooperation with the Department of Social 
Services at 46 sites, served 105,870 nutritional lunches. Once again, the At Risk Youth Program was offered in 
conjunction with the Prince George's County Public Schools at Greenbelt, Shadyside, Columbia Park and Glenarden 
Woods elementary schools. A State Department of Education School-Community Center Program grant was 
coordinated and administered helping to keep schools open weekdays after hours and on weekends. 

Thousands of traditional recreational programs, as well as numerous specialized programs were offered to meet the 
needs of the residents. Summer playgrounds and day camps, specialized teen activities , specialized senior facilities and 
activities, and a multitude ofrecreation classes attracted participants of all ages. Golf, swimming and tennis proved to 
be popular with fitness enthusiasts, and these facilities were heavily used throughout the year. Patrons with special 
needs were placed in inclusion programs to encourage people with and without disabilities to experience recreation 

activities side-by-side. 

The Sports/Permit Division administered a diversified program of county-wide sports for youth and adults. Thousands 
of people permitted park facilities and the popular garden plots. The Division also administered the Prince George's 

County Boys and Girls Club sports program. 

To better serve the public, all the department's interpretive house museums were reorganized under one division. The 
Archeological Society of Maryland selected Mt. Calvert as the site of its 29th Annual Field School for the third year 
in a row. Specialized programming including the Jug Bay 1 OK Run For Wildlife, Dino Day, and the Big Tree tour 
continue to grow in popularity. Preservation of natural resources was further promoted with volunteer assisted tree 

plantings and river and stream clean ups. 
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Arts and cultural offerings were well attended, and locally and nationally acclaimed artists and performers thrilled 
theater goers and gallery visitors throughout the year. Attention was given to the show "SSS: When The Iron Was Hot: 
African-American Iron workers in Laurel/Muirkirk," a show depicting local history from a previous era. Rental 
facilities are now managed by the Arts and Cultural Heritage Division to better serve the public. 

The Commission received a federal "COPSMORE" grant that will enable the Park Police to purchase and use a 
sophisticated computer system in police vehicles, thereby giving officers in the field quicker access to information 
regarding possible suspects. The Park Police role of providing policing at special events and daily operations throughout 
the county is further aided by graduates of the popular Park/Community Volunteer Academy and Alumni Association. 
Park Police continue an active role in mentoring and participation in the Drug Abuse Resistance Education program. 

Maintaining the park system is an enormous job, and renewed efforts are evident throughout the Department. From 
upgrading lighting systems, to making major building improvements, to developing a golf training facility, and installing 
a Vehicle Maintenance System to monitor Commission vehicles and equipment, the department is committed to keeping 
the park system clean, attractive, safe and user friendly for the public. 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT: Community Planning staff continued to work on Metro-related projects, master plan 
and sectional map amendment (SMA) revisions, and specialized studies. The College Park Transit Development 
District Plan (l'DDP) and revisions to the West Hyattsville and Prince George's Plaza TDDP were approved by 
Council. The Preliminary Plan and SMA was published for the Heights community planning area. The Addison Road 
Metro Sector Plan and SMA will be ·beard in the future.. The Anacosfia Trails Heritage Area Management Plan 
proceeded through several steps of the public planning process, and a County Council-requested A;rport Study was 
forwarded for review. The Citizen's Handbookwas updated and redesigned to be a more customer-friendly document. 

The Countywide Planning Section began work with Commission 2000 to develop the County's first Biennial Growth 
Policy Plan. This plan will incorporate the County's Economic Development Strategy, consider Zoning Ordinance 
changes, and make recommendations about the development pipeline that will lead to a new General Plan in 2000. 
Staff also provided technical assistance on the school adequate public faci lity legislation (CB-15-1999) and to the 
County's School Construction Team. 

The Historic Preservation Section continued its support to the Historic Preservation Com.mission, reviewed historic 
work permit and tax credit applications, provided input on historic sites and environmental settings during the 
development review process and documented historic properties. A National Register nomination was approved for 
Hazelwood, and a proposal for the Greenbelt Historic District received overwhelming supported. An architectural 
survey was completed for East Hyattsville, while a survey of a potential historic district for Riverdale Park continues. 

The award-winning Neighborhood Revitalization program achieved national recognition with awards in community 
capacity building and sustainability. In addition to revitalization planning, progress was achieved in the implementation 
of revitalization programs and projects. Examples include infrastructure redevelopment in several communities; the 
designation by the State of Maryland of the Port Towns Enterprise Zone; successful community events; development 
and implementation of a comprehensive model for revitalization development and implementation; and the establishment 
of a summer jobs-for-youth program in conjunction with area businesses. The program also staffs and supports the 
newly created Redevelopment Authority of Prince George's County, providing organjzation development input and 
identifying key redevelopment projects for the Authority's consideration. 

The Urban Design Planning Division advanced the Greenbelt Metro Area Sector Plan/SMA process by conducting a 
series of planning group workshops that produced a "preferred land use concept" for the sector and a first draft of the 
preliminary plan. The Division completed work on the Brentwood Urban-Mixed Town Center Development Plan, 
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continued services to other area planning projects and initiated early work on the Route 1 Corridor Sector Plan in 
College Park. 

The Development Review Division conducted timely review and analysis of approximately 750 applications, including 
zoning map amendments, special exceptions, conceptual and detailed site plans, and preliminary and final plats of 
subdivision. The Permit Review Section reviewed approximately 16,550 permit applications, of which approximately 
13,200 were building permits, for compliance with appropriate codes and approval conditions. The Information Section 
provided various public information, street naming and property address services. 

Transportation Planning staff continued to support the US 301 Implementation Task Force on the Demonstration 
Projects at MD 197 and MD 4. A new monthly process was instituted to improve coordination of development review 
in Prince George's County with State, County and local transportation agencies. Staff provided support to the 
Bicycleffrails Advisory Group and the County in the development of project priority lists for pedestrian/bike facilities 
and State roads and transit projects, began the evaluation of land use scenarios for Commission 2000, and prepared 
or reviewed traffic impact studies for development applications. 

Natural Resources Division staff led a team that prepared a grant application for the State Rural Legacy Program, 
requesting $4.9 miHion for the County to protect more than 1,700 acres of farms, forest and open space through the 
purchase of land and easements. Staff continued to develop a Countywide Woodland Conservation Strategy with the 
assistance of a State grant. The fiscal year 1998 Forest Conservation Annual Report was prepared in accordance with 
the State Forest Conservation Act, and a Chesapeake Bay Critical Area Overlay Zoning Map Amendment was prepared 
for review by the District Council. 

The Research Section completed amendments to the County' s adopted forecasts that adjusted for the unification of the 
City ofTakoma Park into Montgomery County, incorporated new average household size data from the Census Bureau, 
and extended the forecasts to 2025. Staff also published the 1998 Shopping Center Directory, the Planning Data 
Inventory and two Research Briefs. Support and technical assistance were provided to various agencies and task 
forces . 

Data Systems completed the conversion of non-Y2K compliant Department databases into Oracle. This solves the 
important Y2K problem and places the Department one step closer to an integrated relationship database. The network 
connection with Prince George' s County was completed and new applications implemented. 

The GIS Section completed the quality control phase of property identification number (PIN) assignments from the 
Assessor-Treasurer's File to the GIS Property Layer. Most of the critical Countywide political and geocode layers were 
successfully converted, improving the ability to do certain types of local analyses. 

CENTRAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND MANAGEMENT: The Department of Human Resources and 
Management (DHRM), under the leadership of the Commission's Executive Director, provides quality administrative, 
managerial and human resources services to the public and the Commission. The Department is organized into two 
major divisions: Corporate Management and Human Resources. The work program is supported by a team structure 
in order to enhance service quality and increase productivity. 

Highlighting fiscal year 1999, the Department successfully negotiated and implemented a new three-year collective 
bargaining agreement with the Fraternal Order of Police, Lodge #30 and three wage reopeners for cost-of-living 
increases for the Service/Labor, Trades and Office Units. The Department implemented a pre-funding program for 
retirees' medical insurance. DHRM developed new policies and procedures in such areas as Electronic 
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Communications and Attendance and Tardiness. Departmental staff participated in the development and installation 
of a new automated time card system. The Department actively participated in Commission-wide solutions to the year 
2000 computer issues. 

Other major accomplishments included the Commission-wide initiation of an improved performance measurement 
system based on capturing program efficiency, effectiveness and outcomes. A Point of Service medical insurance option 
was added as a choice for employees. A new employment manual for seasonal, intermittent and term employees was 
developed and implemented along with a pay schedule for seasonal and intermittent employees. The Department is 
coordinating an Organizational Study of the Commission (Prince George's County portion) and an Information 
Technology Assessment Study. The Department, on behalf of the Commission, received the Distinguished Budget 
Presentation Award from the Government Finance Officers Association for the 12th consecutive year. 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT: The Department of Finance provides fiscal management and oversight of all 
Commission financial activities. Services of the Department include financial reporting and policy development; 
processing of payroll, disbursements and purchasing transactions; investment management; debt issuance; internal audit 
and information systems management. 

In fiscal year 1999, the Commission completed four debt transactions. The Commission sold $7,000,000 General 
Obligation Bonds, Series U-2, to finance various Montgomery County Capital Projects, as well as $21,000,000 Prince 
George's Park Acquisition and Development Refunding Taxable Bonds, Series X-2, which was a conversion oftax­
exempt bonds to finance the Prince George's Sports and Leaming Complex. The construction of a new ice rink at 
Cabin John Regional Park in Montgomery County was financed with a $6,000,000 Revenue Note, and a $2,800,000 
lease/purchase agreement was negotiated to cover the cost of new vehicles and equipment for various Montgomery 
County facilities. 

The Finance Department provided procurement support for numerous projects, including the purchase of deregulated 
natural gas and the construction of various park and recreation facilities. The major construction projects included the 
renovation and expansion of two ice rinks, the completion of the South Germantown Soccerplex and Recreational Park, 
and the development of the Prince George's County Sports and Learning Complex. Other significant accomplishments 
include the implementation of an automated time card system, an investment management system, and the electronic 
transfer of information into an automated utility system. The Finance Department coordinated the Year 2000 readiness 
program to ensure that no mission-imperative or mission-critical services failure occurs as a result of a Year 2000 date 
problem. This program included identifying the systems, replacing systems or remediating the problems, and preparing 
contingency plans. 

For the 26th consecutive year, the Commission received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada for the fiscal year 1998 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which was prepared by the Finance Department. 

OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL: The Office of the General Counsel provides comprehensive legal 
services to the Commission. Attorneys represent the Commission before federal and state courts and agencies in 
litigation and administrative matters which include but are not limited to the following areas: land use regulations, 
employment and Park Police matters, state and county legislative enactments, the stewardship of park property and in 
Prince George's County only, recreation programs. The Office of the General Counsel also provides advice and 
counsel to Commissioners, operating departments, Merit Board members and staff members regarding regulatory, 
administrative, procedural and corporate questions arising from Commission operations. In addition, attorneys work 
with other Commission staff in developing new solutions for problems arising from the Commission' s planning, zoning, 
subdivision and park and recreation management activities, as well as in implementing newly imposed legislative 
mandates. 
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In fiscal year 1999, the Office of the General Counsel updated and consolidated the Deferred Compensation Plans, 
Administrative Service Agreements and Resolutions. The Legal Department also negotiated an interim construction 
agreement and lease for the Soccerplex in Montgomery County; drafted and negotiated the Marketing Agreement and 
the Operations and Management Agreement, and drafted the concessionaires agreements for the Sports and Leaming 
Center in Prince George's County; coordinated adoption of County legislation exempting the Commission from County 
Admissions and Amusements Taxes; and, continued negotiating the agreement for development of the US Airways 
Arena. The Office of the General Counsel has continued to support the Commission's operating departments by 
negotiating, drafting or reviewing numerous contracts and providing advice on an as needed daily basis. 

Also during fiscal year 1999, the Office of the General Counsel tracked over 80 bills regarding the Commission, and 
coordinated, prepared and/or presented position papers and testimony, drafted amendments and monitored and reported 
on the legislative initiatives through the State legislative process. The Legal Department utilizes a satellite office 
established in Annapolis and monitors bill status during the Legislative Session by both personal presence and on-line 
telecommunications from the Office of the General Counsel in Riverdale. 

MERIT SYSTEM BOARD 

The Merit System Board is an impartial Board which provides recommendations and decisions regarding the Merit 
System of the Commission and is the highest level within the Commission for hearing appeals. During fiscal year 1999, 
the Board continued to maintain its case load on a current and timely basis. 

EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

The Employees' Retirement System (ERS}, administered by the 12 member Board of Trustees, in accordance with the 
Trust Agreement between the Board and the Commission, is a contributory defined benefit pension system with four 
plans, qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401 (a). The administrative operations are the responsibility 
of the ERS Staff and Board appointed Administrator, who reports directly to the Chairman of the Board of Trustees. 

ERS Trust Fund assets closed the year with a fair market value in excess of$450 million. The FY 99 annualized rate 
of return on investments was approximately 7. 7% gain. The Board of Trustees' actions for the year included: receipt 
of the Government Finance Officers Association's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
for the ERS' Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; continued comprehensive communications programs for all 
members regarding the System, including publishing the System's fifth summary annual report; and, conducting 
concentrated work site, and full day "Fitting the Pieces Together" retirement planning workshops for participants. 
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• PART IIA • 
FINANCIAL SECTION 

General Purpose Financial Statements 

Children learn to plant crops during the Spring Festival at the Agricultural History Fann Parle. 
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ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 

Report of Independent Public Accountants 

To the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission: 

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements (identified as 
Exhibits 1 through 6 in the accompanying Table of Contents) and the combining and 
individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules (identified as Exhibits 
A-1 through G-3 in the accompanying Table of Contents) of the Maryland-National Capital 
Park and Planning Commission (the "Commission"), as of and for the year then ended June 
30, 1999. These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the 
Commission's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements and schedules based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gavernment Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. These standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and 
schedules are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and schedules. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of the Maryland-National Capital Park and 
Planning Commission as of June 30, 1999, and the results of its operations and cash flows of 
its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the combining and individual fund and account 
group financial statements and schedules referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of each of the individual funds and account groups of the 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission as of June 30, 1999, and the 
results of operations of such funds and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the 
year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Gavernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated 
September 7, 1999, on our consideration of the Commission's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of law, regulations, 
contracts and grants. 

As explained in Note 2 to the general purpose financial statements, the Commission changed 
its method of accounting for the Deferred Compensation fund. 

Vienna, Virginia 
September 7, 1999 

~Clii~LLP 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBIT I 
Combined B&lance Sheet• ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT ORO UPS 

June 30, I 999 

Proprietary Fiduciary Accowt Total, 
Governmental Fund '.!ll!!! Fund'.!ll!!! Fund:!ll!!! OrouE!! (MEMORANDUM ONLY} 

Ttult and Clfflenl Oenenl 

Debt Capital lntmw Agency fixed Lo113·Term June 30, June 30, 
Oenenl Snvice 

ASStTS AND OTHER DEBITS 
~ EnteT1fflN Snvice Funds Anett Obligation, 1999 1998 

Equity in Pooled Cuh and lnveetmentl S 65,435,725 s - S 26,335.222 s 18,294,271 S 32,804,200 S 24,868,317 s s - s 167,737,735 s 168,755,190 
Cuh and Mul:etable Securitiee 584,794,423 584,794,423 534,340,078 
Receivablet • Tun 3,841,000 3,841,000 3,305,000 
Receiwblet · other 221,789 908,077 56,173 40,174 2,081,373 3,307,586 3,748,975 
Due fi:om oth..- Funds 2,119,078 
Due fi:om oth..- Oovemmentl 1,606,622 9,193,919 31,100 10,831,641 6,735,592 
Invcntorin., at Cott 1,176,273 1,176,273 1,240,913 
Dcpocill and other ----1.fil.. 121~7 142,136 267 758 67JS1 

Total Cumnt - 71,108,791 36,437,218 19,$26,717 32,997,441 611,886,249 771,956,416 720,312,377 

Advancee to other Funcu 1,734,875 1,734,875 1,734,875 
Restricted Anett · 

Land Held for Transfer 38,912,405 38,912,405 39,724,420 
other 418,291 418,291 404,995 

F'aedAIHII 62,937,495 15,859,321 517,898,050 596,694,866 550,024,204 
Accumulated Deprfflation (13,351,154) (7,732,404) (21,083,558) (19,264,263) 
Amow,t Available in Debt Snvice Funds 274,780 
Ret0urcH to be Provided in Future Veen· 
Relimnent of Clfflenl Obliption Bondt I S6, 130,000 156,130,000 155,830,220 
Relimnent of Accru.d Liability for 

Compennted AbMr'lcet 9,488,000 9,488,000 8 708 000 
Total Anett and other Debits S 71,108.791 S - - -- -· S 36,437,218 S 69, tl3,0S8 s 41, 124,358 $ 652,951,820 S 517,898,050 s 1651618,000 s 1 S54 2Sl 29S S t,4S717491608 

LIABILITIES, l!:QUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 
Llabiliti .. , 

Cwm,t Portion of Revenue Bonds P.y,.ble s s ... s s 245,000 S s $ s s 245,000 S 265,000 
Current Portion of Revenue Notes P.y,.ble 190,000 190,000 
Cumnl Portion of NotH P.y,.bl• 123,72S 1,489,647 1,613,372 1,048,$64 
Accow,tt P.y,.blo 4,321,526 6,327,437 388,809 254,371 99,423,286 l 10,71S,429 120,786,IOS 
Accroed Llabilitin S,636,054 l,lOS,902 10,238,936 S7,0S9 17,037,9Sl lS,733,498 
Due to other Fund, 2,119,078 

Due to other Governments 498,815 3,664 502,S39 
Deporitt and Deferred Revenue 4,245,954 19,041 370,677 4,658,230 9,293,902 8,327,076 

Ma!Uttd Boncu and In-P.y,.ble 1S6J37 156J37 104 795 
Total Cumnt Liabilitiee 14,702,409 6,346,478 2,580,450 11,982,954 104,142,239 139,754,530 148,384,116 

Oenenl Obliption Bond, P.~ 156, 130,000 156,130,000 156,105,000 
Rovenue Bond, P.y,.blo • Net ofCIDnnt Portion 3,813,181 3,813,181 4,026,118 
Revonuo Nolff P.y,.blo • Net ofCunwnt Portion 9,410,000 9,410,000 3,600,000 

NolH Payable· Net ofCumnt Portion 4,042,295 4,042,295 2,983,264 
Advancea from other Fund, l,734,87S . 1,734,875 l,7H,875 

Accrued Liability for Compen,at.ed Abeencea 9,488,000 9,488,000 8,708,000 
Total LiabilitiH 14,702.409 6J46,478 l7J38,S06 16,025,249 104,142,239 16S,618,000 324J72,881 325,541J73 

Equity and other Credit.: 
Contnl,uted Capital 30,116,$36 525, 128 30,641,664 31,327,102 
lnvettrncnt in General F'ixed A.Nett 517,898,050 517,898,050 4U,270,6SS 
Retained E"'11inp (Deficit)· 
Rtterved for Contingency 17,718,878 17,718,878 13,195,981 
Uruuer,,ed 21,4S8,016 6,8SS,103 28,313,119 23,824,666 

Fund Bolancea • 
RHetVcd for Encumbrancet 8,326,917 17,110,783 25,437,700 38,280,639 
Reserved for Land Held for Transfer 40,647,280 40,647,280 41,459,295 

Reserved for Debt Snvice 274,780 
Reserved for Penaon Bcne6tt 453,350,152 453,350,152 427,426,605 

Unreeerved • 
Deoiplattd for Subeequent Y nn 33,463,002 12,919,951 54,812,149 101,255,108 68,858,009 

Uncleei8"ated 14,616,463 14 616 463 13,290,503 
Total Retained Eaminp/Fund Balanc• 561406J82 30,090,740 21 14S~Ol6 24,573~1 548,809,581 681J38,700 626,610,478 

Total Equity and other Credill 56,406J82 30,090,740 51,574J52 25,099,109 548,809,581 511,898,050 1,229,878,414 1,132,208,235 

Total LiabilitiH, Equity and other Credits $71,108.791 s ___ -_S36
1
437~18S 69,t 13,058 s 41 1124JS8 s 6S219511820 s Sl7189810SO s 165,618,000 S l 1SS412Sl 129S s t,457,749,608 

The notes to the financial rtaternentt an an integnl part of thi, rtatemenl 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT2 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balance& -ALL GOVBRNMBNTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Fiduciary Totals 

Fund (Memorandum Only) 

Governmental FWld Types Types Year Ended 

Debt Capital Expendable June 30, June 30, 

Genenll Service Projects Trust 1999 1998 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes s 1S9,244,7S8 $ 2,334,390 $ $ s 16l,S79,148 $ 1S8,809,071 

Intergovernmental 1,396,303 14,893,093 22,806 16,3 12,202 8,928,021 

Charges for Services 9,015,46S 4,22S,04l 13,240,506 12,186,690 

lnteTcst 3,823,814 2,425,614 930,032 7, 179,460 7,777,393 

Invcsbnent Earnings 3,844,706 3,844,706 

Contributions 4,414,008 4,414,008 

Misceltaneoua 439 779 2,281,853 1,025,809 3 747 441 1,885,940 

Total Revenues 173,920,119 2,334,390 19,600,560 14,462,402 210,317,471 189,587,115 

Expenditures: 

Current· 

General Government 10,930,626 10,930,626 10,594,574 

County Planning and Zoning 27,3S3,307 27,353,307 26,S27,773 

Parle Operation and Maintenance 87,941,231 87,941,231 80,801,735 

Recreation Programs 29,191,944 29,191,944 27,750,023 

Miscellaneous Expendable Trust FIDlds 6,434,695 6,434,695 4,885,626 

Capital Outlay - Land Acquisition and Development 44,367,346 44,367,346 26,904,607 

Debt Service • 

Principal Retirement 6,975,000 6,975,000 7,385,000 

Interest and Fiscal Charges 8,198,017 8,198,017 8,062,927 

Total Expenditures 155,417, 108 15,173,017 44,367,346 6,434,695 221,392,166 192,912,265 

Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures 18,503,011 (12,838,627) (24,766,786) 8,027,707 (I 1,074,695) (3,325,150) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds 7,000,000 7,000,000 21,000,000 

Proceeds of Refunding Bonds 21,000,000 21,000,000 7,325,000 

Retirement of Debt· Bond Anticipation Notca (21,000,000) (21,000,000) (7,605,178) 

Operating Transfers In 2,628,373 13,833, 148 4,106,484 1,331,301 21,899,306 24,296,695 

Operating Transfers Out (23,896,883) (1,269,301) (2,425,614) (463,525) {28,055,323) {28,383,230) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (21,268,510) 12,563,847 8,680,870 867 776 843,983 16,633,287 

Excess ofRevcnuca and Other Sourcca over 

(Wider) Expenditures and Other Uses (2,765,499) (274,780) (16,085,916) 8,895,483 (10,230,712) 13,308,137 

F\llld Balances, July l S9,171,881 274 780 46,l76,6S6 86,563,946 192, 187,263 148,85S,089 

Fund Balances, June 30 s 56,406,382 $ $ 30,090,740 $ 9S,459,429 s 181,956,55 1 $ 162,163,226 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-OAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual. GENERAL FUND 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Budget Actual 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes s 154,754,830 s 159,244,758 

Intergovernmental 1,632,470 1,396,303 

Charges for Services 5,923,980 6,415,526 

Rentals and Concessions 2,887,825 2,599,939 

Interest 3,340,500 3,823,814 
Miscellaneous 207,SlO 439,779 

Total Revenues 168,747,llS 173,920,119 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 

Current-

General Govenunent ll,2ll,3S9 11,118,530 

County Planning and Zoning 27,961,339 27,183,263 

Park Operation and Maintenance 90,159,239 84,441,957 

Recreation Programs 30,156,253 28,540,546 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 159,488,190 l S 1,284,296 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 

Expenditures/Encumbrances 9,2S8,92S 22,635,823 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Operating Transfers In 2,000,000 2,628,373 

Operating Transfers Out (21,01S,Sl7) (23,896,883) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (19,0 l 5,517) (21,268,SlO) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 

over (under) Expenditures/Encumbrances 

and Other Uses - Budget Basis s (9,756,592) 1,367,313 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, July 1 46,712,152 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, June 30 s 48,079,465 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable 2 

s 4,489,928 

(236,167) 

491,546 

(287,886) 

483,314 

232,.269 

S,173,004 

92,829 

778,076 

5,717,282 

1,615,707 

8,203,894 

13,376,898 

628,373 

(2,881,366) 

(2,252,993) 

s 11,123,905 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT 4 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 

Retained Earnings/Fund Balances -ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Totals 

(Memorandum Only) 

Proerieta!}'. Fund T~s Year Ended 

internal June 30, June 30, 

Ente!:Erise Service 1999 1998 

Operating Revenues: 

Sales $ 2,731,906 $ $ 2,731,906 $ 2,717,049 

Charges for Services 10,216,444 32,321,795 42,538,239 38,315,044 

Rentals and Concessions 3,514,365 3,514,365 3,493,703 

Miscellaneous 107,800 107,800 167 486 

Total Operating Revenues 16,462,715 32,429,595 48,892,310 44,693,282 

Operating Expenses: 

Cost of Goods Sold 1,541 ,300 1,541,300 1,722,812 

Personal Services 7,892,110 9,652,353 17,544,463 16,627,252 

Supplies and Materials 2,140,802 186,517 2,327,319 2,533,260 

Other Services and Charges 3,247,947 17,493,612 20,741 ,559 21,057,390 

Depreciation 1,655,342 1,562,543 3,217,885 4,370,712 

Administrative Expenses 1,516,909 1,516,909 1,585,531 

Total Operating Expenses 17,994,410 28,895,025 46,889,435 47,896,957 

Operating Income (Loss) (l ,53J.695) 3,534,570 2,002,875 (3,203,675) 

Nonoperating Revenues 629,715 1,460,548 2,090,263 1,804,756 

Nonoperating Expenses (592,043) (258,068) (850,111) (816,655) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net 37 672 1,202,480 1,240, 152 988,101 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (1,494,023) 4 ,737,050 3,243,027 (2,215,574) 

Operating Transfers in 5,156,017 1,000,000 6, 156,017 4,086,535 

Operating Transfers Out (621,120) (621, 120) 

Total Operating Transfers 4,534,897 1,000,000 5,534,897 4,086,535 

Net Income (Loss) 3,040,874 5,737,050 8,777,924 1,870,961 

Add Depreciation Charge to Contributed Capital 228,566 4 860 233,426 228,566 

Net increase (Decrease) in Retained Earnings/ 

Fund Balances 3,269,440 5,741,910 9,011,350 2,099,527 

Retained Earnings/Fund Balances, July 1 18, 188,576 18,832,071 37,020,647 34,921,120 

Retained Earnings/Fund Balances, June 30 $ 21,458,016 $ 24,573,981 $ 46,031,997 $ 37,020,647 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows - ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 
EXHIBIT 5 

For 1he Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from 01her Funds 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from County Government 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories, at Cost 
(Increase) Decrease in Deposits and Other 
increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave 
Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Estimate of Incurred but Unreported Claims 
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 
Increase (Decrease) in Re~enue Collected in Advance 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating Transfers In from Other Funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition of Fixed Assets 
Principal Paid on Notes Payable 
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds 
Interest Paid 
Payment of Refunded Revenues Bonds 
Write-Off of Revenue Bonds Unamortized Charge 
Proceeds from Financing 
Proceeds from Financing- Revenue Bonds - net 
Proceeds from Financing - Revenue Notes 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Investments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Proprietary Fund TYJ>CS 

Enterprise 

$ (1 ,531,695) $ 

1,655,342 

63,0% 

64,640 

(139,256) 

38,930 
126,149 
53,202 

18,054 
348,462 

5,156,017 
5,156,017 

(4,218,913) 
(118,398) 
(265,000) 
(592,043) 

32,063 

6,000,000 

837,709 

629,715 
629,715 

6,971,903 

11,322,368 
$ 18,294,271 $ 
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Internal 
Service 

3,534,570 

1,562,543 

(36,837) 
1,452, 587 

89, 167 

(102,355) 
(50,365) 
684,106 
49, 184 

(81,922) 

(155,488) 
(1,452,587) 

5,492,603 

1,000,000 
1,000,000 

(1,296,075) 
(1,057,764) 

(258,068) 

2,800,000 

188,093 

1,460,548 
1,460,548 

8,141,244 

24,662,956 
32,804,200 

$ 

$ 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

1999 

2,002,875 $ 

3,217,885 

26,259 
1,452, 587 

89,167 
64,640 

(102,355) 
(189,621) 
684, 106 

88,114 
44,227 
53,202 

(155,488) 
(1,452,587) 

18,054 
5,841,065 

6,156,017 
6, 156,017 

(5, 514,988) 
( 1,176,162) 

(265,000) 
(850,1 11) 

32,063 
2,800,000 

6,000,000 

1,025,802 

2,090,263 
2,090,263 

15,113, 147 

35,985,324 
51,098,471 $ 

June 30, 
1998 

(3,203,675) 

4,370,712 

(32,912) 
(765,213) 

36,589 
(32,465) 

1,283,662 
(104,885) 
448,663 
478,881 
(41,862) 
11,045 

(33,430) 
765,213 

42,788 
3,223, 11 1 

4,086,535 
4,086,535 

(3,568,708) 
(1 ,225,403) 

(160,000) 
(816,655) 

(4,305,000) 

4,291,1 18 
3,600,000 

(2, I 84,648) 

1,804,756 
1,804,756 

6,929,754 

29,055,570 
35,985,324 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

ASSETS 

Statement of Plan Net Assets - PENSION TRUST FUND 

As of June 30, 1999 and 1998 

Cash and Short T crm Investments 

Receivables: 
Plan Members 
Interest Receivable 

Total Receivables 

Investments at Fair Value: 
U.S. Government Obligations 
Domcatic Corporate Bonds 
Common Stock 
Real Estate 

Total Investments 

Deposits and Other 

Total Assets 

LIABll.ITIES 

Investment Payable and Other 

NET ASSETS HELO IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS 
(A Schedule ofFunding Progress is 
presented in Note 11) 

s 

s 

Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets - PENSION TRUST FUND 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 1999 and 1998 

ADDmONS: 

Contributions: 
Employer s 
Plan Member 

Total Contributions 

Investment Income: 
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments 
Interest 
Dividends 
Real Estate Operating Income, Net 

Less: Investment Expense 
Net Investment Income 
Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Benefit Payments 
Refunds of Contributions 
Administrative Expenses 

Total Deductions 

Net Increase for the Year 
in Plan Net Assets 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS 
July 1 
June 30 s 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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June 30, 
1999 

102,851,740 s 

148,882 
1,910,808 
2,059,690 

117,144,653 
75,866,877 

251,467,841 
161 678 

444,641,049 

140,386 

549,692,865 

96,342,713 

453,350, I 52 s 

2,971,972 s 
2,868,518 
5,840,490 

18,516,906 
13,580,212 
2,687,249 

34,784,367 
{4, 131,860) 
30,652,507 
36,492,997 

9,511,899 
295,832 
761 719 

10,569,450 

25,923,547 

427,426,605 
453,350,152 s 

EXHIBIT 6 

June 30, 
1998 

71 695,647 

6,159 
2,243,365 
2,249,524 

116,176,931 
84,599,053 

231,387,131 
457 279 

432,620,394 

41,367 

506,606,932 

79, 180,327 

427,426,605 

5,337,250 
2,891,668 
8,228,918 

47,460,573 
13,140,226 
2,829,050 
3 089 134 

66,518,983 
p,893,859) 
62,625,124 
70,854,042 

8,905,020 
414,487 
744 396 

10,063,903 

60,790,139 

366,636,466 
427,426,605 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 1999 

(1) - THE COMMISSION AND ITS SERVICES 

(A) Backeround 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the "Commission") is a body corporate of the 
State of Maryland established by the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The Commission is a bi-county 
agency. It is empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional system of parks in the defined 
Metropolitan District in Montgomery and Prince George's Counties and to prepare and administer a general 
plan for the physical development of a defined Regional District for the two Counties. The Commission also 
conducts the recreation program for Prince George's County. The express powers of the Commission are 
provided in Article 28 of the Annotated Code of Maryland. As a body corporate of the State of Maryland, the 
Commission is not generally subject to local county legislation such as the Tax Reform Initiative by 
Marylanders ("TRIM") Prince George's County Charter Amendment originally enacted in November 1978. 

The major source of funding for the Commission's primary services are five property taxes levied on an 
individual County basis: Montgomery County administration tax - general administration and planning; 
Montgomery County park tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds; 
Prince George's County administration tax - general administration and planning; Prince George's County park 
tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds; and the Prince George's 
County recreation tax for the recreation program. Five separate accounts are maintained within the General 
Fund to account for the Commission's primary services. Revenues and expenditures that can be specifically 
identified with a County are recorded in the appropriate account of that County and those that apply to both 
Counties are allocated to the appropriate accounts. Other funds and accounts are maintained on a 
Commission-wide or on a separate County basis as necessary and appropriate. 

The provisions of Sections 2-113 and 7-107 of Article 28 of the Annotated Code of Maryland require that the 
Commission publish an annual financial report and that it be certified by independent certified public 
accountants. The General Purpose Financial Statements have been presented on a Commission-wide basis to 
meet the financial reporting needs of the Commission and the requirements of Maryland law. 

(B) Principles Used in Determinin&: the Scope of Entity for Financial 
Reportina= Purposes 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), these financial statements present the 
government and its blended component unit, an entity for which the government is considered to be 
financially accountable. A blended component unit, although a legally separate entity, is, in substance, 
part of the government's operations and therefore data from this unit are combined with data of the 
primary government. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Employees' Retirement System are 
included as a trust fund in the accompanying financial statements and the System is the onl y such 
component unit of the Commission. 

The applicability to the Commission of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) criteria 
on consolidation has also been carefully reviewed by Montgomery and Prince George's Counties' fi nancial 
staff. As a result of their review, they have determined that the Commission represents a joint venture of 
Montgomery County and Prince George's County, reportable in their respective financial statements as 
of June 30, 1999. The financial activities of the Commission's Employees' Retirement System, Employees' 
Deferred Compensation Expendable Trust Fund, and the Maryland State Retirement System (MSRS) are 
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not reported by either County. Therefore, the Commission prepares a Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR). The financial data of the Commission pertinent to Montgomery County and Prince 
George's County, excluding the Commission's Employees' Retirement System, the Employees' Deferred 
Compensation Expendable Trust Fund, and the MSRS Agency Fund are set forth on a County basis in 
Note 19. 

(2) - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the Commission conform to GAAP, applicable to governmental units. 

The following is a summary of the more significant policies. 

(A) Basis of Presentation - Fund Accountine 

The accounts of the Commission are organized on the basis of Funds and Account Groups, each of which 
is considered a separate accounting entity. The financial position and operations of each Fund are 
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise the Fund's assets, liabilities, 
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated 
to, and accounted for, in individual Funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be expended and 
the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various Funds are summarized by type, by 
County, and for the Commission in total in the financial statements within this report. 

The following Funds and Account Groups are used by the Commission. 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

General Fund -The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission. It is used to account 
for the tax revenues and other revenues which fund the. Commission's general operations and to account 
for all other financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another Fund. 

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and 
the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

Capital Proiects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for 
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). 

PROPRIEI' ARY FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in 
a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the Commission is that the costs 
(operating expenses, before depreciation, and the payments for facility and equipment additions) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user charges or where the Commission has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, 
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability or other purposes. A single Enterprise Fund is maintained for the numerous 
enterprise operations of each County. Relevant segment data for the Enterprise Funds are presented in 
Note 13. Supplemental information as requested by the Commissioners appears in Table 14. 

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of certain goods or 
services provided by one department to other departments of the Commission on a cost-reimbursement 
basis. 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Commission in a trustee capacity or as 
an agent for employees, individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. 
These include Expendable Trust, Pension Trust, and Agency Funds. Pension Trust Funds are accounted 
for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds since capital maintenance is critical. Expendable 
Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds. Agency Funds are 
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 

The Commission's Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, the Employees' Deferred 
Compensation Expendable Trust Fund, and the MSRS are not maintained on a separate County basis. 

ACCOUNT GROUPS 

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This Account Group is used to account for all fixed assets of the 
Commission, other than those accounted for in the proprietary and fiduciary funds. 

General Lone-Term Oblieations Account Group - This Account Group is used to account for all 
long-term obligations of the Commission, except obligations accounted for in the proprietary and fiduciary 
funds. 

(B) Basis or Accountine 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 
All governmental funds and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a g_irrent financial resources 
!!W'Surement focus.. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are · 
included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these Funds present increases (i.e., revenues and 
other financing sources) and dP,Creases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation 
of these Funds m included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into 
contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-:type operating statements present 
increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets. 

The governmental, expendable trust and agency funds are maintained on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under this method of accounting, revenues are recorded in the accounting period in which 
they become both available and measurable. Revenues from taxes are recognized when they have been 
levied, are due on or before June 30 and collection is expected within 30 days thereafter. Proceeds from 
the sale of general obligation bonds/notes are recorded as "Other Financing Sources." All other revenue 
sources are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures are generally recorded as the 
liabilities are incurred. The exceptions to this general rule are that principal and interest on general 
long-term debt are considered expenditures when due, and accumulated unpaid annual and compensatory 
leave not expected to be taken within 60 days after the year-end is reported in the General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group. 

The proprietary funds are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred . The accounts of the Employees' 
Retirement System Pension Trust Fund are also maintained 9n the accrual basis. 
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GASB Statement 20 allows governments to choose not to implement, in proprietary fund types, 
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989 
(provided that this is applied on a consistent basis) or to continue to follow F ASB standards for these fund 
types. The Commission has elected to implement FASB pronouncements issued after that date for any 
proprietary fund type activity of the Primary Government that are not in conflict with or contradict GASB 
guidance. 

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement 34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion 
and Analysis for State and Local Governments." This statement will have significant impact on the 
financial reporting presentation of the Commission's CAFR with the inclusion of the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis Section and the reformatting of the basic financial statements. The Commission 
will be determining the impact of this statement on the financial statements in fiscal year 2000. The 
Commission will be implementing this statement in fiscal year 2002. 

(C) Buda=ets and Buda=etary Accountina= 

The following procedures are used in establishing the annual budget. 

o On or before January 15, the Commission submits to the County Executive of each County 
a proposed annual budget for the respective accounts of the General Fund (including park 
debt service), and a budget plan for the respective Enterprise Funds and Internal Service 
Funds. The Capital Projects Funds' budgets and six-year expenditure plans are submitted 
to the County Executive of Prince George's County prior to each November 1 and to the 
County Executive of Montgomery County prior to November 1 of each odd-numbered year. 
These budgets and plans include proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

o The budgets and plans are transmitted by the County Executive with recommendations to 
the respective County Council. The County Councils conduct public hearings on the 
budgets and plans, and the budgets and plans are legally adopted prior to July 1. 

o The legal level of budgetary control is the department or function for the Administration 
Accounts and the Account level for the Montgomery County Park Account, Prince George's 
County Park Account, and Prince George's County Recreation Account. The Commission's 
expenditures may not exceed the total approved budget for each of the General Fund 
Accounts without prior approval by the respective County Council, except where grant 
funds received with the knowledge and approval of the respective County constitute an 
automatic budget amendment, thereby increasing the appropriations. Management is 
authorized to transfer budget appropriations of up to 10% within the respective General 
Fund Accounts. 

o General Fund unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. Capital project 
appropriations do not lapse until the project is completed. The budget plans for the 
proprietary funds serve as a guide to the Commission and not as legally binding limitations. 

o During fiscal year 1999 supplemental appropriations were approved that increased the 
General Fund and Capital Projects Funds by $415,000 and $3,234,000, respectively. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the General Fund. The 
budget for the General Fund is adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP except that encumbrances are 
treated as expenditures. 
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The actual expenditures in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual are presented on a basis 
consistent with The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Adopted Annual Budget. 
All expenditures made during 1999 were within the legal limitations pertinent to the Commission. 

(D) Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded when initiated, is employed in the governmental funds for budgetary 
reporting purposes. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance 
since they do not constitute expenditures or. liabilities under GAAP. 

(E) Pooled Cash and Investments 

The cash and investments of all Funds are combined into a common pool to maintain investment flexibility 
and maximize earnings. The Commission's Finance Department manages the pool. Investment earnings 
are allocated to participating Funds based upon their average monthly equity in pooled cash balances. 
Investments, except those of the Pension Trust and the Agency Funds, are stated at cost plus accrued 
interest, adjusted for amortization of premiums and discounts, which approximates fair value. Pension 
Trust and Agency Fund investments are stated at fair value. 

(F) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market for proprietary funds. 

(G) Advances to Other Funds 

Long-term interfund advances at June 30, 1999, consist of $1,734,875 of land acquired by the Prince 
George's County Advance Land Acquisition Fund that is being used for park purposes in the Enterprise 
Fund. The advances are recorded as noncurrent receivables/payables in the respective Funds. 

(II) General Fixed Assets 

General fixed assets have been acquired primarily for parks and recreational facilities. Assets purchased 
or constructed are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized at cost in the 
General Fixed Assets Account Group, or in the proprietary funds, as appropriate. Donated assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the time received. Normal repair and maintenance costs are 
expensed when incurred. No depreciation of general fixed assets has been recorded. See Note 9. 

(I) Property, Plant and Eguipment - Proprietary Funds 

Property, plant and equipment purchased by the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds are stated at cost. 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method with useful lives of 10 to 40 years for buildings 
and improvements and 5 to 15 years for equipment. 

(J) Employee Leave and Group Insurance 

Commission employees earn annual leave and sick leave in varying amounts, and are granted three days 
personal leave annually. Annual leave is recorded as an expenditure when earned. Some employees may 
also earn compensatory lea-..:e in lieu of overtime pay. The accumulated unpaid annual and compensatory 
leave expected to be taken within 60 days after the year end has been expensed in the General Fund. The 
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Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund receives revenue from the General Fund for leave earned by 
employees. When·leave is taken, it is recorded as an expense in the Employee Benefits Internal Service 
Fund. The liability for leave expected to be taken within 60 days after year end is recorded in the 
Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund. The accumulated leave balances in which employees have 
vested rights, but which are not expected to be used within 60 days after year-end, have been recorded in 
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. See Note 18. 

Group insurance costs are recorded as expenditures in the General Fund and as revenue in the Employee 
Benefits Internal Service Fund. Payments for group insurance premiums are recorded as expenses in the 
Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund. 

(K) Def erred Compensation Plans 

The Commission offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. One plan, available to all career Commission employees, permits them to 
defer a portion of their salary to future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees 
until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The Commission also offers a separate 
deferred compensation plan to its officers and to the staff of the Employees' Retirement System. 

It is the opinion of the Commission's General Counsel that the Commission will incur no liability for 
losses under the plans, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent 
investor. 

In October 1997, the GASB issued Statement 32, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans," which establishes accounting and financial 
reporting standards for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 deferred compensation plans. GASB Statement 
32 incorporates the amendment to the Internal Revenue Code Section .457 which requires that all assets 
and income of Section 457 deferred compensation plans be held in a trust for the exclusive benefit of 
participants and their beneficiaries. During fiscal year 1999, the Commission established a trust for the 
protection of the participants and the preservation of their assets under the Deferred Compensation Plan. 
The assets will not be diverted for any other purpose. Effective July 1, 1998, the Deferred Compensation 
Plan was moved from being an Agency Fund to an Expendable Trust Fund. The cumulative effect of this 
change in accounting principle has been reported as a restatement of the beginning fund balance of 
$30,024,037 in the Expendable Trust Funds. 

(L) Reserves 

Fund balances in the governmental funds are reserved for encumbrances, debt service and restricted assets 
to indicate the amounts not available for other expenditures. Retained earnings in the Employee Benefits 
and Risk Management Internal Service Funds are reserved to pay future claims. 

(M) Comparative Data/Total Columns 

Comparative total data for 1998 ~ave been presented in the accompanying financial statements to provide 
an understanding of changes in the Commission's financial position and operations. However, complete 
comparative data have not been presented since their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex 
and difficult to read. Certain reclassifications have been made to 1998 to be consistent with 1999 
presentations. 

Total columns (memorandum only) in the General Purpose Financial Statements are presented to facilitate 
financial analysis and are not intended to present financial information in· conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles or on a consolidated basis. 
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(N) Statement or Cash Flows 

The Commission uses cash management pools, which allow the proprietary funds to withdraw funds at any 
time without prior notice or penalty. For Statement of Cash Flow purposes, the Commission has defined 
cash equivalents as Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments for proprietary funds. During fiscal year 1999 
the noncash financing activity was related to the Montgomery County Enterprise Little Bennett Golf 
Facilities Revenue Bond amortization. 

(3) - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The Commission's deposits and investments as of June 30, 1999, totaled $752,532,158, presented in the 
combined balance sheet as the sum of "Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments"and "Cash and Marketable 
Securities," of which $746,543,709 was held and managed in three separate pools: the Commission's pool 
of deposits and investments, the Pension Trust Fund investments, and the Deferred Compensation Fund. 
The remaining balance is composed of $2,500,869 Cash Reserved for Debt Service, $3,268,860 Cash 
Reserved for Construction, and $218,720 cash at various Commission facilities. The Commission's pool 
is available to all Funds, except for the Pension Trust Fund and the Deferred Compensation Fund. The 
following is a schedule of total cash and investments. 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments: 
Cash in Banks 
Investments 
Reserved for Debt Service 
Reserved for Construction 
Other Cash 

Total Equity in Pooled Cash 
and Investments 

Cash and Marketable Securities 

Total Cash and Investments 

Conmission 

$ (214,997) $ 
161,964,283 

2,5DD,869 
3,268,860 

218.720 

Deferred 
Coq>ensation 

Pension 
Trust 
Fund Fund Total 

- - - $ $ (214,997) 
161,964,283 

2,5D0,869 
3,268,860 

218.720 

167.737.735 167. 737. 735 

547.492.789 37.301.634 584.794.423 

$167.737.735 $547.492.789 $37,301.634 $752.532.158 

(A) Commission's Cash and Investments 

Cash in Bank - At year-end, the carrying amount of deposits was an overdraft of $214,997 and the bank 
balance was $2,145,548. Of the bank balance, $355,000 was covered by Federal depository insurance and 
the remainder was collateralized by $2,803,054 of securities held by a member of the Federal Reserve 
banking system in the name of the Commission and the Commission's bank. 

The Commission requires collateral for the pooled cash and investments of ten or more days duration to 
be held in the Commission's name by the trust department of a bank other than the pledging bank. The 
Commission's policy was complied with throughout the year ended June 30, 1999. 

Cash Reserved for Debt Service - At year-end, the Commission had $2,500,869 held in reserve to pay 
debt service for Little Bennett Golf Course Revenue Bonds, and for various equipment note financings. 

Cash Reserved for Construction - At year-end, the Commission had $3,268,860 held in reserve to pay 
construction costs for the Wheaton Ice Rink. 
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Investments - The Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the Commission to invest in obi igations fo r 
which the United States has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest, 
obligations that are issued by a Federal agency, repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances , commercial 
paper, money market mutual funds, the State Treasurer's investment pool, certificates of deposits and 
municipal bonds and notes. 

Statutes require that investments comply with the guidelines relative to investment grade and/or ratings 
and Secur ities and Exchange Commission registrations where applicable. Also, statutes require that 
securities underlying repurchase agreements have a market value of at least 102 % of the cost of the 
investment. If during the year, the market value of securities under I ying such investments falls below this 
required level, additional collateral is pledged or other collateral in the amount of the required level is 
substituted. Collateral shall be maintained in excess of FDIC insurance coverage for all Commission bank 
accounts, certificates of deposits and time deposits. All collateral must meet statutory requirements and 
is held in the Commission's name by a third-party custodian. 

There were no unusual variations in the mix or volume of the investment po_rtfolio during the fiscal year. 
The Commission was in compliance with all applicable investment statutes throughout the fi scal year. 

(B) Pension Trust Fund and Deferred Compensation Investments 

Statutes do not restrict the investment activity of these two Funds. 

(C) Cate,ories of Investments 

Investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the Commission at year 
end. Category 1 includes investment securities that are insured, registered, or held by the Commission 
or its agent in the Commission 's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investment 
securities held by the financial institution's trust department or agent in the Commission's name. Category 
3 includes uninsured and unregistered investment securities held by the counterparty or its trust department 
or agent but not in the Commission 's name. The Commission did not hold Category 3 investments during 
the year ended June 30, 1999, and did not hold Category 2 or 3 investments at year-end. The Commission 
does not have the authority to enter into reverse repurchase agreements and did not do so during the year 
ended June 30, 1999. Insurance contracts, real estate, and mutual funds are not subject to categorization. 

The Commission 's investments at June 30, 1999 were as follows: 

Conmission Investments : 
Federal Farm Credit Banks 
Certificate of Deposit 
U.S. Treasury 
Bankers• Acceptances 
Conmercial Paper 
Federal National Mortgage Association 
Federal Home Loan Bank 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporat ion 
Repurchase Agreements 
Total Investments 
Total Pooled Investments Held in 

Mutual Funds 
Total Pension Trust Fund 
Total Deferred Compensation 

Expendable Trust Fund 
Conmission Total 

Category 1 

$ 71,180,403 
600,000 
703,388 

23,419,894 
6,160, 016 

10,314,835 
2,458,975 

16, 506,914 
30,745 .400 

162,089.825 

$162. 089 .825 
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Carrying 
Amount 

$ 71,180,403 
600,000 
703,388 

23,419,894 
6,160,016 

10,314,835 
2,458,975 

16,506,914 
30,745.400 

162,089 ,825 

5,644,187 
547,492,789 

37,301,634 
$752,528 .435 

Market 
Va lue 

$71,180,403 
600,000 
703,388 

23,419,894 
6,160 , 016 

10,314,835 
2,458,975 

16 ,506,914 
30,745,400 

162,089,825 

5,644,187 
547,492 , 789 

37 ,301,634 
$752 . 528.435 



(4)-PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes are levied and collected for the special taxing districts of the Commission by Montgomery 
and Prince George's County Governments, as appropriate. Real property taxes are levied on July 1 each 
year and become delinquent on October 1, at which time interest and penalties commence. Effective July 
1, 1996, there is an exception for those homeowners living in their properties who have requested a 
semiannual payment plan. Semiannual taxpayers must pay one-half of the annual taxes by September 30 
and the remaining one-half plus a service charge by January 31 of the following year. Personal property 
and real property taxes levied for a fraction of a year are due when billed. Tax liens on real property are 
sold at public auction on the second Monday in June in Montgomery County and on the second Monday 
in May in Prince George's County for taxes remaining overdue since the preceding October 1. The 
Commission periodically reviews property tax assessments to ensure proper receipt of such taxes. From 
time to time, the Commission may determine that additional taxes are due or refunds are required. Only 
after such amounts are measurable will the Commission record the appropriate receivable or reserve for 
the entire amounts. 

Property taxes assessed in 1998 and prior that are estimated to be collectible have been recorded as a 
receivable in the accompanying 1999 financial statements with an offsetting equivalent amount included 
in deferred revenue. 

Repayment of the Commission 's park acquisition and development general obligation bonds is provided 
by a mandatory tax levied by each County on its respective Metropolitan District. Proceeds of the 
mandatory tax are recorded in the General Fund and transfers are made to the respective Park Debt Service 
Funds to pay interest and principal payments. 

The property tax revenues and rates of the Commission are not subject to any legislative limitations. 
However, such revenues are approved by the respective County Council when budgets are approved. 

County-wide taxes are levied in each County for the retirement of Advance Land Acquisition Bonds. Any 
variance from the tax proceeds and the debt service payments is transferred to/from the Advance Land 
Acquisition Expendable Trust Fund. 

(5) - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

The total "Due from Other Governments" at June 30, 1999, was $10,831,641 for the Commission 
($4,065,173 and $6,766,468 for Montgomery and ·Prince George's Counties, respectively). A summary 
of amounts due by source and nature of receivable is listed below. 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency $ 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Federal Highway Administration 
State of Maryland 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
General Capital Internal 

Fund Projects Service 
Accounts Funds Funds 

10,606 $ 
227,002 

--- $ 

27,549 
68,095 1,544,897 

683 . 791 1,487,683 15,550 Montgomery County 
Montgomery County Totals $ 989,494 $3,060.129 $ 15.550 
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U.S. Dept. Of Transportation 
U.S. Department of Justice 
U.S. Department of Comnerce 
St ate of Maryland 
Pr ince George' s COU"lty 
Montgomery COU"lty 
Prince George's COU"lty Totals 

Conmission Totals 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 
Genera l Capital Internal 

Fl.lld Projects Service 
AccOU"ltS Fl.llds Fl.llds 

s s 95,213 S 
123 

7,473 
10,375 6,038, 5n 

599,157 
15 ,550 

s 617,128 S6, 133 ,790 S 15 ,550 

$1,606,622 S9, 193 ,919 S 31 ,100 

(6) - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAY ABLES 

There were no individual interfund receivable or payable balances at June 30, 1999. 

(7) - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

The changes in the Commission's contributed capital accounts for its proprietary funds were as follows : 

Enter12rise Internal Service 
Prince 

Montgomery George's 
Capital Capital 

Montgomery Prince George's Egui~nt EQ.!:!i~nt 
Begiming Ba lance, 
Contr i buted Capital S4,876,936 S25, 920, 178 S525, 128 S4,860 

Contributions 479,402 
Less: Transfer of Assets 
Back to General Fixed Assets (931,414) 

Less: Depreciation Added Back (228,566) (4,860) 
Ending Balance, 
Contributed Capital S3 ,945 ,522 $26, 171 ,014 S525 , 128 $ ••• 

(8) - DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES AND DEFICIT RETAINED EARNINGS FOR 
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 

The Commission and respective County governments have designated $33,463,002 of budget basis fund 
balances in the General Fund at June 30, 1999, as restricted to fund fiscal year 2000 operations and 
provide reserves for contingencies. 

Aaninistration Account 
Park ACCOU"lt 
Recreation AccOU"lt 

Montgomery 
COU"lty 

$1,247,687 
2,598,676 

N/A 
S3 ,846,363 

Prince George's 
County 

S 1,534,162 
25 ,726,587 
2,355,890 

$29,616,639 

Total 

S 2,781 ,849 
28, 325,263 
2,355,890 

$33 , 463 , 002 

The amount of available fund balance as defined on a GAAP basis and on a non-GAAP budgetary basis 
is $14,616,463 ($1,175,052 and $13,441,411 for Montgomery and Prince George's County, respectively). 

There were no deficits in retained earnings for the year ended June 30, 1999. 
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( 9) - GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

A summary of changes in general fixed assets is set forth below ($000's). 

Balance Balance 
General Fixed Assets J~ 30, 1998 Additions Deductions Transfers J~ 30, 1999 

Montgomery Ccx.nty 
Land $111,294 S 7,707 s (621) s 621 $119,001 
Buildings and I~rovements 73,630 no 6,616 81,016 
Machinery and Equip1111ent 7,441 871 (160) 8,152 
Construction in Progress 11,834 2,953 ~) 8, 171 

Total General Fixed Assets $204,199 $12 ,301 s (781) ~ $216,340 

Prince George's Ccx.nty 
Land S 86,172 S 6,429 s (881) s S 91,720 
Buildings and I~rovements 137,936 902 (479) 8,044 146,403 
Machinery and Equipment 20,240 2,513 (444) 22,309 
Construction in Pr09ress 2s,n3 23,447 (8,044) 41,126 

Total General Fixed Assets $270 ,071 S33,291 S (1,804) s $301,558 
Conmission-wide Totals $474,270 S45,592 S (2,585) $621 $517,898 

The Commission is committed to $17,110,783 for construction contracts for work to be performed in 
subsequent years. 

A summary of proprietary fund type fixed assets at June 30, 1999 follows. 

Montgomery County 
Land 
Buildings 
I111>rovements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Construction in Progress 

Total 
Less-Acc1mJlated Depreciation 

Net 

Prince George's Ccx.nty 
Land 
Buildings 
I~rovements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 

Total 
Less-AcclmJlated Depreciation 

Net 

Total Conmission Fixed Assets 
Less-Acc1mJlated Depreciation 

Net 
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Enterprise 

S 7,791,328 
7,885,468 
1,647,715 
3,523,423 
6,359,896 

27,207,830 
(5,020,711) 

S 22,187,119 

$ 5,684,643 
19,825,666 
7,630,612 
2,588,744 

3S,n9,665 
(8,330,443) 

S 27,399,222 

S 62,937,495 
(13 ,351,154) 

$49,586,341 

s 

Internal 
Service 

102,469 

12,288,108 

12,390,Sn 
(7, 122,085) 

S 5,268,492 

$ 748,497 
2,649,865 

70,382 
3,468,744 

(610,319) 
s 2,858,425 

S 15,859,321 
(7,732,404) 

$ 8,126,917 



(10) - WNG-TERM DEBT 

(A) General L-One-Term Oblieation Account Group 

The Commission is authorized to issue general obligation bonds for the acquisition of park land and the 
development of parks, designated as Park Acquisition and Development Bonds ("Park Bonds"); to provide 
resources for advance land acquisition for highways, schools and other public purposes, designated as 
Advance Land Acquisition Bonds (" Advance Land Bonds"); and to refund both Park and Advance Land 
Bonds. The general obligation bonds are issued on the full faith and credit of the Commission and the 
County for which the bonds are issued. 

Mandatory taxes of 9 cents per $100 of assessed valuation in Montgomery County and 10 cents per $100 
of assessed valuation in Prince George's County are required by Article 28 of the Annotated Code of 
Maryland to be levied in the Metropolitan District in the respective Counties for the payment of Park Bond 
debt service. In 1999, the actual debt service expenditures per $100 of assessed valuation for Park Bonds 
approximated 1.1 cents in Montgomery County and 7. I cents in Prince George's County. The remainder 
of the proceeds of the mandatory taxes was used for operating and maintaining the park system of the 
respective Counties. 

The Advance Land Bonds are payable from limited annual ad valorem property taxes which are levied by 
the respective County on all property assessed for the purpose of County taxation. 

New Debt Issue - On July 30, 1998, the Commission sold $7,000,000 Montgomery County Park 
Acquisition and Development Bonds, Series U-2, which mature over the period through August 1, 2018, 
at a true interest cost of 4.53 % . 

Refundine - On December 3, 1998, the Commission sold $21,000,000 Prince George's County Park 
Acquisition and Development Refunding Taxable Bonds, Series X-2, with a maturity date of August 1, 
2002, and a fixed interest rate of 5%, the proceeds of which were used to retire the Prince George's 
County Park Acquisition and Development Variable Rate Bond Anticipation Notes (BANS), Series V-2. 
This sale was undertaken to replace tax exempt debt with taxable debt to enable the Commission to expand 
the use of the Prince George's County Sports and Learning Complex. The Commission pays interest only 
on the Prince George's County Park Acquisition and Development Refunding Taxable Bonds and intends 
to refinance the entire $21,000,000 with long-term bonds on or before August 1, 2002. The BANS were 
remarketed daily and interest rates varied from 1.70% to 5.00% during fiscal year 1999. 

(B) Proprietary Funds 

The Commission is authorized to issue revenue bonds and notes to finance the cost of revenue producing 
facilities and to refund outstanding bonds. The revenue bonds and notes are not general obligations of the 
Commission or County for which they are issued and are payable solely from revenues generated from 
revenue producing facilities. 

New Issue- On April 27, 1999, the Commission issued a $6,000,000 Cabin John Regional Park Ice Rink 
1999 Revenue Note (Note) at an interest rate of 5.16% with a fifteen year term to finance the 
reconstruction and expansion of the existing ice rink in Cabin John Regional Park. The Note matures over 
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the period through November 1, 2013. The Note is secured by a $600,000 Certificate of Deposit until the 
facility is completed, and a pledge of security interest in the revenues of the facility until the Note is 
repaid. 

Restricted investments related to the Commission's Montgomery County revenue notes and bonds are as 
follows: 

Little Bemett Wheaton Cabin John 
Golf Course Ice Rink Ice Rink 

Debt Service Reserve FU'ld $512,052 $ $600,000 
Construction FU'ld 3,268,860 

Total $512,052 $3,268,860 $600,000 

The Commission is in compliance with all significant restrictive covenants related to revenue bonds and 
notes. 

(C) Prior Period Def easance or Debt 

In prior years, the Commission def eased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the proceeds 
of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for future debt service payments on the old debt. 
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased debt are not included in the 
Commission's financial statements. As of June 30, 1999, $10,750,000 of Montgomery County and 
$37,435,000 of Prince George's County general obligation bonds, and $4, 130,000 of Montgomery County 
revenue bonds are considered to be def eased. 

(D) Outstandin2 Debt 

General obligation bonds and notes, revenue bonds, net of the $416,819 deferred amount on the Little 
Bennett Golf Facilities Refunding Bond, and revenue notes payable at June 30, 1999, consist of the 
following individual issues (OOO's): 

Effective Final FY 2000 Outstanding 
Interest Rate Maturity Serial Original at 

Series at Date of Sale Dated Date Pa~nt Issue June 30, 1999 
Montgomerl Col.l"ltl 
Park Acquisition and 
Development Bonds 
1990 Advance Refl.nding, E-2 6.7983 06-01-90 07-01-03 s 590 S 6,675 s 2,865 
Series H-2 6. 7983 06-01-90 07-01-10 300 7,500 600 
Series IC-2 5.9212 05-01-92 07-01-12 250 6,000 4,500 
Series N-2 4. 7561 12-01-93 07-01-14 275 5,500 4,400 
Series Q-2 6.3609 11-15-94 11-01-14 150 5,000 1,150 
Series R-2 Advance Refunding 4.8972 12-01-95 07-01-14 85 8,700 8,470 
Series U-2 4.5346 07-30-98 08-01-18 210 7,000 7,000 

1,860 46,375 28,985 
Advance Land Acquisition 

Bonds of 1990 6.7983 06-01-90 07-01-10 200 5,000 400 
Bonds of 1994 6.3609 11-15-94 11-01-14 70 2,200 1,920 
Bonds of 1995 Advance 

RefU'lding 4.no7 12-01-95 07-01-10 35 -2...E 3,240 
305 10,545 5 ,560 

Revenue Bonds and Notes 
Little Bennett Golf Course 5.6350 11-20-97 10-01-07 245 4,291 4,058 

(net of deferred amount) 
Wheaton Ice Rink 6.0600 09-18-97 05-01-07 190 3,600 3,600 
Cabin John Ice Rink 5. 1600 04-27-99 11-01-13 __§_._QQQ 6,000 

S 435 $13,891 S 13,658 
County Total $2,600 $70,811 S 48,203 
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Effective Final FY 2000 outstanding 
Interest Rate Maturity Serial Original at 

series at Date of Sale Dated Date Payment Issue June 30, 1999 

Pri05:e i12rge 1s 'OIJr'lty 
Park Acquisition and 
Develop11ent Bonds & Notes 

1990 Advance Refunding, G·2 6.8867 06·01 ·90 07·01·06 s 790 s 12,390 s 6,700 
Series J·2 6.8867 06·01 ·90 07·01·10 700 23,500 1,395 
Series L·2 5.9922 05·01 ·92 07·01·12 845 23,000 3,370 
Series M·2 5.1483 05·01·93 07·01·13 700 15,250 12,250 
Series P·2 4.8382 12·01·93 07·01·14 700 14, 500 11,200 
Series S·2 Advance 

Refunding 4.9787 12·01·95 07·01 ·12 205 30,025 23,740 
Series T·2 5.3913 01 ·01 ·97 01·15·17 1,000 33,000 31,000 
Series W·2 6.4000 06·25·98 07·01·12 405 7,325 7,325 
Series X·2 Refunding 5.0000 12·03·98 08·01·02 21.000 21.000 

5.345 179.990 117. 980 
Advance Lend Acquisition 

Bonds of 1990 6.8867 06·01 ·90 07·01·10 200 5,000 400 
Bonds of 1995 Advance 

Refunding 4.8991 12·01·95 07·01·10 35 3,300 3,205 
235 8,300 3,605 

COIJr'lty Total S5,580 $188,290 $121,585 
Connission Total S8, 180 $259,101 $169,788 

Distribution: 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group - Montgomery COIJr'lty S 34,545 

- Prince George's County 121,585 
ACCOIJr'lt Group Total 156,130 

Proprietary Flrlds - Montgomery COIJr'lty (Revenue Bonds and Notes) 13,658 
C011111ission Total $169,788 

The following is a summary of the general obligation bonds and notes and revenue bonds and notes 
payable transactions of the Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 ($000's). 

Montgomery County Prince George's County Total 
Park Advance Proprietary Park Advance 

Bonds & Land Revenue Bonds & Land 
Notes Bonds Bonds Notes Bonds 

Bonds Payable at June 30, 1998 S23,585 S5,865 S 7,891 $122,815 S3,840 $163,996 

Debt Issued 7,000 6,000 21,000 34,000 
Debt Retired (1,600) (305) (265) (4,835) (235) (7,240) 
Alllortization of Deferred AmOIJr'lt 32 32 
Debt Refunded {21,000) {21,000) 

Bonds Payable at June 30, 1999 $28,985 S5,560 $13 ,658 $117,980 S3,605 $169,788 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 1999 including interest payments 
of $19,783,651 for Montgomery County ($11,717,443 for Park Bonds, $2,208,189 for Advance Land 
Bonds and $5,858,019 for Revenue Bonds and Notes) and $47,266,391 for Prince George's County 
($46,150,628 for Park Bonds & Notes and $1,115,763 for Advance Land Bonds) are as follows ($000's). 
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Montgomerl Countl 
Park 

Bonds & 
Year Ending June 30 Notes 

2000 S 3,321 
2001 3,254 
2002 3,285 
2003 3,156 
2004 3,126 

2005-2009 12,126 
2010-2014 9,072 
2015-2019 __ug 

TOTAL $40,702 

(11) - RETIREMENT ARRANGEMENTS 

(A) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Advance Proprietary 
Land Revenue 
Bonds Bonds 

$ 602 S 1,212 
607 1,641 
680 1,621 
659 1,600 
632 1,571 

2,910 9,613 
1,523 2, 258 

155 
S 7,768 $19,516 

Plan Description 

Prince George' s Countl Total 
Park Advance 

Bonds & Land 
Notes Bonds 

S 11,541 $ 416 S 17,092 
11,240 400 17, 142 
11,371 484 17,441 
31,583 463 37,461 
10,441 441 16,211 
46,536 1,902 73,087 
33,059 615 46,527 

8,360 11,877 
$164,131 S4,n1 $236,838 

The Commission contributes to The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Employees' 
Retirement System (the "System"), a single-employer defined benefit public employee retirement plan. 
Benefit provisions and obligations to contribute to the plans and all other requirements are established by 
a Trust Agreement between the Commission and the Board of Trustees of the System which has been 
periodically amended since the System was established July 1, 1972. Accounting and financial reporting 
for the system is performed by non-Commission employees who are employed directly by the System. 
The System's financial records are not maintained on a separate County basis. The System issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes its audited financial statements, a description of the four 
plans, and certain other supplementary information. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is 
available at the administrative offices of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 
Employees' Retirement System, 6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 100, Riverdale, Maryland 20737. 

Basis of Accountina= 

The System's financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and 
employer contributions are recognized as revenues (additions to net assets) in the period in which employee . 
services are performed. Both benefits and refunds paid are recognized as expenses (deductions from net 
assets) in the period in which employee services are performed. 

There are no outstanding long-term contract contributions to the plan as of the reporting date. 

Method Used to Value Investments 

Marketable securities are carried at fair value based on quotes from the active market. The fair value of 
real estate is determined by appraisals performed at the end of the calendar year by independent appraisers, 
and is adjusted to reflect market conditions at June 30, 1999. The System has invested in a mutual fund 
composed of more than 300 international securities with Rowe Price-Fleming which exceeds 5 percent of 
net plan assets. 
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Related Party Transactions 

The System did not hold securities (loans, notes, bonds or other instruments) of the Commission or related 
parties (Montgomery and Prince George's Counties) at June 30, 1999, or at any time during the year. 

Fundine Status and Proeress 

The actuarial accrued liability at the valuation date shown on the Schedule of Funding Progress (see 
following page) is a measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected 
salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service 
to date. The measure is intended to help users assess the funding status of the System on a going-concern 
basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make 
comparisons among employers. 

Actuarial Methods 

Actuarial Valuation of Assets: The actuarial value of assets calculates gains or losses on the basis of the 
actuarially assumed interest rate and recognizes one-third of the cumulative gains or losses not yet 
recognized. This year's asset value is based on the July 1, 1997, actuarial value rolled forward to July 
1, 1998. 

Actuarial Cost Method: As of July 1, 1997, the Board of Trustees of the System approved a change in the 
cost method. The Entry Age Normal Cost method is used. Under this funding method, a level percent 
of employer cost is determined which, along with member contributions, will pay for projected benefits 
at retirement for a new entrant into the plan. The level percent developed is called the normal cost rate 
and the product of that rate and payroll is normal cost. The actuarial present value of benefits which have 
accrued in prior years is called the actuarial liability. The portion of the actuarial liability in excess of plan 
assets is funded according to a schedule which is intended to amortize such unfunded actuarial liability 
fully after a period of years. This is in addition to each year's employer normal cost. Under this cost 
method, actuarial gains and losses are reflected in the size of the unfunded actuarial liability. 

Amortization Method: The funding policy of the System is to meet long-term benefit promises through 
actuarially determined periodic contributions that remain approximately level from year to year as a 
percent of annual covered payroll. 

Amortization Period: In accordance with actuarial recommendations, adopted by the Board of Trustees, 
the unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized by annual payments over a period ending January 1, 
2016. 

Economic Assumptions: The actuarial accrued liability was estimated as part of an actuarial valuation 
performed as of July 1, 1998. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate 
of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7% a year compounded annually, (b) projected 
salary increases of6% a year, (c) cost of living increases in benefits after retirement assumed to be 3.75% 
a year, compounded annually, based on the Plan's provision for annual increases of 100% of the first 3% 
of change in the CPI-Urban Index for major U.S. cities plus half of the change in excess of 3 % , but no 
more than 5% in total, and (d) a rate of increase in Social Security Wage Base of 5.5%. All economic 
assumptions include an inflation component of 4.5%. 

The net assets in excess of the total actuarial accrued liability is $56,271,559 at July 1, 1998. The net 
assets available for benefits at June 30, 1999, totaled $453,350,152. 
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Trend Information 

Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits 
when due. Trend information for four years is presented below and for six years within the System's 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for June 30, 1999. For the four years ended June 30, 1996, 
1997, 1998 and 1999, the Commission's contributions to the System, which were all made in accordance 
with actuarially determined requirements, were 10.9%, 9.6% , 7.5%, and 3.9% respectively, of annual 
covered payroll. 

The Commission's annual pension cost (APC) and net pension obligation (NPO) to the System are 
presented below: 

Amual Pension Cost (APC) 
Percentage of APC Contributed 
Net Pension Obligation CNPO) 

TREND INFORMATION (000 1s) 
July 1. 1995 July 1, 1996 

$7,467 
100X 

S7, 189 
100X 

July 1. 1997 

S5,337 
100X 

July 1. 1998 

S2,9n 
100X 

The Commission contributes 100% of the adjusted annual required contribution and has no NPO at year 
end. 

Funding activity for the latest four years is summarized as follows : 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (000 1s) 

Actuarial Valuation of Plan Assets 
Actuarial Accrued Liabi lity 
Flrlded Ratio 
Actuarial Value of Assets in Excess of 

(Unflrlded) Actuarial Accrued Li abil ity 
Amual Covered Payroll 
Actuarial Value of Assets i n Excess of 

(Unflrlded) Actuarial Accrued Liability 

July 1, July 1, 
1995 1996 

$236,821 
229,235 
103.3X 

7,586 
68,625 

S264, 787 
251,229 
105.4X 

13,558 
72,668 

July 1, 
1997 

July 1, 
1998 

$311,854 (1) $363,632 (1) 
285,536 307,360 
109.2X 118.3X 

26,318 
71,102 

56,272 
75,368 

as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 11.1X 18.7X 37.0X 74. 7X 
(1) Per GASB 27, the actuaria l funding method and assets are used rather than pens ion benefit 

obligation (PBO) liabi lity and market value. 

Active plan members in Plan A are required to contribute 6 % of their base pay. Plan B members 
contribute 3 % of their base pay up to the maximum Social Security Wage Base and 6 % in excess of the 
maximum Social Security Wage Base for the calendar year. Plan C and D members contribute 7% of their 
base pay. 

Postretirement Benefits 

In addition to the pension benefits provided by the System, the Commission itself provides postretirement 
health care benefits, in accordance with Commission approval, to all full-time and part-time career 
employees, directors appointed by the Prince George's Planning Board, Merit System Board Members, 
Commissioners and appointed officials who retire under a Commission Retirement Plan or the State of 
Maryland Retirement Plan and who have been insured under any Commission-sponsored group medical 
plan during the three years immediately preceding the date of retirement. Currently, 442 retirees meet 
those eligibility requirements. Continuance of medical, denial , and visiori benefits requires a minimum 
of three years' participation in a Commission-sponsored plan or ability to prove similar coverage in 
another plan immediately prior to retirement. The Commission contributes 85 percent of the amount of 
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medical, prescription drug, and dental insurance rates and 80 percent of vision benefit rates. The System 
contributes the same percentages for its full-time and part-time employees. 

Expenditures for postretirement health care benefits are recognized as retirees' insurance premiums are 
paid. The portion of estimated Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims relating to retirees is included 
in the active employee category. The Commission paid $1,454,952 and $1,733,311 for the years ending 
June 30, 1998 and 1999 respectively, for $ese benefits. 

Securities I&ndin& Transactions 

The System Board of Trustees policies authorize the lending of investment securities. These lending 
transactions are managed by The Northern Trust Company. There were no significant violations of legal 
or contractual provisions, or borrower or lending agent default losses known to the securities lending agent 
as of June 30, 1999. 

Securities are loaned against collateral that may include cash, U.S. government securities and irrevocable 
letters of credit. U.S. securities are loaned against collateral valued at 102 % of the market value of the 
securities plus any accrued interest. Non-U .S. securities are loaned against collateral valued at 105 % of 
the market value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Noncash collateral cannot be pledged or sold 
unless the borrower defaults. Al! securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender or the 
borrower, although the average term of overall loans is 31 days. 

The two types of collateral loans are open and term. Open loans have no fixed time frame but are still one 
year or less in duration. Term loans have a fixed time frame set at .the beginning of the loan. Cash 
collateral is invested in a short-term investment pool, the Core Qualified Collateral Section, which has an 
average weighted maturity of 28 days as of this financial statement date. Cash open collateral may also 
be invested separately in term loans, in which case the investments match the loan term. These loans can 
be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower. 

As of June 30, 1999, any coupon payments for securities loaned have been paid; there are no pending or 
outstanding amounts. Securities lending earnings are credited to participating clients on approximately 
the fifteenth day of the following month. 

The trustee bank, The Northern Trust Company, is responsible for performing borrower and collateral 
investment credit analyses, demanding adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with 
applicable Department of Labor and Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council regulations 
concerning securities lending. Loss indemnification is provided in a situation in which securities are not 
returned due to the insolvency of a borrower and the trustee bank fails to fulfill its contractual 
responsibilities relating to the lending of those securities to that borrower. 

Cash received as securities lending collateral as of June 30, 1999, was $48,989,792. The market value 
of securities on loan as of June 30, 1999, totaled $49,069,408, of which $48,245,806 was cash collateral 
and $823,602 was noncash collateral. Guidelines for the Core-Qualified Collateral define eligible noncash 
collateral investments as obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government or its agencies or 
instrumentalities, and irrevocable letters of credit if issued by banks approved by the agent's Trust Credit 
Committee at the time of issuance. 
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Investments are classified as Category 1, because securities are held by the System's managers in the 
System's name. Detailed security lending information as of June 30, 1999, can be found in the System's 
report. 

(B) Social Security 

Commission employees, other than Park Pol ice, participate in the Federal Social Security System for which 
the Commission contributed $6,077,570 and $6,408,440 respectively, in 1998 and 1999. 

(C) Maryland State Retirement System <MSRS} 

Pension costs for certain employees/retirees who elected to remain in the MSRS were $71,102 in 1998 and 
$75,368 in 1999. A total of 15 employees/retirees are covered in the MSRS (vs. 2,499 in the System 
described above). This amount includes the current service costs plus an amount sufficient to amortize 
the prior service cost over a 40-year period ending June 30, 2020. The Commission has established its 
State Retirement Trust Fund which has sufficient assets to fund all future MSRS costs. 

(12) - SELF INSURANCE 

The Commission operates a self-insurance program for the risk management function and an 
Administrative Services Only plan for the prescription drug program. Other group insurance options 
available to employees include a minimum premium-split funding arrangement for a Preferred Provider 
Organization, a point of service plan, and an indemnity dental program. All other group health benefits, 
which include five Health Maintenance Organizations (HMO's) and a vision plan are fully funded. The 
Commission expended $13,508,411 for all group health benefits in fiscal year 1999. The basis for 
estimating IBNR claims at year-end is an annual actuarial analysis performed by the plans' administrators. 

The Commission is a participant in the Montgomery County Self-Insurance Program (the "Program") for 
the purpose of economic pooling of risks and resources. The Program provides the Commission with self­
insurance administration for workers' compensation (Maryland state mandatory limits), comprehensive 
general liability, automobile liability, police professional liability, public officials liability, property and 
fire damage, boiler and machinery damage, data processing system breakdown and excess liability (up to 
$10,000,000). The Commission does not participate in risk-sharing with the other participants and is 
required to reimburse the full amount of any claims paid by the Program. The Commission has directly 
purchased additional liability and property loss coverage through commercial policies for claims arising 
out ofreal and personal property damage for losses over $100,000. The Commission also carries honesty 
bond coverage for its public officials and employees. 

Premiums are paid into the Risk Management Internal Service Fund by the General Fund and Enterprise 
Funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. Claims 
paid during fiscal year 1999 totaled $1,438,192. The Commission did not pay any claims settlements in 
excess of insurance coverages for fiscal years 1997, 1998, and 1999, nor were any insurance coverages 
reduced in fiscal year 1999. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the 
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for IBNR claims which is 
determined annually based on an actuarial evaluation. In addition, individual claim liabilities are 
established for each case based on the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including 
frequency and amount of payouts and other economic and social factors. Changes in the balances of claims 
liabilities during the past two years are as follows: 
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Unpaid Claims, J1.ne 30, 1997 
Incurred Cla ims, Fisca l Year 1998 
Cla i1111 Paid, Fiscal Year 1998 
Unpaid Cla illlS, J1.ne 30, 1998 
Incur red Claims, Fiscal Year 1999 
Claims Paid, Fi scal Year 1999 
Unpaid Claims, J1.ne 30, 1999 

Medical 

s 1,4n,020 
5,789,390 

(5 ,607.820) 
1,653,590 
5,578,934 

(5,951.412) 
S 1,281.112 

The medical column excludes HMO expenses that are fully insured. 

(13) - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Risk 
Management 

S 5,946,037 
2,454,290 

(2,220,627) 
6,179,700 
2,339,288 

C 1,438 .192) 
$7,080. 796 

The Commission accounts for the operation of numerous cultural and recreational facilities in an Enterprise 
Fund for each County. The recreational facilities include an historical airport, a marina, ice rinks, golf 
courses, conference centers, an arena, train rides, a sports center, and carousels. 

The Commission's objective is that total user fees for the Enterprise Fund of each County cover the 
operating expenses, before depreciation, and the payments for facility and equipment additions. Budget 
plans for these funds are reviewed in total by the respective County. There are no restrictions on operating 
subsidies among the facilities and activities within each County. The various facilities are reported in a 
single segment for each county as recreational and cultural facilities. 

Key financial data for these Funds for the year ended June 30, 1999 follow ($000's): 

Montgomery Prince George's 
COlllt)'. Count)'. 

Recreational Recreational 
and and 

Cultural Cultural Conmission 
Facilities Facilities Total 

Operating Revenues $11,128 S 5,335 $16,463 
Depreciation 665 991 1,656 
Other Operating Expenses 8,696 7,643 16,339 
Operating Income (Loss) 1,767 (3,299) (1,532) 
Operating Transfers In (OUt) (535) 5,070 4,535 
Net Income (Loss) 1,256 1,785 3,041 
Property, Plant, and 
Equipment Additions 3,960 259 4,219 

Net Working Capita l 13,872 3,073 16,945 
Long-Term Liabilities 13,223 1,735 14,958 
Retained Earnings 18,891 2,567 21,458 
Total Equity 22,836 28,738 51,574 
Total Assets 37,783 31,331 69 I 114 

During the fiscal year, there was no activity involving operating grants within these Funds. 

(14)- RELATED PARTY 

The Commission was involved in the following related party transactions during fiscal year 1999: 

(A) Payments and Oblieations to Prince Georee's County -The Commission paid or is obligated 
to pay Prince George's County for the following: $684,803 Zoning Enforc.ement Unit, $614,293 property 
tax collection fees, $588,740 annual rental charges for office space in the County Administration Building, 
$500,000 planning and zoning functions, $340,500 geographic information systems program, $250,000 
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Redevelopment Authority, $208,535 Cooperative Extension Service, $200,000 Community College pool 
operation and maintenance, and $653,769 for other legislative mandates. 

(B) Rental of Executive Office Building Space - The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission Employees' Retirement System paid the Commission $70,000 in fiscal year 1999 for annual 
rental of space in the Kenilworth Executive Office Building. 

(C) Montgomery County - In fiscal year 1999, the Commission traded the Silver Spring Armory 
Enterprise facility which was assessed at $5,051,900 for the parking lot adjacent to the Montgomery 
Regional Offices which was assessed at $7,849,400. 

(1S)-BUDGETARYDATA 

The General Purpose Financial Statements are presented in accordance with GAAP applicable to 
governmental units, except for Exhibit 3 and Notes 19(C) and 19(H) to the financial statements, which are 
presented on a basis consistent with the legally adopted budget. Under the budgetary method, current-year 
outstanding encumbrances are charged to the budgetary appropriations and are considered expenditures 
of the current period. Governmental accounting considers outstanding encumbrances as reservations of 
fund balances that are charged to expenditures in the period in which the goods or services are used or 
received. 

A reconciliation of the Budget Basis to GAAP Basis is as follows. 

Reconciliation from Budget 
Basis to GAAP Basis for 
the year ended June 30, 1999: 

Adjustment to Expenditures 
To Increase· 

Encunbrances · 

Montgomery County 
Actninis· 
tration Park 
Account Account 

Prince George's County 
Actninis· 
tration Park Recreation 
Account Account Account 

Coomission 
Total 

General 
Fund 

Jl.ne 30, 1998 S 1,403,106 S 1,858,355 S 1,688,198 S 5,793,612 S 1,716,458 $12,459,729 
To Decrease· 

Encunbrances · 
June 30, 1999 (1,288.579) (1,336.028) (1,820.585) (2,816.665) (1.065.060) (8,326.917) 
Total Adjustment 114,527 522,327 (132,387) 2,976,947 651,398 4,132,812 

Excess of Revenues and Other 
Sources over (under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses: 

Budget Basis 
GAAP Basis 

Fund Balance, July 1, 1998 

303.688 
189, 161 

(243. 106) 
(765,433) 

GAAP Basis 2,806.703 5,415.591 

Fund Balance, June 30, 1999 

(397,149) 281,267 1.422.613 
<264,762> <2,695,680> n1,21s 

1,367,313 
(2,765,499) 

4,680.554 37,948.913 8,320.120 59,171.881 

GAAP Basis S 2.995.864 S 4,650.158 S 4,415.792 $35,253.233 $9,091.335 $56,406.382 

(16) - LITIGATION 

The Commission is a defendant in various legal actions that fall into three major categories - those arising 
from the Commission's planning and zoning powers, those arising from incidents occurring on 
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Commission property and those arising from personnel actions. The Commission's management and its 
General Counsel estimate that the resolution of claims resulting from all litigation against the Commission 
not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial position or operations of the Commission. 

(17) - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

(A) - Operatine Leases and Notes Payable 

The Commission is committed under several operating lease and installment purchase agreements for office 
space and equipment expiring at various dates through 2012. Each agreement provides for termination in 
the event of nonappropriation of funds. All equipment installment purchases are financed by the 
proprietary funds and have been capitalized; there are no notes payable in the governmental funds . 

Future minimum commitments under noncancelable notes payable and operating leases at June 30, 1999 
are as follows ($000's). 

Notes Pa:z:able ~rating Leases 
Prince Prince 

Year Ending Montgomery George's Montgomery George's 
J111e 30 Total Co111t:z: Co111t:z: Total Count:z: Count:z: 

2000 S 1, 900 $1,665 $ 235 $ 906 $ so $ 856 
2001 853 618 235 912 51 861 
2002 854 619 235 908 26 882 
2003 854 618 236 150 150 
2004 700 464 236 150 150 

2005 and Beyond 2,000 2.000 1.052 ....L...Q2 
Total mininun lease 

payments 7,161 3,984 3, 177 $4 . 078 $127 $3.951 

Less: Amount representing 
interest 1.1.....W.> ___{.llQ) iLl.2ll 

Net present value of 
mininun lease payments SS .656 $3 .674 $1.982 

In fiscal year 1999 expenditures in the General Fund included $869,180 (Montgomery - $49,080, Prince 
George's - $820,100) relating to the rental of office space. 

(B) Grant Proeram 

The Com.mission, as grantee or subgrantee, participates in several Federal and State grant programs, which 
are subject to financial and compliance audits. The Com.mission believes it has complied, in all material 
respects, with applicable grant requirements and the amount of expenditures that may be disallowed by the 
granting agencies, if any, would be immaterial. Direct and indirect grant revenues from the Federal 
government for 1999 were $911,740. The Com.mission engaged independent accountants to conduct an 
audit of Federal grants as required by the Single Audit Act of 1996, as revised, and Circular A-133 issued 
by the Office of Management and Budget. 
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(18) COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

(A) Governmental and Internal Service Fund Types 

As of June 30, 1999, Commission employees had earned, but not taken, annual leave and compensatory 
leave which, at their current salary rates, amounted to approximately $10,935,000 (Montgomery -
$5,079,000; Prince George's - $5,856,000). If this leave is not taken by employees during their 
employment, the Commission is committed to make certain cash payments upon termination or retirement 
at the salary rates then in effect. 

The liability for compensated absences is determined at the end of each fiscal year. The amount recorded 
as an expenditure is the amount to be liquidated within 60 days, with expendable available financial 
resources. This amount is recorded as a current liability in the Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund 
and has been expensed in the General Fund. The remainder of the liability is recorded in the General 
Long-Term Obligations Account Group. 

Below is a schedule of change in the accrued liability for compensated absences. 

Prince 
Montgomery George's 

Count)! Count)! Total 
Liability as of June 30, 1998: 

Current Portion s 700,000 s 836,000 S 1,536,000 
Remaining Portion 4 ,031 ,000 4,6n,ooo 8,708,000 

Total 4,731,000 5,513,000 10,244,000 

Change in Liability: 
Current Portion· 

Expenditure for FY 1999 (43,000) (46,000) (89,000) 
Remaining Portion· 

Increase in General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group 391,000 389,000 780,000 
Total 348,000 343,000 691,000 

Liability as of June 30, 1999: 
Current Portion 657,000 790,000 1,447,000 
Remaining Portion 4,422,000 5, 066, 000 9, 488, 000 

Tota l SS,079,000 SS , 856,000 $10 I 935 I 000 

(B) Progri~tary Fund TJ~ 

Compensated absences in these fund types are accrued in total within each respective Fund. 

(19) - COUNTY FINANCIAL DATA 

The following financial data pertains to both Montgomery and Prince George's Counties. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NO'IB 19(A) 

MONTGOMERY COWJ'Y 

Sc:bedule of Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity • ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNI' GROUPS 
June JO, 1999 

Fiduciuy 
Proprietary Fund AccoWlt Totals 

Governmental Fund Types Fund Types Types Groups (Mcmorandwn Only) 
Gen.@ Gen.@ 

GenenJ Debt Capital Internal Trust Fixed Lona-Tenn Jw,eJO, Jw,e JO, 
Accounls Serme Projects Entaprise Service Funds Assets Obligations 1999 1998 

ASSEn AND OTHER DEBm 

Equity in Pooled Cub and lnvalments s I 0,608,3S7 S - s 6,059,448 S 14,9 II ,297 S 16,2~.696 s 7,732,037 $ s s ss.~1.us s 38,350,468 
Receivables · Taxes 1,714,000 1,714,000 1,460,000 
Receivtbles . Other 62,268 1,610 40,043 39,879 149,860 129,189 

Due &om Other F\lnds 2.119,078 
Due &om Other Govemments 989,494 3,060,129 IS,SSO 4,065,173 4,177,178 
lnvaitories, at Cost 644,060 644,060 707,527 

Oeposill and Other 2.197 60,983 1,750 64,9JO 12.003 
Total Current Assets 13,376,316 9,127,247 IS,S9S,400 16,373,108 7,733,787 62,205,858 46,9SS,443 

Resbicted Assets· 
Land Held for 'ltansfet 24,669,646 24,669,646 25,416,791 

rlXed Assets 27,207,UO 12,390,577 216,339,759 255,938,166 240,741,594 
Accumulated Depreciation (S,020,711) (7,122,085) (12,142.796) (10,787,419) 
Resources to be Provided in FUture Years · 
Retimnent of Genenl Obliption Bonds 34,545,000 34,545,000 29,450,000 
Retimnent of Accrued Liability for 

Compensated Absences 4,422,000 4,422,000 ~031,000 

Total Assets and Other Debits s 13~76~16 S __ -_s 9,127,247 S 37,782~19 s 21,641,600 s 32,403,433 $ 216,339,759 $ ~ 961,000 s Y.9,637,874 s 335,807,409 

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilities: 
Current Portion of Revalue Bonds J>.yable s s s s 245,000 s s s s s 245,000 s 265,000 
Cumnt Portion of Revaiue Notes J>.yable 190,000 190,000 
Cumnt Portion of Notes J>.yable 123,ns 1,400,353 1,524,078 958,143 
Aceounts J>.yable l,6ll,S89 2,429,826 249,793 196,020 26,364 4,Sl3,S92 3,174,328 
Accrued Liabilities 2,371,435 524,374 3,760,032 1,664 6,6S7,SOS 6,16s,on 
Due to Othet Governments 3,664 3,664 
Due to Othet Funds 2,119,078 
DepositJ and Deferred Revaiue 1,747,270 233,695 3,348,507 S,329,4n 4,592,077 
Matured Bonds and Interest J>.yable 1~,337 1~,337 104,795 

Total Cumnt Liabilities S,730,294 2,429,826 l,nl,924 S,3~,40S 3,380,199 18,619,648 17,978,493 

Genml Obligation Bonds J>.yable 34,545,000 34.$4S,OOO 29,450,000 
Revaiue Bonds J>.yable · Net of Current Portion 3,813,181 3,813,181 4,026,118 
Revaiue Notes J>.yable • Net ofClllm1t Portion 9,410,000 9,410,000 3,600,000 
Notes J>.yable · Net of Current Portion 2,149,584 2,149.584 l,OOl,2.S9 
Accrued Liability for Compensated Absences 4,422,000 4,422,000 4,031,000 

Total Liabilitics S,730,294 2,429,826 14,946,lOS 7,SOS,989 3,380,199 38,967,000 72,959,413 60,086,870 

Equity and Other Credits: 
Contnl>uted Capital 3,945,522 S2S,128 4,470,650 S,402,064 
Investment in Genml Fixed Aaaeta 216,339,759 216,339,759 204,199,637 
Retained £uninp (De6cit) • 
~ for Continsency 8,9SS,893 8,955,893 6,649,313 
Unreserved 18,890,892 4,654,590 23,545,482 21,3SO,S71 

Fund Balances • 
Reserved for Encwnbnnces 2,624,601 6,697,421 9,322,028 4,572,874 
Rese,ved for Land Held for 'ltansfet 24,669,646 24,669,646 25,416,191 
Unreserved • 
Designated for Subsequent Years 3,846,363 4,3S3,S88 8,199,951 6,458,446 
Undcsignated l, 17S,OS2 l,17S,OS2 1,670,843 
Total Retained Earnings/Fund Balances 7,646,022 6,697,421 18,890,892 13,610,483 29,023,234 7S,868,0S2 66,118,838 

Total Equity and Other Credits 7,646,022 6,697,421 22,SYJ,414 14,13S,6ll 29,023,234 216,339,759 296,618,461 21s,no,s39 

Total Liabilities, Equity and Other CRdits s 13,376,316 S - s ---- 9,127,247 S 37,782,519 S 21,641,600 s 31,403,433 $ 216,339,759 s 38,967,000 s Y,9,637,874 s 335,807,409 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE 19(B) 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Schedule ofRcvcnuca, Expcnditurca, and Changes in F1md Balances· ALL GOVERNMENT AL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended J1me 30, 1999 

Fiduciary Total, 

Fund (Memorandum Only) 

Governmental F1md Types Type Year Ended 

General Debt Capital Expendable June 30, J1me 30, 

Acco1mts Service Projects Trust 1999 1998 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes $ 59,013,393 $ 1,257,015 $ $ $ 60,270,408 $ 60,270,773 

Intergovernmental 499,428 5,421,767 5,921,195 6,797,726 

Charges for Servicca 2,275,375 2,275,375 2,131,778 

Interest 831,558 222,881 292,375 1,346,814 1,319,295 

Miscellaneous 141,303 191,374 332,677 201,341 

Total Revenues 62,761,057 1,257,015 S,644,648 483,749 70,146,469 70,720,913 

Expenditures: 

Current· 

General Government 4,984,274 4,984,274 4,985,152 

Co1mty Planning and Zoning 13,109,778 13,109,778 12,503,437 

Park Operation and Maintenance 42,033,957 42,033,957 39,019,404 

Miscellaneous Expendable Trust F1mds 426,892 426,892 280,470 

Capital Outlay • Land Acquisition and Development 7,639,025 7,639,025 9,261,163 

Debt Service • 

Principal Retirement 1,905,000 1,905,000 1,905,000 

Intcrcat and Fiscal Charges 1,713,820 1,713,820 1,690,621 

Total Expenditures 60, 128,009 3,618,820 7,639,025 426,892 71,812,746 69,645,247 

Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures 2,633,048 (2,361,805) (1,994,377) 56,857 (1,666,277) 1,075,666 

Other Financing Sources (Uscs ): 

Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds 7,000,000 7,000,000 

Operating Transf cra In 222,881 2,994,201 603,266 694,396 4,514,744 4,273,686 

Operating Transfcn Out (3,432,201) (632,396) (222,881) (313,266) (4,600,744) (4,359,686) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,209,320) 2,361,805 7,380,385 381,130 6,914,000 (86,000) 

Exccas of Revenues and Other Sources over 

(under) Expenditures and Other Uscs (576,272) 5,386,008 437,987 5,247,723 989,666 

Fund Balances, July 1 8,22~ 294 1,311,413 28,585,247 38,118,954 37,129,288 

F1md Balances, J1me 30 $ 7,646,022 $ $ 6,697,421 S 29,023,234 $ 43,366,677 $ 38,118,954 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE 19 (C) 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS 

For the Fiscal Y car Ended June 30, 1999 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes $ 58,706,830 $ 59,013,393 $ 306,563 

Intergovernmental 736,000 499,428 (236,572) 

Charges for Services 870,000 1,216,620 346,620 

Rentals and Concessions 1,018,030 1,058,755 40,725 

Interest 640,500 831,558 191 ,058 

Miscellaneous 120,700 141,303 20,603 

Total Revenues 62,092,060 62,761,057 668,997 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 

Current -
General Government 5,131,540 5,089,601 41,939 

County Planning and Zoning 13,162,560 12,889,924 272,636 

Park Operation and Maintenance 41,960,430 41 ,511,630 448,800 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 60,254,530 59,491 ,155 763;375 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances 1,837,530 3,269,902 1,432,372 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Operating Transfers In 200,000 222,881 22,881 
Operating Transfers Out (3,675,000) (3,432,201) 242,799 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,475,000) (3,209,320) 265,680 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and 

Other Uses - Budget Basis $ (1,637,470) 60,582 $ 1,698.052 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, July I 4,960,833 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 5,021.415 

- 60 -



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings • 

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Proprietary Fund Types 

Internal 

Enterprise Service 

Operating Revenues: 

Sales $ 1,322,692 $ 

Charges for Services 7,918,807 15,986, 192 

Rentals and Concessions 1,886,437 

Miscellaneous 51,550 

Total Operating Revenues 11,127,936 16,037,742 

Operating Expenses: 

Cost of Goods Sold 687,600 

Personal Services 4,330,089 4, 135,785 

Supplies and Materials 1,129,118 138,222 

Other Services and Charges 1,744,085 7,846,221 

Administrative Charges 804,980 

Depreciation 664 718 1,311,885 

Total Operating Expenses 9,360,590 13,432,113 

Operating Income (Loss) 1,767,346 2,605,629 

Nonoperating Revenues 616,095 745,232 

Nonoperating Expenses (592,043) (105,648) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net 24,052 639,584 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers 1,791,398 3,245,213 

Operating Transfers In 86,000 

Operating Transfers Out (621,120) 

Total Operating Transfers (535, 120) 

Net Income (Loss) 1,256,278 3,245,213 

Retained Earnings, July l 17,634,614 10,365,270 

Retained Earnings, June 30 $ 181890.892 $ 131610,483 
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NOTE 19(0) 

Totals 

(Memorandum Only) 

Year Ended 

June 30, June 30, 

1999 1998 

$ 1,322,692 $ 1,298,188 

23,904,999 22,083,905 

1,886,437 1,936,597 

S l,SSO 78,076 

27,165,678 25,396,766 

687,600 782,274 

8,465,874 8,372,800 

1,267,340 1,515,800 

9,590,306 9,255,577 

804,980 1,037,703 

1,976,603 ;869,803 

22,792,703 23,833,957 

4,372,975 1,562,809 

1,361,327 1,128,115 

(697,691) (652,648) 

663,636 475 467 

5,036,611 2,038,276 

86,000 86,000 

(621,120) 

(535,120) 86,000 

4,501,491 2,124,276 

27,999,884 25,875,608 

$ 32,501,375 $ 271999,884 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
Note 19 {E) 

Schedule of Cash Flows - ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Funds 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from County Government 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories, at Cost 
(Increase) Decrease in Deposits and Other 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave 
Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Estimate of Incurred but Unreported Claims 
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Governments 
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 
Increase (Decrease) in Revenue Collected in Advance 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating Transfers In from Other Funds 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition ofFixed Assets 
Principal Paid on Notes Payable 
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds 
Interest Paid 
Payment of Refunded Revenue Bonds 
Write-Off of Revenue Bonds Unamortized Charge 
Proceeds from Financing 
Proceeds from Financing - Revenue Bonds - net 
Proceeds from Financing - Revenue Notes 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Investments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 
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Proprietary Fund Tn,es 
Internal 

Enterprise Service 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

Year Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

1999 1998 

$ 1,767,346 $ 2,605,629 $ 4,372,975 $ 1,562,809 

664,718 

(33,854) 

63,467 

(99,976) 

18,551 
11,862 
53,202 

(37,668) 
2,407,648 

86,000 
86,000 

(3,959,897) 
(118,398) 
(265,000) 
(592,043) 

32,063 

6,000,000 

1,096,725 

616,095 
616,095 

4,206,468 

1,311,885 

(36,972) 
1,452,587 

44,583 

(51,177) 
(64,831) 
(29,776) 
13,898 

(40,518) 

(285,838) 

(1,452,587) 

3,466,883 

(1,270,3 13) 
(967,342) 

(105,648) 

2,800,000 

456,697 

745,232 
745,232 

4,668,812 

1,976,603 

(70,826) 
1,452,587 

44,583 
63,467 

(51,177) 
(164,807) 

(29,776) 
32,449 

(28,656) 
53,202 

(285,838) 

(1,452,587) 
(37,668) 

5,874,531 

86,000 
86,000 

(5,230,210) 
(1,085,740) 

(265,000) 
(697,691) 

32,063 
2,800,000 

6,000,000 

1,553,422 

1,361,327 
1,361,327 

8,875,280 

2,869,803 

(4,050) 
(765,213) 

18,295 
(88,402) 
641,831 

61,511 
24,528 

217,168 
16,959 
11,045 

(119,632) 

765,213 
56,139 

5,268,004 

86,000 
86,000 

(3,369,456) 
(1,014,269) 

(160,000) 
(652,648) 

(4,305,000) 

4,291,118 
3,600,000 

(1,610,255) 

1,128,115 
1,128,1 15 

4,871,864 

10,704,829 11,587,884 22,292,713 17,420,849 
$ 14,911,297 $ 16,256,696 $ 31,l67,993 $ 22,292,713 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE 19(F) 

PRINCEGEORGE'SCOUNl"Y 

Schedule of A.uetl, Liabilitieo and Fund Equity -ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCCXMrGROUPS 
Juno30, 1999 

F'tduciary 
Propridary Fund A000unt Tolala 

Govomm<111al Fund 1yp<s F\ind'lyp<s 1yp<s Groups (Manocmdum(Wy) 
G<11eral GClleral 

G<l1Cl'8I Debt Capital Internal 1\ust F'oxed Long-T<rm June 30, June JO. 
Acooonts Service Projects Entapriso Service Funds Assets ObligatiOfll 1999 19518 

ASSETS AND OTIIER DEBITS 

Equity in Pooled Cllh and 1n--.ts s S4,827,368 $ $ '10,ZIS,774 S 3,382.974 S 16,547.504 $ 14,2A8,621 $ - $ -$ 109,282,2A l S 121,.m,,sa 

Roceivabla -Tax• 2,127,000 2,127,000 l,84S,000 
Roooivablm - OtliClr 1S9,S2l 900,407 16,130 29S 21,683 1,008.036 1,370,262 
Due from OtliClr Govomm<11ts 617,128 6,133,790 IS,SSO 6,166,468 2,558,414 
lnva,torim, at Coot S32,213 532,213 S33,3&S 
Oq,osits and OtliClr l,4S8 60,984 62,442 14,181 

TOIII Current Allots S7,732,47S 27,309,971 3,931,317 16,624,333 14,270,304 I 19,868,400 133,872,701 

Advancm to 0th..- Funds l,734,87S 1,734,875 1,734,875 

Restricted Allots -
Land Held for n-f..- 14.242,7S9 14,242,759 14,307,629 
0th..- 418,291 418,291 404,995 

F'oxedAssels 3S,729,66S 3,468,744 301,558,291 340,7.56,700 309,282,610 
ACQl!Tlulatod Deprec:illion (8,330,443) (610,319) (8,940,762) (8,476,844) 

Amount Available in Debt Service Funds 274,780 
RmoW'OOI to be Provided in F\Jlure y.., · 
Retircrna,t of 0..,.... Obligalion Bonds 121,SSS,OOO 121,SSS,OOO 126,380,220 

Retircrn<11t of Accrued Liability for 
Compensated Abl<ncm S,066,000 S,066,000 4,677,000 

Total Allots and 0th..- Debits s S7173~47S $ - =---s 21~,W s 31~30~39 S 19,$7S8 $ 30,~229 S 301JS!!,291 s 126,6S 1,000 $ SSl41731~ s ~4S71966 

LIABILm ES, EQUrrv AND OTIIER CREDITS 

Liabiliti .. : 
Current Portion of Not .. Payable $ - s - s - $ - s 89,294 $ -s - $ - s 89,294 S 90,421 

A000unts Payable 2,7<:B,937 3,897,611 139,016 S8,3SJ 166,SSO 6,971,465 5,554,149 

Accrued Llabilitieo 3,264,619 S81,.S28 6,478.9()4 SS,39S 10,380,446 8,968,426 

Due to 0th..- Govomme11ts 498,875 498,875 
Dopooits and DefCITOd Revenue 2,498,684 19,041 136,982 1,309,723 3,964,430 3,734,999 

Total Current Liabiliti,. 8,972,115 3,916,652 857,526 6,626,549 1.,531,668 21,904,SlO 18,347,995 

G..,.... Obligation Bonds Payable 121,SSS,OOO 121,SSS,OOO 126,655,000 

Notes Payable - Net of Current Poi1ion 1,892,711 1,892,711 1,982.00$ 

Advan0e1 from 0th..- Funds 1,734,87S 1,734,875 l,734,87S 

Accrued Liability forComp<mat.od Abl<r>C<S S,066,000 S,066,000 4,677,000 

Total Liabiliti,. 8,972,115 3,916,6S2 2,S92,401 8,519,260 1,531,668 126,651,000 IS2, 183,096 U3,396,87S 

Equity and 0th..- Credits: 
Contributed c.,pilal 26,171,014 26,171,014 2.5,92.S,038 

lnv .. tm<11t in 0..,.... rlXed Allots 301,558,291 301,SS8,291 270,0?1,018 

Retaned Earnings (Deficit)-
R....-vod for Conting<,,cy 8,762,985 8,762,985 6,546.668 

Unn.<rvod 2,567,124 2,200,S13 4,767,637 2,474,095 

FUndBelallcet-
R....-vod for Encumbtalcea S,702,310 10,413,362 16.l lS,672 33,707,765 

R....-vod for Land Held for n-f..- lS,977,634 IS,977,634 16.042,S04 

R....-vod for Debt Semoe 274,780 

Unn.<rvod-
Designated for Sub1oq11C11t y.., 29,616,639 12,979,957 13,156,927 SS,7S3,.S23 62,399,563 

Undaignatod 13,441,411 13,441,411 11,619,660 

Total Retanod Eamings/F\Jnd S..,0111 48, 760,360 23,393,319 2,567,124 10,963,498 29,134,561 114,818,11152 133,06S,035 

Total Equity and 0th..- Credits 48,760,360 23,393,319 28,738,138 10,963,498 29,134,561 301,558,291 442,548,167 429,061,091 

Total Liabilities, Equity and 0th..-Credits s S7,732,47S $ - $ 27,309,971 S 31,330,539 $ 19,482, 7S8 $ 30,666,229 $ 301,558,291 $ 126,651,000 S SSl4,731,263 $ 582,457,966 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE 19(G) 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Schedule ofRcvenllCI, Expcndi!Urcl, and Change, in Fund Balances· ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Fiduciary Totals 

Fund (Memorandum Only) 

Governmental Fwid Types Types Year Ended 

General Debt Capital Expendable June 30, June 30, 

Accounts Service Projects Trust 1999 1998 

Reven11C1: 

Property Taxc, $ 100,231,365 $ 1,077,375 $ $ S 101,308,740 $ 98,538,298 

Intergovernmental 896,875 9,471,326 22,806 10,391,007 2,130,295 

Charges for Services 6,740,090 4,225,041 10,965,131 10,054,912 

Interest 2,992,256 2,202,733 637,657 5,832,646 6,458,098 

MiJccllanC0\11 298,476 ~ 281,853 834,435 3 ,414,764 1,684,599 

TotalRcvenllCI 111,159,062 1,077,375 13,955,912 5,719,939 131 ,912,288 118,866,202 

Expenditurca: 

C=t-

Gcnet'al Govcmmcnt 5,946,352 5,946,352 5,609,422 

County Planning and Zoning 14,243,529 14,243,529 14,024,336 

Parle Operation and Maintenance 45,907,274 45 ,907,274 41,782,331 

Recreation Programs 29, 191,944 29, 191,944 27,750,023 

Misccllancoua Expendable Trust Funds 5,026,686 5,026,686 4,605,156 

Capital Outlay - Land Acqui1ition and Development 36,728,321 36,728,321 17,643,444 

Debt Service -

Principal Retirement 5,070,000 5,070,000 5,480,000 

Interest and Filcal Charge, 6,484,197 6,484, 197 6,372,306 

Total Expenditurca 95,289,099 11,554, 197 36,728,321 5,026,686 148,598,303 123,267,018 

Exccu ofRevenllCI over (under) Expenditures 15,869,963 (10,476,822) (22,772,409) 693,253 (16,686,015) (4,400,816) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Proceed, of Refunding Bonda 21,000,000 21,000,000 28,325,000 

Retirement of Debt - Bond Anticipation Notes (21,000,000) (21 ,000,000) (7,605,178) 

Operating Transfers In 2,405,492 10,838,947 3,503,218 636,.905 17,384,562 20,023,009 

Operating Tl'alllfers Out (20,464,682) (636,905) (2,202,733) (150,259) (23,454,579) (24,023,544) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (18,059,190) 10,202,042 1,300,485 486,646 (6,070,017) 16,719,287 

Exccu of RcvenllCI and Other Sources over 

(under) Expenditurca and Other Uses (2,189,227) (274,780) (21,471,924) 1,179,899 (22,756,032) 12,318,471 

Fund Balances, July 1 50,949,587 274,780 44,865,243 27,954,662 124,044,272 111,725,801 
Fund Balances, June 30 $ 481760,360 $ $ 2313931319 $ 29,134,561 $ 10112881240 $ 124,044,272 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK ANO PLANNING COMMISSION 
NOTE 19 (H) 

PRJNCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-OAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for Services 

Rentals and Concessions 

Interest 

Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 

Current: 

General Government 

County Planning and Zoning 

Park Operation and Maintenance 

Recreation Programs 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 

Expenditures/Encumbrances 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Operating Transfers In 

Operating Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 

over (under) Expenditures and 

Other Uses - Budget Basis 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, July 1 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, June 30 

$ 

Budget 

96,048,000 

896,470 

5,053,980 

1,869,795 

2,700,000 

86,810 

106,655,055 

6,079,819 

14,798,779 

48,198,809 

30,156,253 

99,233,660 

7,421,395 

1,800,000 

(17,340,517) 

(15,540,517) 

$ (8,1 19.122) 
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Actual 

$ 100,231,365 

896,875 

5,198,906 

1,541,184 

2,992,256 

298,476 

111, 159,062 

6,028,929 

14,293,339 

42,930,327 

28,540,546 

91,793,141 

19,365,921 

2,405,492 

(20,464,682) 

(18,059, 190) 

1,306,731 

41,751 ,319 

$ 43,058,050 

Variance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 4, 183,365 

405 

144,926 

(328,611) 

292,256 

211,666 

4,504,007 

50,890 

505,440 

5,268,482 

1,615,707 

7,440,519 

11,944,526 

605,492 

(3,124, 165) 

(2,518,673) 

$ 9,425,853 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Eamin~ -

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Pi opt ietarv Fund Types 

Internal 

Enterprise Service 

Operating Revenues: 

Sales $ 1,409,214 $ 

Clwges for Services 2,297,637 16,335,603 

Rentals and Concessions 1,627,928 

Miscellaneous 56,250 

Total Operating Revenues 5,334,779 16,391,853 

Operating Expenses: 

Cost of Goods Sold 853,700 

Personal Services 3,562,021 5,516,568 

Supplies and Materials l,Oll,684 48,295 

Other Services and Charges 1,503,862 9,647,391 

Administrative Charges 711,929 

Depreciation 990,624 250,658 

Total Operating Expenses 8,633,820 15,462,912 

Operating Income (Loss) (3,299,041) 928,941 

Nonoperating Revenues 13,620 715,316 

Nonoperating Expenses (152,420) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net 13,620 562,896 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (3,285,421) 1,491,837 

Operating Transfers In 5,070,017 1,000,000 

Total Operating Transfers 5,070,017 1,000,000 

Net Income (Loss) 1,784,596 2,491,837 

Add Depreciation Charge to Contributed Capital 228,566 4860 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Retained Eamin~ 2,013,162 2,496,697 

Retained Earnin~ (Deficit), July 1 553,962 8,466,801 

Retained Earnin~ (Deficit), June 30 $ 21S671124 $ 10,9631498 
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NOTE 19 (I) 

Totals 

(Memorandum Only) 

Year Ended 

June 30, June 30, 

1999 1998 

$ 1,409,214 $ 1,418,861 

18,633,240 16,231,139 

1,627,928 1,557,106 

56,250 89,410 

21,726,632 19,296,516 

853,700 940,538 

9,078,589 8,254,452 

1,059,979 1,017,460 

11,151,253 11,801,813 

711,929 547,828 

1,241,282 1,500,909 

24,096,732 24,063,000 

(2,370,100) (4,766,484) 

728,936 676,641 

(152,420) (164,007) 

576,516 512,634 

(1 ,793,584) (4,253,850) 

6,070,017 4,000,535 

6,070,017 4,000,535 

4,276,433 (253,315) 

233,426 228,566 

4,509,859 (24,749) 

9,020,763 9,04S,S 12 

$ 131S301622 $ 9.020.763 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND Pl.ANNING COMMISSION 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 
NOTE 19 (J) 

Schedule of Cash Flows -ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from County Government 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories, at Cost 
(Increase) Decrease in Deposits and Other 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Accnied Salaries and Benefits 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave 
Increase (Decrease) in Estimate of Incurred but Unreported Claims 
Increase (Decrease) in Revenue Collected in Advance 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating Transfers In from Other Funds 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition ofFixed Assets 
Principal Paid on Notes Payable 
Interest Paid on Notes Payable 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Investments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 
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Proprietary Fund TYJ>CS 
Internal 

Enterprise Service 

Totals 
(Memorandwn Only) 

Year Ended 
June 30, June 30, 

1999 1998 

$ (3,299,041) $ 928,941 $ (2,370,100) $ (4,766,484) 

990,624 

96,950 

1,173 

(39,280) 

20,379 
114,287 

55,722 
(2,059,186) 

5,070,017 
5,070,017 

(259,016) 

(259,016) 

13,620 
13,620 

2,765,435 

250,658 

135 
44,584 

(51,178) 
14,466 

713,882 
35,286 

(41,404) 
130,350 

2,025,720 

1,000,000 
1,000,000 

(25,762) 
(90,422) 

(152,420) 

(268,604) 

715,316 
715,316 

3,472,432 

1,241,282 

97,085 
44,584 

1,173 
(51,178) 
(24,814) 
713,882 

55,665 
72,883 

130,350 
55,722 

(33,466) 

6,070,017 
6,070,017 

(284,778) 
(90,422) 

(152,420) 

(527,620) 

728,936 
728,936 

6,237,867 

1,500,909 

(28,862) 
18,294 
55,937 

641,831 
(166,396) 
424,135 
261,713 
(58,821) 
86,202 

(13,351) 
(2,044,893) 

4,000,535 
4,000,535 

(199,252) 
(21 1,134) 
(164,007) 

(574,393) 

676,641 
676,641 

2,057,890 

617,539 13,075,072 13,692,611 11,634,721 
$ 3,382,974 $ 16,547,504 $ 19,930,478 S 13,692,611 



20) - REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 
YEAR 2000 READINESS DISCWSURE 

(A) Year 2000 Issue 

Public and private enterprises are focused on the Year 2000 issue as it relates to computer systems and 
electronic equipment. Many computer programs use only the last two digits to refer to a year. On 
January 1, 2000 (or even sooner for programs with prospective date activity), both 1900 and 2000 would 
be referred to as "00". Those programs have to be adjusted to recognize the difference between the two 
years or the programs will fail or create errors. Also, some programs cannot recognize that 2000 is a leap 
year. Further, the year 2000 issue could affect electronic equipment - such as environmental systems, 
elevators, and vehicles - containing computer chips that have date recognition features. 

(B) Year 2000 Mission 

The Commission's Year 2000 mission is to manage its Year 2000 program in such a way as to ensure that 
no mission-imperative and mission-critical services failure occurs as a result of a Year 2000 date problem. 

(C) Year 2000 Prouam 

The Commission formally initiated the Year 2000 Program with the establishment of the Year 2000 
Subcommittee to the Commission's Automation Steering Committee in 1997 to ensure that all mission­
critical systems with a Year 2000 date problem were identified and corrected prior to January 1, 2000. 
The subcommittee prepares monthly status reports which are presented to the Commissioners at the 
monthly Commission Meetings. In addition, the Commission participates in the Montgomery County 
Interagency Technology Policy Coordinating Committee (ITPCC) and the Prince George's County Year 
2000 Action Committee. 

(D) Systems Compliance 

The Year 2000 Program's systems compliance process involves four principal stages: awareness, 
assessment, remediation, and testing. During the awareness stage, the Year 2000 subcommittee was 
established, budget amounts were projected and a project plan was developed for dealing with the Year 
2000 issue. During the assessment stage, systems were identified, assigned to project managers, assigned 
due dates, and budgets were established. Year 2000 issues addressed during the process include internal, 
external and mechanical issues. Internal issues may arise from a government's own operations and may 
materially affect its creditworthiness and ability to make timely payment of its obligations. External 
issues may arise from parties, other than the government, that provide payments/revenues that support the 
debt service on a government's municipal securities. Mechanical issues may arise if Year 2000 problems 
disrupt the actual mechanical process used to send payments to a bondholder. The number of systems 
being addressed as of June 30, 1999 is forty-two. The Year 2000 Subcommittee believes that all major 
Commission systems have been identified and assessed. 

During the remediation stage Commission staff made changes to the systems and equipment. This stage 
deals primarily with the technical issues of converting existing systems, or switching to compliant systems. 
During this stage decisions are made on how to make the systems or processes Year 2000 compliant, and 
the required system changes are made. Each project in the Program is classified in one of four risk 
categories (from highest risk to lowest): mission-imperative, mission-critical, mission-essential, and 
mission-enabling. The progress on each project is monitored on an ongoing basis, generally monthly. 
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A progress report is provided monthly to the Commissioners. The number of projects, and examples of 
systems in each category as of June 30, 1999, are as follows: 

Risk Cateior,y Number Example of Systems 

Mission-imperative 0 

Mission-critical 16 Financial system, Personnel/Payroll system, Development 
Review system, Police support systems 

Mission-essential 25 Vehicle Maintenance Management, Inventory Management 
Process, Labor Cost Tracking 

Mission-enabling 1 Wide Area Network Study 

During the test stage the Commission validates and tests the changes made during the conversion process. 
The development of test data and test scripts, the running of test scripts, and the review of test results are 
crucial for this stage of the conversion process to be successful. If the testing results show anomalies, 
Commission staff correct the process and retest. The Commission intends to test all Year 2000 fixes first 
as stand alone and subsequently with other inter-operating systems. 

The Commission has completed an inventory of computer systems and other electronic equipment that may 
be affected by the year 2000 issue and that are necessary to conduct Commission operations. The 
Commission has identified the following systems requiring Year 2000 remediation: 

Risk Stages 
Category 

Awareness Assessment Remediation Testing Completion Total 

Imperative 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Critical 0 0 10 4 2 16 

Essential 0 0 9 8 8 25 

Enabling 0 0 1 0 0 1 

Total# 0 0 20 12 10 42 

Total % 0% 0% 48% 28% 24% 100 % 

As of September 1, 1999, the compliance project status is as follows: 

Risk Stages 
Category 

Awareness Assessment Remediation Testing Completion Total 

Total# 0 0 11 10 21 42 

Total % 0% 0% 26% 24% 50% 100 % 
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(E) Business Continuity Assurance 

In addition to the Commission's system compliance plans, the Year 2000 program includes the compliance 
assessment of its business partners (e.g., contractors, vendors, customers, and other external stakeholders). 
The failure of certain business partners and suppliers/customers to function could impact the Commission's 
ability to deliver critical public services. The Commission has contacted vendors that provide critical 
business products and services to the Commission to assess the business risk and to plan risk reduction 
strategies prudently. 

(F) Resource Commitments 

Total estimated cumulative funding information for Year 2000 solutions, including contract amounts for 
hardware, software and consulting services required specifically to make systems compliant through June 
30, 1999 is as follows: 

Expended as of Encumbered at 
June 3Q, 1999 June 30, 1999 

I Total $1,738,468 $638, 151 

(G) Contine;ency Plannine; 

A critical part of the Commission's Year 2000 program is the development of contingency plans to assure 
continued operation in the event of critical automated systems failure or unforese.en supply chain 
interruptions. Contingency plans are to describe the steps to be taken, including the activation of manual 
or outsourced processes, to ensure the continuity of business processes in the event of a Year 2000-induced 
system failure. Commission contingency plans are being prepared and tested by the Year 2000 
Subcommittee and will be finalized by October 1999. 

(H) Summary 

Although minor problems will undoubtedly remain, the Commission expects to resolve all of its critical 
Year 2000 problems before January 1, 2000. The Commission does not expect Year 2000 problems to 
have a material adverse effect on its financial health or its ability to meet it financial obligations in a timely 
manner. Nevertheless, the Commission has no control over the Year 2000 remediation efforts of external 
third parties. It is possible, therefore, that even if the Commission were fully Year 2000 compliant, and 
even if the Commission were to pay all of its obligations on time, the noncompliance of external third 
parties involved in the transfer of principal and interest payments could adversely affect the timeliness or 
amount of payments to bondhold~rs. The Commission has dedicated significant resources to the Year 2000 
program and anticipates a smooth transition to the new millennium. 
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• PART IIB • 
FINANCIAL SECTION 

Combining Statements and Schedules 

A camper prepares to tee off at the Youth Golf Training Center, funded in part by a grant from the United 
Stat.es Golf Association (USGA). 

GENERAL FuND 

The General Fund accounts for the proceeds of tax revenues and 
other general revenues which are expended for the Commis­
sion's general operations comprised of park operation and 
maintenance, recreation (Prince George's County only), and 
planning and administration. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-1 

Schedule of Asaeta, Liabilities and Fund Balance - GENERAL FUND 

June 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 

Totab Totab 
Adminis- Admini .. 
tntion Parle June 30, June 30, tntion Parle Recreation June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

Account Account 1999 1998 Account Account Account 1999 1998 1999 1998 
---ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and 
ln11CStmcnts $ 3,935,953 $ 6,672,404 $ 10,608,357 $ 10,054,003 $ 6,372,983 $ 37,554,778 $ 10,899,607 $ 54,827,368 $ 57,456,101 $ 65,435,725 $ 67,510,104 

RC<lCivablcs - Taxes 495,000 1,219,000 1,714,000 1,460,000 394,000 1,217,000 516,000 2,127,000 1,845,000 3,841,000 3,305,000 

RC<lCivables - Other 16,296 45,972 62,268 118,631 9,573 41,764 108,184 159,521 199,327 221,789 317,958 

Due From Cowity Governments 307,990 375,801 683,791 686,542 241,117 250,896 107,144 599,157 344,776 1,282,948 1,031,318 

Due From Other Governments 26,350 279,353 305,703 344,908 7,473 8,998 1,500 17,971 43,571 323,674 388,479 

Due From Other Funds - - - 666,491 - - - - - - 666,491 

Deposits and Other 2,197 - 2,197 2,197 1,458 - - 1,458 4,375 3,655 6,S72 

Total Cum:nt A.stets $ 4,783,786 $ 8,592,530 $ 13,376,316 $ 13,332,772 $ 7,026,604 $ 39,073,436 $ 11,632,435 $ 57,732,475 $ 59,893,150 $ 71,108,791 $ 73,225,922 
= 

UABll.JTIES AND FUND BALANCE 

-.....i Liabilities: 
N Accounts Payable $ 571,532 $ 1,040,057 $ 1,611,589 $ 1,434,780 $ 1,015,539 $ 1,075,171 $ 619,227 S 2,709,937 $ 3,771,752 $ 4,321,526 $ S,206,532 

Accrued Salaries and Benefits 708,282 1,663,153 2,371,435 2,165,579 686,898 1,444,648 1,133,073 3,264,619 2,833,330 5,636,054 4,998,909 

Due to Other Governments - - - - 498,875 - - 498,875 - 498,875 
Deposits and Deferred Revenue 508,108 1,239,162 1,747,270 1,510,119 409,SOO 1,300,384 788,800 2,498,684 2,338,481 4,245,954 3,848,600 

Total Cum:nt Liabilities 1,787,922 3,942,372 5,730,294 S,110,478 2,610,812 3,820,203 2,541,100 8,972,115 8,943,563 14,702,409 14,054,041 

Fund Balance: 
Reserved for Encumbrances 1,288,579 1,336,028 2,624,607 3,261;461 1,820,585 · 2,816,665 1,065,060 5,702,310 9,198,268 8,326,917 12,459,729 

Unreserved-
Designated for Subsequent Y can 1,247,687 2,598,676 3,846,363 3,289,990 1,534,162 2S,726,S87 2,355,890 29,616,639 30,131,659 33,463,002 33,421,649 

Undesignated 459,598 715,454 1,175,052 1,670,843 1,061,045 6,709,981 S,670,385 13,441,411 11,619,660 14,616,463 13,290,503 

Total Fund Balance 2,995,864 4,650,158 7,646,022 8,222,294 4,415,792 35,253,233 9,091,335 48,760,360 50,949,587 56,406,382 59,171,881 

Total Liabilities and 
FUnd Balance $ 4,783,786 $ 8,592,530 S 13,376,316 $ 13,332,772 $ 7,026,604 $ 39,073,436 $ 11,632,435 $ 57,732,475 $ 59,893,150 $ 71,108,791 S 73,225,922 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this schedule. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-2 

Schedule ofRevcnuea, Expenditurea, and Changca in Fund Balance • GENERAL FUND 
For the Filc:al Year Ended June 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 
Totals Totalt 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 
Admini.. Admini.. 

tration Parle June 30, June 30, tratioa Parle Recteation June30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 
Account Account ---1m. 1998 Account Accolmt Account 1999 1998 1999 1998 

Revenuea: 
Property Taxes $16,822,802 $42,190,591 $59,013,393 $58,998,504 $18,651,590 $ 57,166,691 $24,413,084 S 100,231,365 $ 97,487,737 S 159,244,758 S 156,t86,241 

Inlerpcmmcntal • 
Fcclenl - 188,789 188,789 327,507 13,63 1 198,518 6,124 211,273 13,446 407,062 340,953 

State 11,933 S6,SIS 68,448 27,488 1,632 - 244,940 246,572 323,333 3 15,020 350,821 

County 219,304 - 219,304 170,057 382,546 - 49,484 432,030 323,259 651,334 493,3 16 

Local 9,000 13,887 22,887 - - - - - 2,380 22,887 2,380 

Charges for Services 9 19,225 296,169 1,215,394 1,080,066 279,531 164,014 4,7SS,36 1 5,198,906 S,106,410 6,414,300 6,186,476 

Rentals and Concesaiona 1,226 1,058,755 1,059,981 1,051,712 - 1,223,SlS 3 17,669 1,541, 184 1,385,989 2,601, 165 2,437,701 

Interest 298,333 533,225 831,558 889,382 393,430 2,021,218 577,608 2,992,256 3,823,071 3,823,814 4,712,453 

Milcellaneoua 1,390 139,913 141,303 73,706 - 149,587 148,889 298,476 321,422 439,779 395,128 
TotalRevcnuea 18,283,213 44,4n,s44 6t761,0S7 6t6t8,422 19,722.360 60,923,543 30,513,159 111,159,062 108,787,047 173.920,119 171,405,469 

Expenditures: 
General Government 4,984,274 - 4,984,274 4,985, 152 5,946,352 - - S,946,3S2 5,609,422 10,930,626 10,594,574 

Plannins Depar1ment 13, 109,778 - 13, 109,778 12,503,437 14,243,529 - - 14,243,529 14,024,336 27,353,307 26,S27,n3 
-..J Parle Operation and Maintenance - 42,033,957 42,033,957 39,019,404 - 45,907,274 - 45,907,274 41,782,331 87,941,231 80,801,735 w 

Recreation Programs - - - - - - 29,191,944 29,191,944 27,750,023 29,191,944 27,750,023 
Total Expenditures 18,094,052 4b 033,957 60,128,009 56,507,993 20,189,881 45,907,274 29,191,944 95,289,099 89,166,112 155,417,108 145,674,105 

Exccta of Revenues over 
(under) Expenditure, 189, 161 2,443,887 2,633,048 6, 110,429 (467,521) IS,016,269 1,321,215 15,869,963 19,620,935 18,S03,0ll 25,731,364 

Other Financing Sourcct (Uses): 
Operating Transfers 1n - 222,881 222,881 14S,n8 202,759 2,202,733 - 2,405,492 2,009,231 2,628,373 2,ISS,009 
Operating Transfers Out - (3,43t201) (3,432,201} (3,l7S1S8l) - (19,91 4,682) (SS01000) (20,464,682) (21,416,016) (23,896,883) (24,591,597) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (3,209,320) (3,209,320) (3,029,803) 20b759 (17,711,949) (550,000) (18,059,190} (19,406,785} (21 ,268,510) (22,436,588) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Uses 189, 161 (765,433) (576,272) 3,080,626 (264,762) (2,695,680) 771,215 (2,189,227) 214,150 (2,765,499) 3,294,776 

Fund Balance, July I b806,703 5,415,591 8,22b294 5,141,668 4,680,554 37,948,913 8,320, 120 S0,9491587 S0,7351437 59,171,881 55,877, 105 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ 2.995,864 $ 4,6SO,IS8 $ 7,646,022 S 8.222.294 S 4.415,792 $ 35,253,233 $ 9,091.335 $ 48,760.360 $ S0.949,587 $ 56,406.382 S 59,171.881 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-3 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

GENERAL FUND 

Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Buis) and Actual - ADMlNISTRATION ACCOUNT 

FortheFisc:al Yean Ended June 30, 1999 and 1998 

1999 1998 
Variance 

Favorable 

~ Actual (Unfavorable~ Actual 

Revenues: 
Property Taxes $ 16,734,190 $ 16,822,802 $ 88,612 $ 16,826,041 

Intergovernmental -
State 16,302 ri 11,933 (64,369) 24,000 

County 22S,69:) ) \\) 219,304 (6,394) 170,057 

Other 9,000 9,000 - -
Charges for Services 650,000 \ 920,4'1 270,451 818,456 

Interest 240,000 298,333 58,333 29S,2SI 

Miscellaneous -- I 390 I 390 7 001 

Total Revenues I 7,935,190 18,283,213 348,023 ~806 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Commissioners' Office 928,190 895,226 32,964 878,730 

-l 
Central Administrative Services -

.;:. Department of Human Resources and Management 1,352,800 1,352,648 IS2 1,317,377 

Department of Finance 1,767,750 1,765,804 1,946 1,69S,110 

Legal Department 625,700 623,653 2,047 584, 181 

Support Services 421,SOO 423,388 (1,888) SS3,890 

Merit System Board 35,600 28,882 6718 29,029 

Total Central Administrative Services 4,203,350 4,194,375 8,97S 4,179,587 

Planning Department -
Parle and Planning Director's Office 178,660 193,489 (14,829) 172,818 

Management Services 540,630 528,614 12,016 SSl,991 

Strategic Planning 109,SOO 4S,727 63,773 -
Community Based Planning 3,054,330 2,9S7,99S 96,335 2,898,666 

Countywide Planning 2,889,220 2,859,173 30,047 3,016,493 

Development Review 1,799,070 1,770,354 28,716 l ,432,8SS 

Research and Technology 2,987,240 3,218,SS3 (23 1,3 13) 3,117,726 

Support Services 1,292,910 1,271,898 21,012 l ,076,Sl7 

Grants 311,000 240,237 70 763 194,057 

Total PlaMing Department 13,162,S60 13,086,040 76 S20 ~123 

Non-Departmental -- (196,116} 196,116 (19,354} 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 18,294,100 171979,S2S 314 S7S 17,S00,086 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances $ (358,910) 303,688 $ 662,598 640,720 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July I 1,403,597 76'?:,_877 

Fund Balance - Budget Buis, J1Ute 30 $ 1,707,285 
OO'"""'°J:i f}(P 

$ 1.403,S97 

I, i 'fl ., 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-3 

MONTGOMERYCOUNfY 

GENERAL F1JND 

Cootparativc Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fund Babnce - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - PARK ACCOUNT 

For the Filcal Years Ended June: 30, 1999 and 1998 

1999 1998 
Variance 
FllYODble 

Revenues: 
Budget Actual !Qnfavonble} Actual 

Property Taxes s 
Intergovernmental -

41,972,640 s 42, 190,S91 s 217,951 s 42,172,463 

Federal 200,987 188,789 (12,198) 327,507 
State 224,013 70,402 (IS3,611) 3,488 

Charges for Scn,,ices 220,000 296,169 76,169 262,873 
Rentals and Concessions 1,018,030 l,OS8,7SS 40,72S l,OS0,449 
Interest 400,SOO S33,22S 132,72S S94,131 
Miscellaneous 120,700 139,913 19,213 66 70S 

Total Revenues 44,156,870 44,477,844 320,974 44,477,616 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Park and Planning Director's Office 64,410 33,600 30,810 72,1S6 
Management Scn,,ices 248,240 212,310 3S,930 240,34S 
CoWltywide Planning 760,340 783,370 (23,030) 100,99S 
Research and Technology 946,7SO 1,029,093 (82,343) 812,6Sl 

......:i Director of Parks 968,470 1,028,159 (S9,689) 1,000,023 
Vl Park Planning. and Development l,49S,410 l,Sl3,9S8 (18,548) 1,407,460 

Park Police 8,270,910 8,329,787 (S8,877) 7,800,112 
Natural Resources 3,228,010 3,284,628 (S6,618) 3,766,375 
Central Maintenance 7,159,900 7,007,174 152,726 6,972,32S 
Northern Region S,337, 160 S,198,99S 138,165 S,090,899 
Southern Region 7,861,350 7,579,030 282,320 7,342,513 
Support Scn,,ices 4,36S,9SO 4,S04,928 (138,978) 4,200,43S 
Grants 42S,OOO 2S9,191 165,809 330,99S 
Property Management 828,S30 747 407 81,123 687 941 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 41 ,960,430 41 1Sl11630 448 800 39182S122S 

Excess of Revenues over (Wlder) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances 2,196,440 2,966,214 769 774 416S21391 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -

Capital Projects Funds - Interest 200,000 222,881 22,881 14S,778 
Debt Sef\lice - Park Fund (3,299,000) (2,994,201) 304,799 (2,949,581) 
Capital Projects Funds - Development (290,000) (290,000) - (140,000) Expendable Trust Fund - (62,000) (62,000) -Enterprise Fund {86,000} {86,000} - (86,000} Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {3,475,000) {3,209,320} 26S1680 {3,029,803} 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Uses s (l,278,S60} (243,106) s l,03S,4S4 1,622,588 

Fund Balance - Budget Basi$, July 1 31SS71236 1,934,648 Fund Balance - Budget Basi$, JW1e 30 s 3,314,130 

Ct'>•",.,,.. ~ (YJD 
s 3 SS7~6 

J-. ~"r 6'·/4 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. -- -
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

GENERAL FUND 

Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual - ADMINISTRATION ACCOUNT 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 1999 and 19CJ8 

1999 
Vuiance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues: 

Property Taxes s 17,925,000 $ 18,651,590 $ 726,590 

Intergovenunental -
Federal 13,63 1 13,631 -
State 1,632 1,632 -
County 382,141 382,546 405 

Charges for Services 220,000 279,531 59,531 

Interest 450,000 393,430 (56,570) 

Miscellaneous - - -
Total Revenues 18,9CJ;404 19,72;360 729,956 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Commissioners' Office 1,661,469 1,619,554 41,915 

Central Administrative Services -
Department of Human Resources and Management 1,352,800 1,352,648 152 

Department of Finance 1,767,750 1,765,804 1,946 

Legal Department 625,700 623,653 2,047 

Support Services 636,500 638,388 (1,888) 

Merit System Board 35,600 28,882 6 718 

Total Central Administrative Services 4,418,350 4,409,375 8,975 

Planning Department 14,798,779 14,494,789 303,990 

Non-Departmental - (201,450} 201,450 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 20,878,598 201322,268 SS61330 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances (1,886,194} (S9CJ,908} 1,286,286 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -

Trust Fund - Expendable Trust (Public Contributions) - 20;1s9 20;159 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 20;?59 202,759 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Uses s (1,886,194) (397,149) $ 1,489,045 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July l ;9CJ;3S6 
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, June 30 S ZS95.207 

/,.JJ 9 wv ('>•~ 
~ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. l; (j~~df5 

EXHIBIT A-3 
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Actual 

$ 18,152,088 

8,009 
30,158 

323,259 
398,758 
538,581 
241259 

19,475,112 

1,618,583 

1,317,377 
1,695,109 

584, 181 
416,755 

29,029 
4,042,45 1 

13,810,889 
(306} 

191471,617 

3,495 

3,495 

;988,861 
s 2.9CJZ3S6 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBIT A-3 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

GENERAL FUND 

Ccmperatiw: Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbnnces, and 
Changes in FWld Balance· Budget (Non-OAAP Budgetary Bau) and Actual • PARK ACCOUNT 

For the Fiscal Y~EndedJune30, 1999and 1998 

1999 ---.!.m.. 
Vanance 

Favonble 

Revenues: 
Budget Actual (Un(avonble} Actual 

Property Taxes S S4,632,000 s 57,166,691 s 2,534,691 S SS,S68, 729 
Intergovernmental • 

Federal 198,518 198,518 - S,S26 
Charges for Services 181,000 164,014 (16,986) 114,922 
Rentals and Concessions 1,S67,22S 1,223,SlS (343,710) 1,0S4,92S 
Interest 1,800,000 2,021,218 221,218 2,629,481 
Miscellaneous 53,960 149 S87 95,627 179,072 

Total Revenues 58,432,703 60,923,543 2,490,840 ..J2.m6SS 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Director's Office 2,37S,26S 1,953,894 421,371 2,361,571 
Parle Police 9,SS1,72S 8,914,175 637,SSO 8,868,909 
Support Services 5,320,918 S,S12,434 (191,516) 4,597,324 
Child Care/Special Projects 37,750 38,137 (387) 3S.37S 
ParlcPennits 170,702 128.396 42,306 178,027 
Sports/ Alhlctic/Oulreach Program 1,293,340 96,825 1,196,515 547,117 
Facility Operations • 
Associate Director 331,308 270,434 60,874 310,748 
Design and ~ 3,016,873 2,926,631 90,242 2,602,970 
Maintenance and Development 12,513,622 11,481,803 1,031,819 12,119,064 

....J Property Management 50000 - S0,000 1,220,573 
-.l Total Facility Operations 15,911,803 14,678,868 1,232,935 16,253,355 

Area Operations • 
Northern Area 3,759,826 3,517,203 242,623 3,581,951 
Central Area 3,412,488 3,098,853 313,635 3,232,463 
Southern Area 2,824,914 2,807,789 17,125 2,896,476 
Arts and Cultural Heritage 1,171,lSO 988,884 182,266 -
Natural and Historical Rcsow-ccs 1,643,487 1,3n,239 266,248 1,106,732 
Total Area Operations 12,811,865 11,789,968 1,021,897 10,817,622 

Non-Departmental 725 441 (182,370) 907811 618,631 
Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 48,198,809 42,930,327 5,268,482 44,277,931 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encwnbrances 10,233,894 17,993,216 7,759,322 IS,274,724 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) • 

Capital Projects Funds · Interest 1,800,000 2,202,733 402,733 2,009,231 
Debt Service • Parle Fund (11,676,000) (10,838,947) 837,053 (11,955,000) 
lusk Management - (1,000,000) (I ,000,000) (1,200,000) 
Advance Land Acquisition (87,500) (87,500) - (220,000) 
Enterprise Fund {2,330,017) (4,520,017) (2,190,000) {2,200,535) 
Capital Projects Funds • Interest (1,800,000) (2,021,218) (221,218) (2,629,481) 
Capital Projects Funds · Development (1,447,000) (1,447,000) - 611 000 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (15,540,517) (17,711,949) (2,171,432) 18 806 785 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Uses S (5,306,623) 281 ,267 s S

1
587

1
890 (3,532,061) 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July I 32,155,301 35,687,362 
Fund Balance • Budget Basis, June 30 s 32,436,568 S 32,JS5.30J 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this schedule. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITA-3 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNrY 

GENERAL FUND 

COl11)Mative Schedule of Rewnucs, Expcnditurcs/Encwri,races, and 
Changes in Fund Balance· Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetaiy Basis) and Actual. RECREATION ACCOUNT 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 1999 and 1998 

1999 1998 
Vanm:e 
Fawrable 

Budget Actual (Unfawrable2 Actual 
Revtnucs: 
Propttty Taxes S 23,491,000 $ 24,413,084 
Intergovernmental . 

$ 922,084 $ 23,766,920 

Federal 6,124 6,124 - 7,920 
State 244,940 244,940 - 285,166 
County 49,484 49,484 - 2,380 

Charges for Services 4,652,980 4,755,361 102,381 4,592,730 
Rentals and Concessions 302,570 317,669 15,099 331,064 
Interest 450,000 577,608 127,608 655,009 
Miscellaneous 32 850 148 889 116039 118,091 

Total Revtnues 29,229,948 30,513,159 1,283,211 29,759,280 

Expenditures/Encurrbrances: 
Director's Office 209,328 208,873 455 136,556 
Support Services ~687,049 po7,626 (20,577) -
Total Director's Office 2,896,377 2,916,499 (20,122) 136,556 

Facility Operations: 
Natural and Historical Resources 2,540,871 2,449,803 91,068 2,356,869 

.....;i Sports/Athletic/Outreach Program 2,455,258 2,397,025 58,233 2,401,241 
00 Aquatics 3,115,716 ~921,424 194292 ~779,890 

Total Facility Operations 8,111,845 7,768,252 343,593 7,538,000 

Area Operations: 
Deputy Director 341,857 284,687 57,170 319,640 
Child Care 1,703,301 1,313,633 389,668 1,856,533 
Northern Area 5,046,834 4,838,692 208,142 4,992,280 
Central Area 3,665,116 3,665,226 (110) 3,529,684 
Southern Area 3,837,727 3,433,767 403,960 3,461,475 
Special Populations 1,287,954 1,218,719 69,235 1,297,229 
Arts and Cultural Heritage 2,380,893 2,334,593 46,300 2,432,604 
Grants 300 548 300 548 293 086 
Total Area Operations 18,564,230 17,389,865 1,174,365 18,182,531 

Non-Departmental 583,801 465,930 117,871 12,948 
Total Operating Expenditures/Encurrbrances 30,156,253 28,540,546 I 615 707 28,084,572 

E.xcess ofRevtnues o\U (under) 
Expenditures/Encurrbrances (926,305) 1,972,613 ~918 1,674,708 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out). 
Enterprise - (550,000) (550,000) 
Risk Management (600,000) 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -· (550,000) (550,000) (600,000) 

Excess ofRevtnues and Other Sources 
O\U (under) Expenditures and Other Uses $ '926,305) 1,422,613 $ 2,348,918 1,074,708 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July 1 6,603,662 5,528,954 
Fund Balance· Budget Basis, Jwic 30 $ 8 026275 $ 6,603,662 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 



Construction proceeds on the Cabin John Ice Rink in Potomac. 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources 
and the payment of general obligation bond principal, interest, and related 
costs. The Commission maintains Park Debt Service and Advance Land 
Acquisition Debt Service Funds for each County. 

Park Debt Service Funds 

The Park Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for the payment of general obligation bonds issued to fund the cost 
of the acquisition of parkland, and the development of new and expansion of 
existing parks and recreation facilities. 

Advance Land Acquisition Debt Service Funds 

The Advance Land Acquisition Debt Service Funds are used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for the payment of general obligation bonds issued 
to fund the acquisition of land at the request of and for the ultimate use of 
other public agencies. 
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00 
0 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Padc 

ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ -$ 

Total Cwrcnt Assets $ -$ 

LIABil.ITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Deposits $ - $ 

Accounts Payable -
Total Current Liabilities -

Fund Balances: 

ReSC1Ved for Debt Service 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ -$ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Combining Balance Sheet • DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

1unc 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Toula 

Advance Land 

Acquisition 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-
-

-
-

-$ 

1unc 30, 

1999 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-
-

--
--

... $ 

1unc 30, 

1998 

1,660 $ 

1,660 $ 

-- $ 

1,660 

1,660 

1,660 S 

Padc 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-
-

... $ 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Advance Land 

Acquisition 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-
-

-
-

- $ 

Tout, 

1unc 30, 

1999 

-$ 

- $ 

- $ 

-
-

--
-

- $ 

1unc 30, 

1998 

274,780 $ 

274,780 $ 

-$ 

-
-

274,780 

274,780 

274,780 $ 

EXHIBITB-1 

TOTALS 

1unc30, 

1999 

-$ 

-$ 

-$ 

-
-

--
--

-S 

1unc 30, 

1998 

276,440 

276,440 
= 

1,660 

1,660 

274,780 

274,780 

276,440 -



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITB-2 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCEGEORGE~COUNTY TOTALS 

Totals Totals 
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 

Advance Land June 30, June 30, Advance Land June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 
Parle Acquisition 1999 1998 Parle Acquisition 1999 1998 1999 1998 

Revenues: 

Property Taxes $ - $ 1,257,015 $ 1,257,015 $ 1,272,269 $ - $ 1,077,375 $ 1,077,375 $ l 10S01S6l $ 2,334J90 $ 2,322,830 
Total Revenues - 1,257,015 1,257,015 1,272,269 - 1,077,375 1,077,375 l,OSO,S61 2,334,390 ____blli,_830 

Expenditures: 

Principal Retirement 1,600,000 305,000 1,905,000 1,905,000 4,835,000 235,000 5,070,000 5,480,000 6,975,000 7,385,000 
Interest 1,387,690 316,521 1,704,211 1,676,695 6,085,396 196,356 6,281,752 6,294,373 7,985,963 7,971,068 
Fiscal Charges 6,511 3 098 9609 13,926 193,331 9114 202,445 77933 212,054 91,859 

Total Expenditures 2,994,201 624,619 3,618,820 3,595,621 11,113,727 440470 I 1,554,197 11,852,306 15,173,017 15,447,927 

I 

00 ....... Excess of Revenues over 

(under) Expenditures (2,994,20 l) 632,396 (2,361,805) (2,323,352) (11,113,727) 636,905 (10,476,822) (10,801,745) (12,838,627) (13,125,097) 

Other Financing Souroes (Uses): 

Proceeds of Refunding Bonds - - - - 21,000,000 - 21,000,000 7,325,000 21,000,000 7,325,000 
Retirement of Debt - Bond Anticipation Notes - - - - (21,000,000) - (21,000,000) (7,605,178) (21,000,000) (7,605,178) 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -

Parle Funds 2,994,201 - 2,994,201 2,949,581 10,838,947 - 10,838,947 11,955,000 13,833,148 14,904,581 
Expendable Trust Funds - (632,396) (632,396) (626,229) - (636,905) (636,905) (598,297) (1,269,301) (1,224,526) 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,994,201 (632,396) 2,361,805 2,323,352 10,838.947 (636,905) 10,202,042 11,076,525 12,563,847 13,399,877 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 

over (under) Expenditures and Other Uses - - - - (274,780) - (274,780) 274,780 (274,780) 274,780 

Fund Balances, July I - - - ~4,780 - 274,780 -- 274 780 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ - $ - $ - $ $ --- $ - $ - $ 274 780 $ - s 274 780 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



Students learn about historic aircraft as they tour the popular College Parle Aviation Museum. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition, development 
or improvement of parkland and the acquisition or construction of major 
capital facilities other than those accounted for in the proprietary funds and 
the Advance Land Acquisition Expendable Trust Funds. The Commission 
maintains separate Funds for each County. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITC.l 

Combining Balance Sheet - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

June 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 

Totals Totals 

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

1999 1998 1999 1998 1?99 1998 
ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 6,059,448 $ - $ 20,275,774 $ 43,098,223 $ 26,335,222 $ 43,098,223 
Accounts Receivable 7,670 - 900,407 1,048,966 908,077 1,048,966 
Due from County Govenunent 1,487,683 732,965 - 501,674 1,487,683 1,234,639 
Due from Other Govenunents 1,572,446 2,352,630 6,133,790 1,607,767 7,706,236 3,960,397 

Total Current Assets $ 9,127,247 $ 3,085,595 $ 27,309,971 $ 46,.256,630 $ 36,437,218 $ 49,342,225 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

I 

00 Liabilities: l.,..) 

Accounts Payable $ 1,843,158 $ 616,781 $ 1,191,325 $ 350,858 $ 3,034,483 s 967,639 
Contract Retainages 586,668 490,910 2,706,286 1,040,529 3,292,954 1,531,439 
Due To Other Funds -- 666,491 - - - 666,491 
Deposits -- -- 19,041 - 19,041 

Total Current Liabilities 2,429,826 1,774,182 3,916,652 1,391,387 6,346,478 3,165,569 

Fund Balances: 

Reserved for Encumbrances 6,697,421 1,311,413 10,413,362 24,509,497 17,110,783 25,820,910 
Unreserved -

Designated for Projects -- -- 12,979,957 20,355,746 12,979,957 20,355,746 
Total Fund Balances 6,697,421 1,311,413 23,393,319 44,865,243 30,090,740 46,176,656 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 9,127,247 $ 3,085,595 $ 27,309,971 $ 46,256,630 $ 36,437,218 $ 49,342,225 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITC-2 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 
Totals Totals 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

1999 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental -

Federal $ - $ - $ 422,107 $ 370,470 $ 422,107 $ 370,470 

State 1,303,561 2,387,341 9,049,219 1,092,379 10,352,780 3,479,720 

County 4,118,206 3,710,161 - - 4,118,206 3,710,161 

Local - 175,172 - - - 175,172 

Interest 222,881 145,778 2,202,733 2,009,231 2,425,614 2,155,009 

Sale of Land - - 156,185 234,117 156,185 234,117 

Miscellaneous - !JOO 2,125,668 313,659 2,125,668 314,859 
Total Revenues 5,644,648 6,419,652 13,955,912 4,019,856 19,600,560 10,439,508 

Expenditures: 
Park Acquisition 688,170 1,364,879 5,780,788 2,395,7% 6,468,958 3,760,675 

Park Development 6,950,855 7,896)84 30,947,533 15)47,648 37,898,388 23,143,932 
00 
~ Total Expenditures 7,639,025 9,261,163 36,728,321 17,643,444 44,367,346 26,904,607 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(under) Expenditures (1 ,994,377) (2,841 ,511) (22,772,409) (13,623,588) (24,766,786) (16,465,099) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds 7,000,000 - - 21,000,000 7,000,000 21,000,000 

Operating Transfers In (Out) -
General Fund - Park Account, Operating Interest - - 2,021,218 2,629,481 2,021,218 2,629,481 

General Fund - Park Account, Development 290,000 140,000 1,447,000 2,61 1,000 1,737,000 2,751,000 

Expendable Trust Funds 313,266 412,098 35,000 -- 348,266 412,098 

General Fund - Park Account, Interest (222,881) (145,778) (2,202,733) (2,009)31) (2,425,614) (2,155,009) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 7,380,385 406,320 1,300,485 24,231,250 8,680,870 24,637,570 

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Uses 5,386,008 (2,435,191) (21,471,924) 10,607,662 (16,085,916) 8,172,471 

Fund Balances, July 1 1,311,413 3,746,604 44,865,243 34,257,581 46,176,656 38,004,185 

Fund Balances, June 30 $ 6,697,421 $ l,311,4)3 $ 23,393,319 $ 44,865,243 $ 30,090,740 $ 46,176,656 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



Boat rentals and naturalists' tours of Little Seneca Lake are sources ofrevenue at Black Hill Regional 
Park. 

E NTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds are used to account for recreational and cultural facilities 
that are operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where 
the Commission's intent is that the costs of providing goods or services to the 
general public will be recovered primarily through user charges. 
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THE MARYLAND.NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITD-1 

Combining Balance Sheet - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
June 30, 1999 

PRINCE GEORGE'S 
MONfGOME.RY COUNTY COUNTY TOTALS 

ReclUlional and Cultural Rccrcauonal and Cultural 
Facilities Facilities 
Totals Totals 

June 30, June 30, June 3-0, June 30, June 3-0, June 30, 

___!222. 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998 

Assets 
Current Assets: 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 14,911,297 $ 10,704,829 $ 3,382,974 $ 617,539 $ 18,294,271 $ 11,322,368 

Accounts Receivable 40,043 6,189 16,130 113,080 56,173 119,269 

Invencorics, at Cost 644,060 707 S27 S3pt3 S331386 1,176,273 1,240,913 

Tola! CWTCnt Assets 1S,S9S1400 l114l81S4S 3,931,317 11264,00S 19,526,717 q_,682,SSO 

Fixed A.1sets, at Cost: 
Land 7,791,328 8,632,328 S,684,643 S,684,643 13,47S,971 14,316,971 

Buildingt 7,88S,468 8,893,909 19,825,666 19,596,264 27,711,134 28,490,173 

Improvements Other Than Buildingt 1,647,71S 1,S71,684 7,630,612 7,193,975 9,278,327 8,76S,6S9 

Machinery and Equipment 3,S23,423 3,313,608 2,S88,744 2,S42,714 6,112,167 S,8S6,322 

Construction in Prog,css 6,359,896 2,889,437 - - ~3S9,896 2,889,437 

27,207,830 25,300,966 3S,729,66S 3S,017,S96 62,937,495 60,318,S62 

Less - Accumulated Depreciation (510201711} ~4,8S6,491} ~8,330,443} F,3661168} (1313St11S4} ~12,222,6S9} 

00 
Net Fixed Assets 22.187,119 20,444,475 21139912n 27,651,428 49,586,341 48,095,903 

0\ Total Assets $ 37,78b S19 $ 31,863,020 $ 31,330,539 $ 28,915,433 $ 69,113,0S8 $ 60,778,453 

Uabllltles and Equity 

Current Liabilities: 
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds Payable s 24S,OOO $ 26S,OOO $ - $ - $ 24S,OOO $ 265,000 

Current Portion of Revenue Notes Payable 190,000 - - - 190,000 

Current Portion of Notes Payable 123,72S 118,398 -- - 123,72S 118,398 

Accounts Payable 249,793 349,769 139,016 178,296 388,809 528,065 

Accrued Salaries and Benefits 189,939 171,388 175,825 155,446 36S,764 326,834 

Accrued Leave 334,435 322,573 405,703 291,416 740,138 613,989 

Interest Payable 156,337 103,135 - - IS6,337 103,135 

Revenue CoUected in Advance 233,695 271,363 136,982 81,260 370 677 352,623 

Total Current liabilities 1,722,924 1,601,626 857,526 706,418 2,S80,4SO 2,308,044 

Revenue Bonds Payable - Net of Current Portion 3,813,181 4,026,118 - - 3,813,181 4,026,118 
Revenue Notes Payable - Net of Current Portion 9,410,000 3,600,000 -- 9,410,000 3,600,000 

Notes Payable - Net of Current Portion - 123,726 -- -- - 123,726 

Advanced from Advance Land Acquisition Fund - - 1,734187S 1,734,87S l ,734,87S 1,734,875 

Total liabilities 14,946,105 913Sl ,470 2,592,401 2,441,293 171S381506 tt,792,763 

Equity: 
Contributed Capital 3,94S,522 4,876,936 26,171,014 25,920,178 3-0,116,S36 30,797,114 

Retained Earnin&1 (Deficit) 18,890,892 17,634,614 2,567,124 553,962 2114S81016 18,188,S76 

Total Equity 22,836,414 22,51 1,SSO 28,738,138 26,474,140 51,574,552 48,98S1690 

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 37,782,519 $ 31,863,020 $ 31,330,539 $ 28,915,433 $ 69,113,058 $ 60,778,453 

The notes to the financial statements arc an intcgJ'al part of this statement. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITD-2 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings· ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For 11\e Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

PRINCE GEORGE'S 
MONTGOMERY COUNlY COUNTY TOTALS 

Recreation.al and Cultunl Recrutional and Cultunl 
Facilities Facilities 
Totals Totals 

Year Ended Year Ended Yc:arEndccl 
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

1999 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998 
Operating Revenues: 

Sales s 1,322,692 s 1,298,188 s 1,409,214 $ 1,411,861 $ 2,731,906 $ 2,717,049 
Charges for Services 7,918,807 8,040,221 2,297,637 2,296,235 10,216,444 10,336,456 
Rentab and Concessions 1,886,437 119361S97 1,627,928 11SS7,106 31Sl4136S 3,493,703 

Tola! Operating Revenues 11,127,936 l l,27S,006 S,334,779 s,212.202 16,462,71S ~ 208 

Operating Expenses: 
Cost of Goods Sold 687,600 782,274 853,700 940,538 1,541,300 1,722,812 
Penotw Services 4,330,089 4,483,507 3,562,021 3,338,506 7,892,110 7,822,013 
Supplies and Materials 1,129,118 1,248,430 1,011,684 947,372 2,140,802 2,195,802 
Conununications 97,894 86,967 241,172 236,647 339,066 323,614 
Utilities 457,289 492,677 272,757 278,012 730,046 770,689 
Maintenance 217,943 177,112 364,799 341,416 582,742 518,S28 
Contractual Services 758,452 858,409 295,940 365,490 1,054,392 1,223,899 
Other Services and ChMges 212,507 211,717 329,194 291,213 541,701 502,930 
Administrative ChMges 804,980 1,037,703 711,929 547,128 1,516,909 1,585,531 00 Depreciation 664,718 1,534,613 990,624 t,2~252 1,655,342 2,790,865 -....I 

Tola! Operating Expenses 9,360,590 10,913,409 8,633,820 8,543,274 17,994,410 19,456,683 

Operating Income (Loss) 1,767,346 361,597 (3,299,041) (3,271,072) (1,531,695) (2,909,475) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Experucs) -
Interest Income 616,095 551,194 13,620 43,034 629,715 594,228 
Interest Expense (592,043) (566.329) - (592,043) (566,329) 

Tola! Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 24,052 (15,135) 13,620 43,034 37,672 ---12,. 899 

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfm 1,791,398 346,462 (3,285,421) (3,228,038) (1,494,023) (2,881,576) 

Operating Transfers In (Out) -
General Fund - Parle Account 86,000 86,000 4,520,017 2,200,535 4,606,017 2,286,S3S 
General Fund - Recreation -- - SS0,000 - SS0,000 
General Fixed Assets Account Group (621,120) - -- - (621,120) 

Net Operating Transfers (535,120) 86,000 S,070,017 2,200,535 4,534,897 ~53S 

Net Income (Loss) 1,256,278 432,462 1,784,596 (1,027,503) 3,040,874 (595,041) 
Add Depreciation ChMge to Contributed Capital - - 228~ 228,S66 221,566 ~S66 

Net Increase (Decrease) In Retained ~ 1,256,278 432,462 2,013,162 (798,937) 3,269,440 (366.475) 

Retained Earnings (Deficit), July l 17,634,614 17,202,152 SS31962 1,352,899 18,188,576 ~OS1 

Retained Earnings (Deficit), June 30 s 18,890,892 $ 17,634.614 $ 2,567.124 $ 553.962 $ 2l.4S8.0l6 $ 18.188.576 

The nota to lhc finmcial ltalclllcnta are an integal part of this IUllcmcnL 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITD-3 

Combining Statement ofCa.,h Flows - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

PRINCE GEORGE'S 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY COUNTY TOTALS 

Recreational and Cultural Recreational and Cultural 
Facilities Facilities 

Totals Totals 
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

1999 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998 

Ca.,h Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) $ 1,767,346 $ 361,597 $ (3,299,041) $ (3,271,072) $ ( 1,531,695) $ (2,909,475) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 664,718 1,534,613 990,624 1,256,252 1,655,342 2,790,865 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (33,854) (3,620) 96,950 (28,432) 63,096 (32,052) 

(Increase) Decrease in Inventories, at Cost 63,467 (88,402) 1,173 55,937 64,640 (32,465) 

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (99,976) 143,814 (39,280) 40,302 (139,256) 184,116 

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits 18,551 96,596 20,379 93,679 38,930 190,275 

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave 11,862 27,120 114,287 (53,671) 126,149 (26,55 1) 

Increase (Decrease) in Interest Payable 53,202 11,045 - - 53,202 11,045 

Increase (Decrease) in Revenue Collected in Advance {37,668) 56,139 551722 {131351) 181054 421788 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 2,407,648 2, 1381902 {2,059, 186) {1,920,356) 348,462 218,546 

I 

00 Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
00 

Operating Transfers In from Other Funds 86,000 86,000 5,070,017 2,200,535 5,156,017 21286,535 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital 
Financing Activities 86,000 86,000 5,070,017 ___b_2Q_Q,_53 5 tl56,017 '.2_,286,535 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition ofFixed Assets (3,959,897) (1 ,815,760) (259,016) (199,252) (4,218,913) (2,015,012) 

Principal Paid on Notes Payable (118,398) (210,685) - - (118,398) (210,685) 

Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds (265,000) (160,000) - - (265,000) (160,000) 

Interest Paid (592,043) (566,329) - - (592,043) (566,329) 

Payment of Refunded Revenue Bonds (4,305,000) - - - (4,305,000) 

Write-Off of Revenue Bonds Unamortized Charge 32,063 - - -- 32,063 

Proceeds from Financing - Revenue Bonds - net 4,291, 118 - - - 4,291,118 

Proceeds from Financing -Revenue Notes 6,000,000 3,600,000 - - 6,000,000 3,600,000 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 1,096,725 8331344 {259,016) {199,252) 837,709 634,092 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Restricted Investments 191,798 91,646 - - 191,798 91,646 

Interest on Investments 424,297 459,548 13,620 43,034 437 917 502,582 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 6161095 5511194 13620 43,034 629,715 594,228 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,206,468 3,609,440 2,765,435 123,961 6,971,903 3,733,401 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July l 10,704,829 7,095,389 617 539 493,578 l 1,322,368 7,588,967 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 14,911,297 $ 10,704,829 s 3,382,974 s 617,539 $ 18,294,271 $ 11,322,368 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



Rich in history, the Surratt House Museum attracts thousands of visitors each year as a stop on the John 
Wilkes Booth Escape Route tour. 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the consolidated financing of 
certain goods or services provided to other Commission funds on a cost­
reimbursement basis. 

Capital Equipment Funds 

The Montgomery County Capital Equipment Fund is used to account for the 
acquisition of equipment through the use of tax exempt financing and the leasing 
of the equipment to other Commission funds. The Prince George's County 
Capital Equipment Fund is used to account for the cost of operating the 
Executive Office Building and was used to account for the renovation costs of 
that building which was acquired in February of 1992. 

Employee Benefits Funds 

The Employee Benefits Funds are used to account for the costs related to 
employees' life and health insurance coverage, and the flexible spending 
program. The Fund is also used to charge various programs and projects in the 
governmental funds for annual leave earned and estimates of sick leave that will 
be taken in order to better measure their costs. 

Risk Management Funds 

The Risk Management Funds are used to account for the activity related to 
general liability, property damage, and workers compensation. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITE-1 

Combining Balance Sheet • INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
June 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 

TOTALS TOTALS 

Capital Employee Rak June 30, June 30, Capital Employee R.uk June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

Equipment Benefits Management 1999 1998 Equipment Benefits Management 1999 1998 1999 1998 
----

ASSETS 
Current Asscta: 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1,087,917 $ 9,617,135 $ S,SSl,644 $ 16,256,696 $ 11,587,884 $ 23,422 $ 9,217,929 $ 7,306,153 $ 16,S47,S04 $ 13,075,072 $ 32,804,200 $ 24,662,956 

Accounts Receivable 39,S84 - 29S 39,879 2,907 - - 29S 29S 430 40,174 3,337 

Due from Other Fund$ - - - - l,4S2,S87 - - - - - - l,4S2,S87 

Due from County Government - - IS,SSO IS,SSO 60,133 - - 1S,SSO 1S,SSO 60,134 31,100 120,267 

Deposits and Other \ - 49,320 11,663 60,983 9,806 - 49,321 11,663 60,984 9,806 121,967 19,612 

Total CWTCnt Assets _ 1,127,SOI 9,666,4SS S,S19,1S2 16,373,108 1~113,317 23,422 9,267,250 7,333,661 16,624,333 13,145,442 32,997,441 26,2S8,7S9 

Fixed Asscta, at Cost: 
Land - - - - - 748,497 - - 748,497 748,497 748,497 748,497 

Buildings 102,469 - - 102,469 102,469 2,649,865 - - 2,649,865 2,676,191 2,752,334 2,778,660 

Machinery and Equipment 12,244,052 -- 44,056 12,288,108 l 1,138,S22 26,326 - 44,0S6 70,382 769,308 12,358,490 11,907,830 

Less-Accumulated Depreciation (7,102,179) - (19,906) (7,122,085) (S,930,928) (590,413) - (19,906) (610,319) (1,110,676) (7,732,404) (7,041,604) 

Net Fixed Assets S,244,342 - 24,ISO S,268,492 S,310,063 2,834,275 - 24,ISO 2,8S8,42S 3,083,320 8,126,917 8,393,383 

Total As$ets $ 6,371,843 $ 9,666,4SS $ S,603,302 $ 21,641,600 $ 18,423,380 $ 2,857,697 $ _ 9,267,250 $ 7,357,811 $ 19,482,758 $ 16,228,762 $ 41,124,358 $ 34,652,142 
= 

I 

I.() LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 0 
I 

CWTCnt Liabilities: 

CWTCnt Portion of Notes Payable $ 1,400,353 $ - $ - $ l,400,3S3 $ 839,74S $ 89,294 $ -$ -$ 89,294 $ 90,421 $ 1,489,647 $ 930,166 

Accounts Payable 14S,941 44,904 S,11S 196,020 260,SSI 4,83S 44,904 8,612 S8,351 43,88S 2S4,371 304,736 

Claims Payable - - l,411,7S2 l,411,7S2 1,441,S28 - - 2,9S8,0S4 2,9S8,0S4 2,244,172 4,369,806 3,685,700 

Accrued Salaries and Benefits - 143,102 9,768 152,870 138,972 S,620 208,SOS 9,769 224,194 188,908 377,064 327,880 

Accrued Leave - 657,000 22,017 679,017 719,S3S 8,929 790,000 22,018 820,947 862,3Sl 1,499,964 l,S81,886 

Estimate of Incurred but 
Unreported Claims - 640,S56 875,837 1,516,393 1,802,231 -- 640,SS6 l,83S,153 2,475,709 2,34S,3S9 3,992,102 4,147,590 

Due to Other Funds - -- - l,4S2,S87 - - - - - - l,4S2,S87 

Total CWTCnt Liabilities 1,546,294 1,485,562 2,324,549 S,3S6,40S 6,6SS,449 108,678 1,684,265 4,833,606 6,626,549 S,11S,096 11,982,954 12,430,S4S 

Notes Payable· Net of Current Portion 2,149,584 2,149,584 877,S33 1,892,711 -- - 1,892,711 1,982,00S 4,042,295 2,859,538 

Total Liabilities 3,695,878 1,485,562 1,SOS,989 7,532,982 2,001,389 1,684,265 4,833,606 8,519,260 7,7S7, 101 16,025,249 IS,290,083 

Equity: 
Contributed Capital 525,128 -- -- 525,128 525,128 - - - - 4,860 525,128 S29,988 

Retained Earnings· 
Reserved for Contingency - 8,180,893 775,000 8,955,893 6,649,313 -- 7,582,985 1,180,000 8,762,985 6,546,668 17,718,878 13,195,981 

UnresetVed 2,150,837 2,503,753 4,6S4,S90 3,715,957 856,308 - 1,344,205 2,200,513 1,920,133 6,8SS,103 5,636,090 

Total Retained Earnings 2,150,837 8,180,893 3,278,753 13,610,483 10,36S,270 856,308 7,582,985 2,S24,20S 10,963,498 8,466,801 24,573,981 18,832,071 

Total Equity 2,675,965 8,180,893 3,278,753 14,13S,611 10,890,398 856,308 7,582,985 2,S24,20S 10,963,498 8,471,661 25,099,109 19,362,059 

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 6,371,843 $ 9,666,4SS $ S,603,302 $ 21,641,600 $ 18,423,380 $ 2,857,697 $ 9,267,250 $ 7,357,811 $ 19,482, 7S8 $ 16,228,762 $ 41,124,358 $ 34,652,142 
~ 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

EXHIBITE-2 
Combining StatenYJJt ofRCYCnues, Expenses, and Changes in Rdained Earnings· INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY COWIY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNIY 10TALS 
Totals Totals 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 
Capital Enploycc Risk June 30, Junc:30, Capital En-ploycc Risk Junc:30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

§juil!!!!:!'!t Benefits Man!genYJJt 1999 1998 §iuil!!!!:!'!t Benefits Manag,mcnt 1999 1998 1999 1998 
Clp<rating RCYCl'lues: 

Charges for Savices $ 2,290,914 $ 12,746,278 $ 949,000 $ 15,986,192 $ 14,043,684 $ 718,171 $ 13,900,432 $ 1,717,000 $ 16,335,603 $ 13,934,904 $ 32,321,795 $ 27,978,588 
Claim Rco:ow:ries - 51,550 51,550 78,076 ·- - 56,250 56,250 89410 107 800 167,486 

Total Clp<rating RCYCnues 2,290,914 12,746,278 1,000,550 16,037,742 14,121,760 718 171 13,900,432 1.m.250 16,391,853 14,024,314 32,429,595 28,146,074 

Clp<rating Expcnscs: 

Personal Saviccs -- 3,924,402 211 ,383 4,135,785 3,889,293 105,208 5,199,322 212,038 5,516,568 4,915,946 9,652,353 8,805,239 
Supplies and Materials 127,575 120 10,527 138,222 267,370 37,528 120 10,647 48,295 70,088 186,517 337,458 
Contractual Saviccs -

Montgomery County Self 

Insurance Fund, Net ·- - 670,670 670,670 463,527 -- ·- 2,176,703 2,176,703 2,489,641 2,847,373 2,953,168 
Other - 10,910 ·- 10,910 7,173 -· 10,911 - 10,91 1 7,173 21,821 14,346 
Claims Incurred ·- 3,141,332 - 3,141,332 2,998,671 3,141,332 - 3,141,332 3,004,244 6,282,664 6,002,915 
Insurance - 3,705,339 5,114 3,710,453 3,672,489 ·- 3,705,339 15,442 3,720,781 3,708,456 7,431,234 7,380,945 

'0 Other Saviccs and Charges 22,191 65,939 224,726 312,856 286,835 324,771 65,938 206,955 597,664 1,079,521 910,520 1,366,356 - Deprco:iation 1,307,381 4504 1,31 1,885 1,335,190 246154 4504 250,658 244657 1,562,543 1,579,847 
Total Clp<rating Expenses 1457 147 10,848,042 1,126,924 13,432,113 12,920,548 713 661 12,122,962 2,626,289 15,462,912 15,519,726 28,895,025 28,440,274 

Clp<rating Income (Loss) 833,767 1,898,236 (126,374) 2,605,629 1,201,212 4510 1m410 (853,039) 928,941 (1,495,412) 3,534,570 (294,200) 

Nonopcrating Revenues (Expenses) -
Interest Income 45,425 410,344 289,463 745,232 576,921 7,660 389,847 317,809 715,316 633,607 1,460,548 1,210,528 
Interest Expense (105,648) -· ( 105,648) (86,319) (152,420) (152,420) (164,007) (258,068) (250,326) 

Total Nonopcrating Revenues (Expenses) (60,223) 410 344 289463 639 584 490.602 (144,760) 389 847 317 809 562,896 469,600 1,202,480 _____2®,202 

Income (Loss) Before Clp<rating Transfers 773,544 2,308,580 163,089 3,245,213 1,691,814 (140,250) 2,167,317 (535,230) 1,491,837 (1,025,812) 4,737,050 666,002 

Clp<rating Transfers In (Out) -
Parle Fund -· - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,200,000 1,000,000 1,200,000 
Recreation Fund -· - - -· ·- ·- - - 600,000 ·- 600,000 
lntcrfund Transfers ln(Out) -· - ·- (54,216) 54216 - - ·-Net Clp<rating Transfers -· - (54,216) ·- 1,054,216 1,000,000 1,800,000 1,000,000 ~ 000 

Net Income (Loss) 773,544 2,308,580 163,089 3,245,213 1,691,814 (194,466) 2,167,317 518,986 2,491,837 774,188 5,737,050 2,466,002 
Add Deprco:iation Charge to Contributed Capital -· - ·- ·- 4860 ·- - 4,860 - 4860 

Net Increase (Decrease) In Retained Earnings 773,544 2,308,580 163,089 3,245,213 - (189,606) 2,167,317 518,986 2,496,697 774,188 5,741,910 

Retained Earnings, July I 1,377,293 5,872,313 3,115,664 10,365,270 8,673,456 1,045,914 5,415,668 2,005,219 8,466,801 7,692,613 18,832,071 16,366,069 

Retained Earnings, June 30 $ 2,150.837 $ 8,180 893 $ 3,278 753 $ 13.610483 S 10,365.270 S 856.308 $ 7,582,985 $ 2,524,205 S 10,963.498 S 8,466,801 $ 24,573 981 $ 18,832,0Ji 

The notes to the financial st&ltrnmts are an int<gral part of this statenYJJl 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITE-3 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
Forlhe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

MQNTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 
TOTALS TOTALS 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 
Capital Employee Risk June 30, June 30, Capital Employee Risk J1me30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

~uipment Benefits Mana&cment 1999 1998 &!uil!!!ent Benefits Management 1999 1998 1999 1998 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
s 833,767 S 1,898,236 S (126,374) S 2,605,629 S 1,201,212 S 4,510 S 1.m,470 s (853,039) S 928,941 S (1,495,412) S 3,534,570 S (294,200) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 1,307,381 - 4,504 l,311,88S 1,335,190 246,154 - 4,S04 2S0,6S8 244,6S7 1,562,543 1,S-79,847 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (37,107) - 135 (36,972) (430) - - 135 135 (430) (36,837) (860) 

(Increase) Deaease in Due From Other Funds -· - 1,4S2,S87 1,452,587 (765,213) - - - - - 1,452,587 (765,213) 

(Increase) Decrease in Due from County Government - - 44,583 44,583 18,295 - - 44,584 44,584 18,294 89,167 36,589 

(Increase) Decrease in Deposits and Other ·- (49,320) (1,857) (51,177) 641,831 - (49,321) (1,857) (51,178) 641,831 (102,3SS) 1,283,662 

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (91,421) 22,878 3,712 (64,831) (82,303) (15,703) 22,878 7,291 14,466 (206,698) (50,365) (289,001) 

Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable - -· (29,776) (29,776) 24,528 -· - 713,882 713,882 424,135 684,106 448,663 

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits -- 13,929 (31) 13,898 120,572 ,321 34,996 (31) 35,286 168,034 49,184 288,606 

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave -· (43,000) 2,482 (40,518) (10,161) 2,113 (46,000) 2,483 (41,404) (S,150) (81 ,922) (15,311) 

Increase (Decrease) in Estimate of Incurred 
but Unreported Claims -· (186,239) (99,S99) (285,838) (119,632) - • (186,239) 316,589 130,350 86,202 (155,488) (33,430) 

Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds (1,452,587) ·- (1,452,587) 765,213 - · - - - - (1,452,587) 76S,213 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 560,033 1,656,484 1,250,366 3,466,883 3,129,102 237.395 1,553,784 234,541 2,025,720 (124,537) 514~603 3,004,565 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating Transfers In (Out) to Other Funds - -- -- ·- ·- (54,216) ·- t ,054,216 1,000.000 1,800,000 1,000.000 1,800,000 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital 
Financing Activities ·- -· (54,216) -· 1,054,216 1,000.000 1,800.000 1,000,000 1,800,000 

\0 
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: I',..) 

Acquisition of Fixed Assets (1 ,244,551) - · (25,762) (1,270,313) (1,553,696) - - (25,762) (25,762) -- (1,296,075) (1,553,696) 

Principal Paid on Notes Payable (967,342) - (967,342) (803,584) (90,422) - -- (90,422) (211,134) (1,057,764) (1 ,014,718) 

Interest Paid on Notes Payable (105,648) -· ·- (105,648) (86,319) (152,420) - - (152,420) (164,007) (258,068) (250,326) 

Proceeds from Financing 2,800,000 -· 2,800,000 -· - - - - 2,800,000 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and 
Related Financing Activities 482,459 (25,762} 456,697 (2,443,599} (242,842} -- (25,762} (268,604} (375,141} 188,093 (2,818,740} 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Investments 45425 410,344 289,463 745,232 576,921 7660 389,847 317,809 715,316 633,607 1,460,548 1,210,528 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
Investing Activities 45,425 410,344 289,463 745,232 576,921 7 660 389,847 317,809 715,316 633,607 1,460,548 1,210,528 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,087,917 2,066,828 1,514,067 4,668,812 1,262,424 (52,003) 1,943,631 1,580,804 3,472,432 1,933,929 8,141,244 3,196,353 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July I -· 7,550,307 4,037,577 11,587,884 10,325,460 75,425 7,274,298 5,725.349 13,075,072 11,141,143 24,662,956 21 .466,603 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ I 087 917 $ 9,617,135 $ 5,551,644 $ 16,256 696 $ 11,587.884 $ 23.422 $ 9,217,929 s 7,306,153 $ 16,547.504 $ 13,075,072 $ 32 804,200 S 24,662 9S6 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



An accessible pier provides fishing opportunities for all at Black Hill Regional Park. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Commission in a 
trustee capacity or as an agent for employees, individuals, private organizations, 
other governmental units, and/or other funds. 

Pension Trust Fund - Employees' Retirement Fund 

The Pension Trust Fund is used to account for all activities of the Employees' 
Retirement System including accumulation of resources for, and payment of, 
retirement annuities and/or other benefits and the administrative costs of 
operating the system. 

Agency Fund 

The Agency Fund is used to account for the State retirement funds of 
participating Commission employees and retirees. 

Expendable Trust Funds 

The Expendable Trust Funds are used to account for funds whose principal and 
interest must be expended in accordance with their designated purposes. The 
Expendable Trust Funds are also used to account for the Employees' Deferred 
Compensation Fund. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITF-1 

Combining Balance Sheet· ALL FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES 

June 30, 1999 

PENSION 

'JltUST AGENCY 

EXPENDABLE 'JltUST FUNDS FUND FUND TOTALS 
Employees' 

Montgomery Coun~ Prince Georite's Cow,~ Defened Employees' 
Advance Land June 30, Advance Land Puba<: Recreation Historic: June 30, Compensation Rdirement Slale June 30, June 30, 

A!,guisition Other 1999 A!:9uisition Contn'butiora Activities Siles 1999 Fund Fund Rdiraner4 1999 ____WI_ 
ASSETS 

Equity in Pooled C&sh and Investments $ 3,740,903 S 3,991,134 s 7,732,037 s 6,183,040 S 4,761,397 $ 2,983,776 S 320,408 S 14,248,621 $ - s - s 2,887,659 s ~868,317 s 21,885,099 
Cash and Matlcetable Securities ·- - ·- - ·- ·- - 37,301,634 S47,492,789 - ~794,423 S34,3,40,078 
Accounts Receivable - - 12,882 8,801 - 21,683 - 2,059,690 - 2,081,373 2,259,44S 
Due to County Government ·- - - - - - - - - - - 492 
Deposits and Other -- I 7SO l 7SO - ·- ·- -· - 140J!§ - 142136 41J!!7 

Total Cwrent Assets 3,740,903 3,992,884 7,733,787 6,183,040 4,774,279 2,992,S77 320,408 14,270,304 37,301,634 S49,692,86S 2,887,659 611,886,2,49 SS8,S26,481 

Land Advanoed to Ente,prise Fund - - l,734,87S - ·- l ,734,87S - - - l,734,87S l,734,87S 
Restricted Assets -

Land Held f0< Transfer 24,669,646 ·- 24,669,646 14,242,7S9 - -· 14,242,759 - - - 38,912,40S 39,724,420 
Other -· ·- - 418 291 ·- -· 418,291 - - -· 418291 40499S 

Total Assets s 2MIOS49 S 3~884 s ~a!?~·~·~ s ii 1~674 s S 192 S70 $ ~~~77 S ~i2S s ~~i'i2 s ~7~16~ s ~mH~ s aaz~ s ~2~211.2 s §S!!.222 771 

I LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
I.O 
~ 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable s ·- $ 26,364 $ 26,364 $ ••• $ 16,288 $ 149,579 $ 683 S 166,SSO $ - s 96,342,713 S 2,887,659 s 99,423,286 S 112,247,694 
ACCNCd Liabilities - 1,664 1,664 S,289 48,721 l,38S SS,39S - - - 57,059 S0,710 
Due to County Government -· 3,664 3,664 - - - - - 3,664 
Deposits and Deferred Revenue 3~,S07 3~~ ·~1,723 - 8000 1.309,723 - -· 4,658,230 !l2S,8S3 

Total Current Liabilities 3,380,199 3,380,199 - 1,323,300 198,300 10,068 1,531,668 - 96,342,713 2,887,659 104,142,239 l 16,424,2S7 

Fund Balanoes: 

Reserved for Land Held for Transfer 24,669,646 - 24,669,646 IS,977,634 ·- -- IS,977,634 - - 40,647,280 41,459,29S 
Urueserved • 
Designated for Pension Bene6ts -· -· - · ·- -· - 4S3,3SO,IS2 -· 4S3,3S0,1S2 427,426,605 
Designated f0< Trust Activities 3,740,903 612,685 4.)S3~ 6,183,040 3,869,270 2,794~77 310,340 1311S61927 37~1,634 - ~81i149 IS10801614 
Total Fund Balanoes 28,410.549 61268S 29.023,234 22,160.674 3,869.270 2194 277 310340 29,134,S61 37~1.634 4S3,3S0,1S2 ·- S48.809.S81 483,966.~14 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 28Al01S49 S 3 992 884 S 32,403,433 s 22,160,674 $ SJ92,S70 S 2 992 S77 S 320408 $ 30,666,229 S 37.301 ,634 $ S491692186S S 2,887,659 S 6S2,9Sl,820 $~771 

The notes to the 6nancial statements are an integral part of this >latemcnt. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITF-2 

Combining Statement of Revm-. Expe,,ditun,o, and aw,.. in Fund Balanoto • EXPENDABLE TilUST RINDS 
Forthe r-1 y.., en.i..!Juno30, 1999 

l!mployw TOTALS 

Mon!l!!!!!!I Cowl!! Prince Georae'• Cowl!! Deferred Y111E..i.cl 
A.iv-Land Juno30, A-Lond Public R-iion Hiotoric -30. ~ Juno30, ,-30, 

Acguilition Other 1999 A!!9uioilion Contnlnitiom ~ ~ 1999 Plan ~ _.!22:!,_ 

Reven-: 
lnterp,vemmontu • 

Cowlty s - s - s - s - s - s 2,7SO s - s 2,7SO S - s 2,7SO s 600 

0th« - - - - -· 20,0S6 - l0,0:56 - 20,056 4,428 

Clwg,nfor~ - - - - ·- 291,195 - 291,19$ - 291,19$ 33,216 

Recnation Activitiot ·- - -
m,3; ,1 

·- 3,9)3,846 - ),9)),846 - 3,93),846 3,529,297 

lnteRtt 105,303 187,072 292,37S 249,656 118,893 13,m 637,6$7 - 930,032 909,9)1 

lnvntment Earning, -- -- - - - - - 3,844,706 ),844,706 -
ContributiON -- -- - - 590,936 - 134,193 725,129 4,414,008 5,139,137 610,280 

Miocel1anoout 191J74 191J74 ~ 109~ -· 300,680 ~ 
Total Revmueo IOSJO) 378 446 483 749 2SSJ36 840J92 4,476,046 ~ S,719,l!39 8,158,714 14,461,402 S,419,308 

Expenditure,: 
CUtrmt· 

Cultural and RKRational -· - 4,581,757 - 4,581,757 - 4,581,757 4,090,194 

Mi,ceOaneouo Expendable Truot Activiti .. ·- 426 892 426,892 68JS9 27' 539 ----1!!..fil. U4~ 981 117 -1.mill... -121.fil.. 
Total ExpendituRt -· 426 892 426 892 68 359 275,539 ~ ----1!!..fil. s,026,686 981 117 6,434,695 4,885,626 

ExceN of Revenue. over 
(wuler) Expenditwa 105,303 (48,446) S68S7 186,9']7 S65 053 ---'!.Qlli!l ~ 69),253 72n S97 8,027,707 533,682 

Other rllWlcu,g Source, (Ute,): 
OpeBtina Tron,fero In (Out)· I 

I.O Oenenl Fund - Patk Account 62,000 62,000 87,500 (202,759) - - (l1S,2S9) - (5);259) 220,000 
V, Debt s..rvicc Fund • Advance Lind Acquisition 632,396 ·- 632,396 636,905 -- - - 636,905 - 1,269,301 1,224,526 

c.pitu Projecto Fund (313,2~ Ql3J~ (35,000) ---- ---- QS,000) - ~ (412,098) 

Total Other r,nancu,g Sour- CU-) 632J96 (2Sl,2~ )81130 724 405 (237,759) ---- ---- 486646 867,n6 1,032,428 

Exe.., of Reven.., and Othor Sowceo 
over (under) Expenditure, and 
OthorU'°' 7)7,699 (299,712) 07,987 911,382 )27,294 (105,711) 46,9)4 1,179,899 7,277,597 8,895,483 1,566,110 

Fund Batanc.., July I 27,672,850 912J97 28J8S,247 21,249,292 3,541,976 2,899,988 26),406 27J!S4,662 )0,024,037 86,S63,!!46 84,997,836 

Fund Balanceo, June 30 s 28,410.549 s 612 685 s 29 023 234 $ 22,160,674 $ 3,869,270 $ 2,794,277 $~$ 29134 561 s 37JOl,634 S 95,459,429 S 86,563,946 

The notes to the financial rtatements are 8Jl integral part of this statement. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

ASSETS 

Cash and Marketable Securities 

Total Current Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities· AGENCY FUND 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

ST ATE RETIREMENT FUND 

July 1, 

1998 Additions Deductions 

$ 2,853,264 $ 227,007 $ 192,612 

$ 2,853.264 $ 227 007 $ 192 612 

$ 2,853,264 $ 227,007 $ 192,612 

$ 2,853,264 $ 227007 $ 192612 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 

EXHIBITF-3 

June JO, 

1999 

$ 2,887,659 

$ 2 887 6S9 

s 2,887,659 

s 2 887 6S9 



The Chesapeake Carousel at R. M. Wat.kins Regional Parl< delights riders of all ages. 

GENERAL ACCOUNT GROUPS 

General Fixed Assets Account Group is used to account for fixed assets of the 
Commission, other than those accounted for in the proprietary and fiduciary 
funds. 

NOTE: A General Long-Term Obligations Account Group is used to account for 
all long-term obligations of the Commission except those accounted for in the 
proprietary funds. This Account Group is presented in Exhibit 1 of the General 
Purpose Financial Statements and is described in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

General Fixed Assets: 

Land 

Buildinp and Improvements 

Machinery and Equipment 

Construction in Progress 

Total General Fixed Assets 

Investment in General Fixed Assets From: 

Capital Project Funds -

General Obligation Bonds 

Intergovermnental 

General Fund Revenues 

Contributions 

Total Investments in General Fixed Assets 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Sources 

June 30, 1999 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Montgomery 

County 

119,000,762 

81,015,618 

8,152,383 

8,170,996 

216,339,759 

88,501,657 

Sl,S41,71S 

13,053,145 

63,243,242 

216,339,759 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Prince 

George's 

County 

91,720,068 

146,402,580 

22,309,171 

41,126,472 

301,558,291 

139,579,896 

92,913,343 

41,782,420 

27,282,632 

301,558,291 

EXHIBITG-1 

TOTAL 

$ 210,720,830 

227,418,198 

30,461,554 

49,297,468 

$ S 17,898,050 

$ 228,081,553 

144,455,058 

54,835,565 

90,525,874 

$ SI 7 ,898,050 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITG-2 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets -
By Function and Activity 

June 30, 1999 

CQMMISSIQN TOTAL 
Building., Machinery 

and and 
Function and Activity Total Land Improvements Equipment 

General Govenunent $ 482,394 $ $ 83,744 $ 398,6.50 
Planning and Zoning 6,610,702 .52,138 1,908,170 4,6.50,394 
Parks 461,.507,486 

Total General Fixed Assets 
210,668,692 22.5,426,284 2.5,412,.510 

Allocated to Functions 468,600,.582 $ 210,720,830 $ 227,418,198 $ 30,461,.5.54 

Construction in Progress 49,297,468 
Total General Fixed Assets $ 517,898,050 

MONTGOMERY QQllliIY 

General Govenunent $ 260,572 $ $ 42,885 $ 217,687 
Planning and Zoning 3,406,368 52,138 1,901,988 1,452,242 
Parks 204,501,823 118,948,624 79,070,745 6,482,454 

Total General Fixed Assets 
Allocated to Functions 208,168,763 $ 119,000,762 $ 81,015,618 $ 8,152,383 

Construction in Progress 8,170,996 
Total General Fixed Assets $ 216,339,7.59 

fRlliCE !JEQRQE'S CQUNTY 

General Government $ 221,822 $ $ 40,859 $ 180,963 
Planning and Zoning 3,204,334 6,182 3,198,1.52 
Parks 257,005,663 91,720,068 146,3.5.5,.539 18,930,0.56 

Total General Fixed Assets 
Allocated to Functions 260,431,819 $ 91,720,068 $ 146,402,.580 $ 22,309,171 

Construction in Progress 41,126,472 
Total General Fixed Assets $ 301,.5.58,291 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
EXHIBITG-3 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets· 
By Function and Activity 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

CQMMISSION IQIAI. 
General General 

Fixed Fixed 

Asseta Assets 

Function and Activity July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions Transfers June 30, 1999 

General Govemmcnt s 475,540 $ 26,551 s 19,697 s s 482,394 

Planning and Zoning 5,890,398 737,844 17,540 6,610,702 

Parb 430,347,005 33,087,146 2,547,785 621,120 461,507,486 

Comtniction in Progrcsa 37,557,712 26,399,613 14,659,857 49,297,468 

Total General Fixed Aaeta s 474,270.655 $ 60,251,154 s 17244879 $ 621.120 $ 517,898,050 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

General Government $ 257,547 $ 3,025 $ $ $ 260,572 

Planning and Zoning 3,269,990 153,918 17,540 3,406,368 

Parb 188,837,654 15,806,637 763,588 621,120 204,501,823 

Construction in Progress 11,834,446 2,952,080 6,615,530 8, 170,996 

Total General Fixed Assets $ 204,199.637 $ 18,915,660 $ 7 396 658 $ 621120 $ 216,339.759 

PRINCE GEORGE'S CQUNTY 

General Government $ 217,993 $ 23,526 $ 19,697 $ $ 221,822 

Planning and Zoning 2,620,408 583,926 3,204,334 

Parb 241,509,351 17,280,509 1,784,197 257,005,663 

Construction in Progress 25,723,266 23,447,533 8,044,327 41,126,472 

Total General Fixed Assets s 270,071,018 $ 41,335,494 $ 9,848,221 $ s 301,558,291 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this schedule. 
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• PART III • 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

Hadley's Playground in Potomac, a public/private partnership, offers specially-designed facilities for 
children with disabilities to play together with their friends and family. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-1 

General Governmental Expenditures by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Culture-Recreation Park 
Planning Acquisition 

Fiscal General And Park And 
Year Government Zoning Oeerations Recreation Develoement Qebt Service Total 

1990 $ 3,944,206 $ 9,656,861 $ 29,558,794 $ 4,725,857 $ 10,493,827 $ 4,325,130 $ 62,704,675 

1991 4,338,911 11,116,353 31,705,573 5,437,799 11,634,551 4,057,435 68,290,622 

1992 4,574,169 11,135,877 31,612,455 6,059,657 9,151,271 5,247,121 67,780,550 

1993 4,351,130 11,166,541 32,488,999 6,395,826 9,000,480 4,916,273 68,319,249 

1994 4,753,717 11,379,693 32,231,027 6,669,068 7,668,748 4,077,257 66,779,510 

1995 4,663,950 12,029,701 35,561,927 7,947,953 7,381,419 3,905,317 71 ,490,267 

1996 4,493,900 11,726,301 37,112,446 8,707,367 6,040,622 4,329,544 72,410,180 

1997 4,949,621 13,067,495 38,060,834 9,347,189 12,319,049 4,180,980 81,925,168 

1998 4,985,152 12,503,437 39,019,404 10,913,409 9,261,163 3,595,621 80,278,186 

1999 4,984,274 13,109,778 42,033,957 9,360,590 7,639,025 3,618,820 80,746,444 

- eRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 0 
N 

Culture-Recreation Park 
Planning Acquisition 

Fiscal General And Park And 
Year Government Zoning Oeerations Recreation Develoement Qebt Service Total 

1990 $ 3,700,691 $ 9,223,822 $ 28,701,695 $ 23,223,660 $ 10,437,125 $ 6,062,904 $ 81,349,897 

1991 4,166,097 10,595,275 31,291,740 26,068,850 16,516,417 5,902,918 94,541,297 

1992 4,683,976 10,686,633 31,042,743 26,968,510 19,024,608 8,439,314 100,845,784 

1993 4,730,838 10,863,393 34,576,857 28,372,252 9,249,302 8,944,217 96,736,859 

1994 5,316,425 12,047,360 35,388,157 30,814,415 19,643,068 9,856,836 113,066,261 

1995 4,973,592 13,245,607 38,742,712 35,215,012 21 ,344,005 9,861,953 123,382,881 

1996 5,217,449 12,881,808 38,032,695 35,196,607 12,590,746 10,133,399 114,052.704 

1997 5,611,371 13,928,468 41,269,238 34,819,087 14,151,322 9,027,160 118,806,646 

1998 5,609,422 14,024,336 41.782,331 36,293,297 17,643,444 11,852,306 127,205, 136 

1999 5,946,352 14,243,529 45,907,274 37,825,764 36,728,321 11.554,197 152,205,437 

Note: Includes General, Capital Projects, Debt Service and Enterprise Funds. Debt Service in Prince George's 
County includes Park Acquisition and Development Bonds, Series F-2, recorded in the Property Management 
Internal Service Fund (retired in fiscal year 1993). Enterprise Funds which are primarily recreational facilities and 
activities are included in Recreation. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-2 

General Revenues by Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

General 
Fiscal Property Inter- Charges for Interest Obligation 
Year Taxes ~o~ernm~ntal Services Earnings Other Total Bonds Sold 
1990 $ 47,559,822 $ 5,236,260 $ 4,260,352 $ 1,589,007 $ 3,065,505 $ 61 ,710,946 $ 14,175,000 (1) 
1991 50,258,186 5,694,105 4,557,480 1,935,741 3,858,132 66,303,644 
1992 49,080,113 5,601 ,784 5,424,367 1,227,119 3,693,555 65,026,938 6,000,000 
1993 51 ,323,456 2,335,696 6,092,012 952,190 3,560,859 64,264,213 
1994 52,734,344 3,199,677 6,182,389 971 ,811 3,461 ,964 66,550,185 5,500,000 (2) 
1995 55,233,140 6,974,552 7,358,834 1,528,618 3,945,300 75,040,444 5,000,000 
1996 53,880,270 5,424,794 7,614,645 1,527,593 3,969,092 72,416,394 8,700,000 (3) 
1997 57,612,812 6,654,626 7,827,378 1,231 ,641 4 ,227,264 77,553,721 
1998 60,270,773 6,797,726 9,120,287 1,586,354 4,361 ,403 82,136,543 
1999 60,270,408 5,921 ,195 9,134,201 1,670,534 4,410,41 3 81,406,751 7,000,000 

- eBINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 
0 

General w 
Fiscal Property Inter- Charges for Interest Obligation 
Year Taxes GQ~!:mm!:D1s1I Services Earnings Other Total Bonds Sold 
1990 $ 60,21 3,386 $ 2,301 ,741 $ 5,439,535 $ 2,325,733 $ 4,336,093 $ 74,616,488 $ 35,890,000 (1 ) 
1991 65,044,486 3,537,612 5,801 ,218 2,653,600 4,511 ,377 81 ,548,293 
1992 75,470,556 4,191 ,625 6,332,097 1,502,561 5,526,574 93,023,41 3 23,000,000 
1993 85,998,641 4 ,032,880 6,468,725 1,896,368 5,678,686 104,075,300 15,250,000 
1994 91 ,143,535 4,331 ,934 6,622,486 2,376,165 4,426,002 108,900,122 14,500,000 (2) 
1995 92,571 ,349 7,308,602 6,988,014 3,733,213 6,323,419 116,924,597 
1996 94,857,674 1,933,128 6,731,893 3,653,354 5,189,727 112,365,776 30,025,000 (3) 
1997 96,816,650 5,360,060 7,106,102 4,217,988 10,581 ,819 124,082,619 33,000,000 
1998 98,538,298 2,125,267 7,402,645 5,875,336 5,231,154 11 9,172,700 21,000,000 

1999 101 ,308,740 10,368,201 7,496,543 5,208,609 
7,325,000 (3) 

7,158,655 131,540,748 21,000,000 (2) 

Note: Includes General, Capital Projects, Debt Service and Enterprise Funds. 
(1) Includes Refunding Bonds 
(2) Issued to retire Bond Anticipation Notes 
(3) Refunding Bonds 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-3 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Prior Years 
Taxes 

Penalties Percent of 
Current Percent and Total 

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Interest Total Collections 

Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections to TaK L~~ 
1990 $ 47,041,546 $ 46,639,179 99 % $ 920,643 $ 47,559,822 101 % 

1991 50,234,549 49,682,906 99 575,280 50,258,186 100 

1992 49,168,596 48,226,986 98 853,127 49,080,113 100 

1993 52,005,555 51,202,659 98 120,797 51,323,456 99 

1994 52,767,491 51,997,064 99 737,280 52,734,344 100 

1995 55,410,789 55,247,895 100 (14,755) 55,233,1 40 100 

1996 54,476,197 54,062,888 99 (182,618) 53,880,270 99 

1997 58,632,597 57,916,789 99 (303,977) 57,612,812 98 

1998 59,150,686 58,603,216 99 1,667,557 60,270,773 102 

I 1999 60,547,511 59,484,336 98 786,072 60,270,408 100 -0 
~ 
I 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Prior Years 
Taxes 

Penalties Percent of 
Current Percent and Total 

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Interest Total Collections 

Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections to TaK L~~ 
1990 $ 60,154,776 $ 59,590,284 99 % $ 623,102 $ 60,213,386 100 % 

1991 64,857,973 64,177,491 99 866,995 65,044,486 100 

1992 76,056,847 74,730,404 98 740,152 75,470,556 99 

1993 86,738,199 85,207,056 98 791,585 85,998,641 99 

1994 90,765,239 89,580,087 99 1,563,448 91,143,535 100 

1995 92,551,211 91,879,635 99 691,714 92,571,349 100 

1996 94,707,563 93,970,990 99 886,684 94,857,674 100 

1997 97,553,796 96,689,551 99 127,099 96,816,650 99 

1998 98,618,464 97,670,607 99 867,691 98,538,298 100 

1999 101 ,339,962 100,037,283 99 1,271,457 101,308,740 100 

Source: Total Tax Levy - Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-4 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

MQt'::4I~QMEBY QQ!Jt::4TY Ratio of Total 
Assessed Value 

Real Pro~erty Total(1} To Total 
Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Estimated 
Year Value Actual Value Value Actual Value Actual Value 

1990 $ 18,782,192 $ 50,392,741 $ 21 ,525,342 $ 53,135,890 '40.51 
1991 20,622,521 56,134,727 23,614,398 59,126,604 39.94 
1992 22,642.~51 57,644,986 25,856,767 60,858,802 '42.'49 
1993 24,530,411 64,826,668 27,837,198 68, 133,'455 40.86 
1994 25,462,671 66,171 ,182 28,823,025 69,531,537 41 .45 
1995 25,796,030 67,107,259 29,172,981 70,'48'4,210 41 .39 
1996 26,057,529 66,677,402 29,575,004 70,194,878 42.13 
1997 26,603,652 68,284,529 30,392,876 72,073,752 42.17 
1998 27,274,641 69,295,328 30,929,092 72,949,779 42.40 
1999 27,906,080 71 ,480,738 31,664,627 75,239,284 42.09 -0 

EB1t'::4QE ~l;OB~E'S QQ!,.!~TY V, Ratio of Total 
Assessed Value 

Real Pro~erty Total(1} To Total 
Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Estimated 
Year Value Actual Value Value Actual Value A!:.h!al ~alue 
1990 $ 10,020,223 $ 25,332,391 $ 12,022,023 $ 27,334,392 43.98 
1991 10,813,341 29,215,357 12,935,738 31 ;337,755 41.28 
1992 11 ,752,984 32,049,369 13,987,343 34,283,729 40.80 
1993 12,864,122 34,105,757 15,177,630 36,419,265 41.67 
1994 13,501,439 34,929,206 15,829,304 37,257,071 42.49 
1995 13,961 ,904 35,575,591 16,381,236 37,994,923 43.11 
1996 14,188,944 35,404,010 16,678,956 37,894,021 44.01 
1997 14,319,088 35,827,507 16,991,422 38,499,841 44.13 
1998 14,393,723 36,104,232 17,159,141 38,869,650 44.15 
1999 14,630,433 36,423,659 17,525,979 39,319,204 44.57 

Note: (1) Total includes real property, business personal property, public utility operating property and 
domestic shares. 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-5 

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Over1apping Governments 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

M-NCPPC TAXES 

MONIGQMERY CO!..!~TY 
Countywide 

Advance Property 

Fiscal Park Park Land Taxes 

Year Administration Operations Maintenance Acquisition Total Within County Total 

1990 $ 0.0750 $ 0.1530 $ 0.0200 $ 0.0030 $ 0.2510 $ 2.4830 $ 2.73-40 

1991 0.0720 0.1500 0.0200 0.0030 0.2450 2.3-450 2.5900 

1992 0.0630 0.1330 0.0200 0.0030 0.2190 2.3730 2.5920 

1993 0.0630 0.1290 0.0200 0.0030 0.2150 2.2100 2.4250 

1994 0.0620 0.1260 0.0200 0.0030 0.2110 2.2260 2.4370 

1995 0.0650 0.1300 0.0200 0.0030 0.2180 2.2550 2.4730 

1996 0.0610 0.1260 0.0200 0.0040 0.2110 2.2850 2.4960 

1997 0.0630 0.1340 0.0200 0.0040 0.2210 2.2780 2.4990 

1998 0.0610 0.1330 0.0200 0.0040 0.2180 2.2630 2.4810 

- 1999 0.0610 0.1330 0.0200 0.0040 0.2180 
-~ 

2.4530 
0 
0\ 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Countywide 

Advance Property 

Fiscal Park Land Taxes 

Year Administration Operations Recreation Acquisition Total Within County Total 

1990 $ 0.1015 $ 0.3088 $ 0.1185 $ 0.0062 $ 0.5350 $ 2.6450 $ 3.1 800 

1991 0.1015 0.3088 0.1185 0.0062 0.5350 2.6450 3.1800 

1992 0.0992 0.3632 0.1164 0.0062 0.5850 2.8450 3.4300 

1993 0.1103 0.3406 0.1529 0.0062 0.6100 2.7750 3.3850 

1994 0.1103 0.3587 0.1348 0.0062 0.6100 2.7520 3.3620 

1995 0.1103 0.3587 0.1348 0.0062 0.6100 2.7580 3.3680 

1996 0.1103 0.3587 0.1348 0.0062 0.6100 2.7630 3.3730 

1997 0.1103 0.3534 0.1401 0.0062 0.6100 2.7360 3.3460 

1998 0.1103 0.3534 0.1401 0.0062 0.61 00 2.7410 3.3510 

1999 0.1103 0.3534 0.1401 0.0062 0.6100 2.7360 3.3460 

Note: Rates are per $100 of assessed valuation. 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 



Year 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

Year 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt 
To Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Net Ratio of Net 
Assessed Bonded Bonded Debt to 

Population Value (1) Debt (2) Assessed Value 

757,027 $ 18,687,588 $ 28,100 0.15 
765,000 20,441,824 25,755 0.13 
nJ,ooo 22,3n,637 28,no 0.13 
785,000 24,105,934 26,070 0.11 
798,000 24,918,829 24,220 0.10 
810,000 25,365,173 27,730 0.11 
819,000 25,640,317 26,970 0.11 
828,000 26,459,376 25,185 0.10 
837,000 27,052,214 23,585 0.09 
846,000 27,701 ,359 28,985 0.10 

EBINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Net Ratio of Net 
Assessed Bonded Bonded Debt to 

Population Value (1) (4) Debt (2) Assessed Value 

TABLE T-6 

Net Bonded 
Debt Per 
Capita 

$ 37.12 
33.67 
37.22 
33.21 
30.35 
34.23 
32.93 
30.42 
28.18 
34.26 

Net Bonded 
Debt Per 
Capita 

1990 729,268 $ 10,814,800 $ 62,310 (3) 0.58 $ 85.44 
1991 736,525 11,655,534 59,640 (3) 
1992 744,083 12,631,750 78,470 (3) 
1993 752,830 13,869,994 89,320 
1994 764,053 14,250,000 84,700 
1995 764,053 14,606,000 80,530 
1996 767,413 14,978,000 78,460 
1997 n3,810 15,385,000 107,095 
1998 790,335 15,839,475 122,815 
1999 nS,424 16,274,756 117,980 

Notes: (1) Metropolitan District only - OOO's omitted. 
(2) Above figures for net bonded debt exclude indebtedness related to Advance Land 

Acquisition, which is intended to be a revolving fund - OOO's omitted. 
(3) Includes Park Acquisition and Development Bonds, Series F-2, recorded in the 

Property Management Internal Service Fund. 
(4) Estimated by The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission. 

Source: Assessed Value and Population - Montgomery County and Prince George's County 
Governments. 
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0.51 
0.62 
0.64 
0.59 
0.55 
0.52 
0.70 
0.78 
0.72 

80.97 
105.46 
118.65 
110.86 
105.40 
102.24 
138.40 
155.40 
151.95 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-7 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
Park Acquisition and Development Bonds 

As of June 30, 1999 

Park Acquisition and Development Bonds 
Guaranteed by Montgomery County 

Assessed Valuation - Metropolitan District for 
fiscal year ending June 30, 1999 ................... ............................................... ........... $ 27,701,359,000 

Annual Revenue from 9 cents mandatory park tax levied 
for each $100 of assessed valuation ..................................................... ...... .......... . $ 24,931 ,223 

Legal Debt Margin -

Revenue available from 9 cents mandatory park tax 
over ne>et thirty years .................... ................................................................... .... $ __ ..:..7..:..4___,7 •c::..9..:...36.:....:,_69..:...0:.... 

Debt service over ne>et thirty years on $28,985,000 bonds 
and notes issued and outstanding at June 30, 1999 .................................. . $ _ __ 4_0....:.., 7--'-0-'--2.,_,0..:,.0_;:_0 

Amount of tax available for debt service on future bonds .................................... $ = ==7=0==7 '!::2=34='=6=90= 

Park Acquisition and Development Bonds 
Guaranteed by Prince George's County 

Assessed Valuation - Metropolitan District for 
fiscal year ending June 30, 1999 ............................... ................... ............... ............ $ 16,274,756,000 

Annual Revenue from 1 O cents mandatory park tax levied 
for each $100 of assessed valuation ... ...... ............................................. ................ $ 16,274,756 ----'---'~:.... 

Legal Debt Margin -

Revenue available from 1 O cents mandatory park tax 
over ne>et thirty years. .... ...................... ......................................................... ....... $ __ ..:..4..:..8..:..8=,2--'-42=c•c::..6.:...80=--

Debt service over ne>et thirty years on $117,980,000 bonds 
and notes issued and outstanding at June 30, 1999 .................... ..... ....... . $ ___ 16_4....:.., 1_3_1.,_,0...;_0.;_0 

Amount of tax available for debt service on future bonds ......................... .......... . $ ===3=2=4,!:::::1=1 =1,=6=80= 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

June 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY PRINCE GEORGE'S 
COUNTY COUNTY 

Direct Debt Outstanding $ 51876843 $ 123,567,005 

Overlapping Debt 

Montgomery County Debt 1,247,513,054 (1) 

Prince George's County Debi 601 ,085,055 (1) 

Washington Suburban Sanitary 

Commission Debt 1,142,162,681 644,500,000 

Montgomery County Revenue 

Authority Debt 45,463,214 

Prince George's County Industrial Authority 

Lease Revenue Bonds 55,195,825 

Montgomery County Housing 

Opportunities Commission 648,064,334 

Prince George's County State 

of Maryland Participation Loans 8 016 207 

Total Overlapping Debt 3,083,203,283 1,308,797,087 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 3,135,080,126 1,432,364,092 

Less Self-Supporting Debt 

M-NCPPC - Revenue Bonds 4,058,181 

M-NCPPC - Revenue Notes 9,600,000 

M-NCPPC - Notes Payable 3,673,662 1,982,005 

Montgomery County Debi 75,900,000 

Prince George's County Debi 174,349,532 

Washington Suburban Sanitary 

Commission Debt 1,142,162,681 626,600,000 

Montgomery County Revenue 

Authority Debt 45,463,214 

Prince George's County Industrial Authority 

Lease Revenue Bonds 8,410,000 

Montgomery County Housing 

Opportunities Commission 635,164,334 

Prince George's County State 

of Maryland Participation Loans 8,016,207 

Total Self-Supporting Debt 1,916,022,072 819,357,744 

Net Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 1,219,058,054 $ 613,006,348 

Note: (1) Overlapping debt does not include the debt of towns, cities and villages aggregating 
$34,241,994 in Montgomery County and n. a. in Prince George's County. 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments, and Washington Suburban 
Sanitary Commission. 
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TABLE T-8 

TOTAL DEBT 
OUTSTANDING 

$ 175 443 848 

1,247,513,054 

601 ,085,055 

1,786,662,681 

45,463,214 

55,195,825 

648,064,334 

8 016 207 

4,392,000,370 

4,567,444,218 

4,058,181 

9,600,000 

5,655,667 

75,900,000 

174,349,532 

1,768,762,681 

45,463,214 

8,410,000 

635,164,334 

8,016,207 

2,735,379,816 

$ 1,832,064,402 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Demographic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Per Capita Labor Unemployment 

Year Population Income Force Rate 

1990 757,027 $ 32,678 442,215 2.5 % 
1991 765,000 33,311 442,971 3.2 
1992 773,000 34,217 454,378 3.7 
1993 785,000 35,408 450,597 3.5 
1994 798,000 36,917 462,202 2.9 

1995 810,000 38,354 463,112 2.9 

1996 819,000 39,936 474,872 2.6 
1997 828,000 41,539 469,277 2.6 
1998 837,000 43,350 467,000 2.3 (3) 

1999 846,000 44,750 478,600 2.0 (3) 

EBINCE GEOBQE'S COUNTY 

Per Capita Labor Unemployment 

Year Population (1) Income (2) Force Rate 

1990 729,268 20,744 421 ,642 3.9 

1991 736,525 20,950 424 ,231 4.9 
1992 744,083 21 ,523 443,596 5.7 

1993 752,830 22,380 432,990 5.9 

1994 764,053 23,169 474,485 4.4 

1995 764,053 23,774 485,100 4.7 

1996 767,413 24,639 463,700 5.1 
1997 773,810 25,194 463,690 4.6 

1998 790,335 * 454,528 4.3 (3) 
1999 776,424 * 444 ,014 3.8 (3) 

Notes: 

(1) U.S Census Bureau as adjusted by the Research and Public Facilities Planning Division, M-NCPPC 

(2) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Economics Measurement Division 
(figures for FY 1988 through FY 1995 were revised; updated figures for FY 1997 and 1998 are not yet available) 

(3) U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics as of July 

* Not Available 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 
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TABLE T-9 

Registered 

Pupils 

100,259 

103,732 

107,140 

110,037 

113,429 

117,082 

120,291 

122,505 

125,035 

127,918 

Registered 

Pupils 

103,731 

105,891 

109,662 

111,132 

111 ,823 

116,383 

119,951 

122,831 

125,637 
129,793 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for 

General Obligation Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MQ!H~QMEBY QQU~TY 

Total Total 

Fiscal Debt General 

Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures 

1990 $ 2,905,000 $ 1,385,314 $ 4,290,314 $ 62,704,675 

1991 2,625,000 1,371,109 3,996,109 68,290,622 

1992 3,465,000 1,744,729 5,209,729 67,780,550 

1993 3,180,000 1,696,935 4,876,935 68,319,249 

1994 2,330,000 1,636,139 3,966,139 66,779,510 

1995 1,970,000 1,926,774 3,896,774 71 ,490,267 

1996 2,260,000 1,930,963 4,190,963 72,410,180 

1997 2,370,000 1,787,569 4,157,569 81,925,168 

1998 1,905,000 1,676,695 3,581,695 80,278,186 

1999 1,905,000 1,704,211 3,609,211 80,746,444 

EBINCE GEOB~E'~ QQUNTY 

Total Total 

Fiscal Debt General 

Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures 

1990 $ 3,405,000 $ 2,617,329 $ 6,022,329 $ 81,349,897 

1991 2,905,000 2,822,994 5,727,994 94,541 ,297 

1992 4,615,000 3,727,584 8,342,584 100,845,784 

1993 4,845,000 4,009,834 8,854,834 96,736,859 

1994 5,065,000 4,596,086 9,661,086 113,066,261 

1995 4,615,000 5,206,174 9,821,174 123,382,881 

1996 5,040,000 4,892,298 9,932,298 114,052,704 

1997 4,685,000 4,303,838 8,988,838 118,806,646 

1998 5,480,000 6,294,373 11 ,774,373 127,205,136 

1999 5,070,000 6,281 ,752 11,351,752 152,205,437 

Note: Total general expenditures includes General, Capital Projects, Debt Service and 

Enterprise Funds. Debt Service in Prince George's County includes Park Acquisition 

and Development Bonds, Series F-2, recorded in the Property Management Internal 

Service Fund through fiscal year 1993. 
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TABLE T-10 

Ratio of 
Debt Service 

to General 

Expenditures 

6.84 % 

5.85 
7.69 
7.1 4 

5.94 

5.45 

5.79 

5.07 

4.46 

4.47 

Ratio of 
Debt Service 

to General 

Expenditures 

7.40 % 

6.06 
8.27 

9.15 

8.54 

7.96 

8.71 

7.57 

9.26 

7.46 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-11 

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Dollars in Millions) 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Total 
Estimated 

Total Number Re~dential Commercial Real 
Fiscal of Building Construction Construction Bank Property 
Year Permits Value (1} Value (1} Deeosits Value 

1990 14,321 $ 926 $ 436 $ 7,260 $ 50,393 
1991 11,217 590 316 7,543 56,135 
1992 11,719 423 239 7,738 57,645 
1993 12,043 479 246 7,839 64,827 
1994 11 ,769 468 100 7,866 66,171 
1995 13,500 583 70 7,710 67,107 
1996 12,677 765 116 7,994 66,677 
1997 13,837 726 183 7,973 68,285 
1998 14,162 743 331 8,376 69,295 
1999 15,130 787 287 71,481 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Total 
Residential Estimated 

Building Residential Commercial Real 
Fiscal Permits Construction Construction Bank Property 
Year Issued Value (2} Value (2} Deeosits Value 

1990 5,047 $ 379 $ 270 $ 3,664 $ 25,332 
1991 3,026 224 162 3,868 29,215 
1992 3,747 290 106 4,088 32,049 
1993 5,249 328 124 3,957 34,106 
1994 3,864 291 102 4,016 34,929 
1995 3,604 299 98 3,941 35,576 
1996 3,205 276 417 3,929 35,404 
1997 2,815 257 168 3,854 35,828 
1998 3,430 318 190 3,873 36,104 
1999 2,582 291 286 36,424 

Notes: (1) Estimated market value of new construction added to the real property tax base. 

(2) Estimated value of new construction on building permits. 

• Not Available. 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-12 

Principal Taxpayers 

June 30, 1999 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Percentage 
of Total 

Total Assessed Real Other 
W<RIYtc Assessment Valuation Property Property 

Potomac Electric Power Company $ 996,240,780 3.15 % $ 23,625,540 $ 972,615,240 
Bell Atlantic 656,382,670 2.07 24,114,980 632,267,690 
Washington Gas Light Company 172,029,460 0.54 6,540,830 165,488,630 
International Business Machines 91 ,778,710 0.29 16,649,680 75,1~9.030 
May Department Stores 80,543,280 0.25 27,444,780 53,098,500 
Montgomery Mall 78,371 ,130 0.25 78,371,130 
Bryant F. Foulger, Trustee 56,683,540 0.18 56,683,540 
Albert & R. Abramson, et. al. 51 ,945,040 0.16 51 ,945,040 
Wheaton Plaza Regional Shopping Center 46,182,510 0.15 46,1 82,510 
Marbeth Partnership 45,274,990 0.14 45,274,990 

Total $ 2,275,432.110 7.19 % $ 376,833,020 $ 1,898,599,090 

Total Assessable Base $ 31 ,664,626,551 100.00 % 

EBINQI; ~J;QB~l;'S COUNTY 

Percentage 
of Total 

Total Assessed Real Other 
Taxpayer Assessment Valuation Property Property 

Potomac Electric Power Company $ 977,977,140 5.58 % $ 13,539,770 $ 964,437,370 
Bell Atlantic Maryland 386,429,690 2.20 386,429,690 
Washington Gas Light Company 151 ,633,140 0.87 1,713,380 149,919,760 

JKC Stadium 99,401 ,933 0.57 70,783,263 28,618,670 

Baltimore Gas & Electric Company 85,922,030 0.49 1,470,530 84,451,500 

Panda-Brandywine LTD Partnership 77,217,230 0.44 2,230,880 74,986,350 

Giant Foods, Incorporated 49,036,720 0.28 49,036,720 

Secretary of HUD 42,500,530 0.24 42,500,530 

Secretary of Veterans Affairs 41 ,415,720 0.24 41 ,41 5,720 

Jones Communication of MD, Inc. 37,133,200 0.21 1,484,230 35,648,970 

Total $ 1,948,667,333 11 .12 % $ 175,138,303 $ 1,773,529,030 

Total Assessable Base $ 17,525,978,395 100.00 % 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE 

TABLE T-13 

TYPE OF COVERAGE AND NAME OF COMPANY 
Seff lnau;;d In Con)unc&n wlh 
Montgomefy County Sell IMurance Fund: 

o W04Ul'I' Compenatlon and Employe(s 
Llabllty 

oComp-.i.. General and Auto Llabllty 
o Public Offlclal Llobllty 
o Police Prolanlonal Liability 
oAutomoble Physical Damage 

oExc.nLlabllty 

Insured In Conjunction wtth Mon1gomery 
County Sell Insurance Fund: 

of¥hlbllonFloaw 
TraveleB Indemnity Co. 

oAII Rilk Real and Per9onal Property 
Contracto(s Equipment and OW!erenc:e 
In Condllons and EDP 

Boiler and Machinery 
Trr.'9lers Indemnity Co. 

Insurance purchased dnc:tly by the Commlnlon: 
o Airport Llabl lty Including Produe1s, 

Hangar K"pe(a and Nonowned Aircraft 
Anoclated Aviation UndelWl1ters 

o Business Nonowned Aircraft LlabUy and 
Physlcal Damage 
Anoclat9d Aviation Undefw!lters 

0Addllon1I Premium En-ment 
e>rtendlng cowrage to apply to Alrlhow 

Anoclat9d Aviation UndelWl1ters 

oFlne Arts Floater (Duvall Tool 
Collection) 

Hartford 

o Public EmployMS Blanket Bond 
Peerlen lnsu111nce 

0 Public Offlclol Bond 
(Secmary-Treasurer) 

Fidelity and Dlpod Company 

0 Public Offlclal Bond (Elc8cut!Ye 
Olrecto<) 

Fidelity and Depod Company 

o Depositors Fo,gery Bond 
Fidelity and Depost Company 

o T111vel Accident 

o Maryland Baseball Limle<! Partnership 
(Bowie stadium) 

St Paul lnsu111nce Company 

o GAi Inland Marine 
College Park Aviation Museum 

POLICY/BOND 
NUMBER 

T JCMB225T962693 

T JCMB225T962693 

ALl604866 

BN0604867 

46603997 

42 MSAP2002 

01882 34 61 

59614 n~ 

3066 59 36 

94810~1 

ABL648M9 

CK00801578 

CIM04050501 

Miscellaneous Bond• purehaled dnc:tly by the Commission 
o License and Perml Bond 

Peeflen ln1urance Company 01~~ 77 
P"rten ln1urance Company 01~~79 

AS OF JUNE 30, 1999 

POLICY/BOND PERIOD 
FROM TO 

07/01/98 07/01199 

07/01/98 06/30/99 

01118199 01/18/2000 

01/18199 01/18/2000 

09/12/98 09/13/99 

05125199 05/25/200() 

07/01/98 07/01199 

07/01/98 07/01199 

08/14/93 08/14199 

07/01/98 07/01/99 

07/01/98 07/01/99 

03/15199 03/15/2000 

11/05/98 11/05/99 

03/31/99 03/31/2000 
04/08/99 04/08/2000 
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COVERAGE 

Maryland State and $100,000 
Employe(s Lllblllty; Special 
Police C.pltal Centre; $50,000 
accident, $500,000 disease 

$10,000,000 combined s ingle limit 
« Bodily Inj ury and Property 
Damage 

Comprallen..,. and Collltlon $1,000 
deductible nch Ion 

$10,000,000 combined single nm• 
$2,000,000 deductible each Ion 

$250,000 111 rilk on d isplay $20,000, 
(blanket aggregate); $10,000 any 
one Item, $250 deductible; $25,000 
any one conwyance 

Actual calh value, broad form 
cowrage per acheduled lilting 
with $5,000 S.I.R. per occurrence 

$100,000,000 Ion limit 
$250,000 S.I.R. per occurrence 
lneludea EDP equipment $1 ,000 
deductible, $2,500 deductible for 
flood & earthquake 
Actual ca1h value, broad form 
cowrage per aeheduled l ilting 
wtth $5,000 S.I.R. per occurrence 

$10,000,000 per occurrence; 
$10,000,000 per completed operation, 
$1,000,000 each a.-cralt; 
$5,000,000 each Ion; $2,500 

deductible nch occurrence 

$2,000,000 per occurrence; In 
motion deductible • S500 
Not In motion deductible - $100 

$10,000,000 per occurrence 

$50,000: $250 deductible 

$100,000 

$200,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 

$50,000 Prln. Sum; $500,000 per accident 

ANNUAL 
PREMIUM 

$ 32,900 

$ 850 

$ 47,190 

S 29,250 

$ 3,500 

s 2,500 

$ 1,246 

s 3,710 

$ 2,160 

$ 175 

s 1,325 

$ 350 

$500,000 Bui dlng Con1en1S S 79,609 
$6,500,000 Bui ding 
$2.,000,000 General LlabWlty 
$1 ,000,000 Automobie LlabWlty 
Auto Physical Damage: S500 Collision deductible 

$100 Com pre hen..,. deductible 
$100,000 Garage Keepers LlabNlty: $250 deductible 

$300,000 Bef11ner Helicopter S 2,491 
S 68,000 WIibur Wright Robot 
S 5,000 Untcheduled Items 
$310,000 1917 Curtil Jenny Plane 

$12,000,000 Excess Liability 

$5,000 Driveway Entrance 6724 NeedWood Rd., RockVille 
$12,500 Driveway Entrance Acceleratlon & Deceleration 

for 6724 Needwood Rd., Rockville 

$ 100 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TableT-14 

SUPPLEMENTAL ENTERPRISE INFORMATION 

Condensed Schedule of Revenues and Expenses 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Bm;ceatiQllll E11.ililin 

MONTGOMEBY COUNTY 

Conference Golf Ice Indoor Park 
Centers Courses Rinks Tennis Facilities Totals 

Operating Revenues $ 327,358 $ 6,989,681 $ 1,396,410 $ 1,079,305 $ 1,335,182 $ 11 ,127,936 
Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 485,696 5,049,381 1,645,155 556,237 959,403 s,695,sn 

Operating Income {LO$$) 

Before Depreciation (158,338) 1,940,300 (248,745) 523,068 375,779 2,432,064 
Depreciation 36546 384,472 112 417 56,388 74,895 664,718 

Operating Income (LO$$) (194,884) 1,555,828 (361,162) 466,680 300,884 1,767,346 
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) - (122,510) (57,788) 118,067 86,283 24,052 
Operating Transfers In (Out) {545,120) - 10,000 - - {535,120) 

Net Income (Loss) $ (740,004) $ 1,433.318 $ (408,950) $ 584 747 $ 387,167 $ 1,256,278 

eBl~CE GEQBGE'S CQU~IY 

- Equestrian - Center/ Trapand V, 
Multipurpose Golf Ice Regional Skeet Sports Bladensburg 

Aire2rt Arena Courses Rinks Parks Center Plex Marina Totals 

Operating Revenues $ 218,549 $ 911,855 $ 2,378,134 $ 481,000 $ 302,182 $ 1,043,059 $ - $ - $ 5,334,779 
Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 546,448 2,488,765 2,228,320 599,179 

Operating Income (Loss) 
483,554 1,126,870 - 170,060 7,643,196 

Before Depreciation (327,899) (1,576,910) 149,814 (118,179) (181,372) (83,811) - (170,060) (2,308,417) 
Depreciation 108,370 569,342 115,246 88445 32,305 7469 - 69447 990,624 

Operating Income (Loss) (436,269) (2,146,252) 34,568 (206,624) (213,677) (91,280) - (239,507) (3,299,041) 
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) - ·- - ·- 1,552 - - 12,068 13,620 
Operating Transfers In (Out) 486,334 1,490,359 150,000 229,476 280,664 198,084 1,990,000 245,100 5,070,017 

Net Income (Loss) $ 50,065 $ (655,893) $ 184568 $ 22.852 $ 68539 $ 106.804 $ 1.990.000 $ 17661 $ 1.784,596 



Cover: 

The Brookside Gardens Visitors Center in Wheaton provides elegant meeting space in 
a picturesque setting for more than 200 people, classrooms for its extensive education 
program, a horticultural library, and a gift shop run by some of Brookside Gardens' 
hundreds of volunteers. The Center was made possible in large part by a substantial 
bequest from the late Elizabeth Turner of Silver Spring. 

Page 18: 

The Youth Golf Training Center offers lessons, camps and professional instruction for 
children . . . Senior citizens enjoy water aerobics at Fairland Aquatics Center ... A 
visitor strolls past the reflecting pond at Brookside Gardens in Wheaton ... Sports 
programs offered through the Commission and the Prince George's Boys and Girls 
Clubs serve hundreds of thousands of young people each year . . . Wedding guests 
enjoy Woodlawn Manor House in Sandy Spring ... Antique equipment is shared by 
generations at the Agricultural History Farm Park . . . The miniature train at Wheaton 
Regional Park provides a fun ride for all ages . . . A new state-of-the-art Park Police 
Mobile Command Post ensures a strong law enforcement presence at special events 
throughout the bi-county area ... Wildlife abounds at Brookside Gardens .. . A young 
visitors picks the perfect pumpkin during Harvest Festival .. . The tennis bubble at 
Fairland Regional Park offers year-round court time. 

Photo credits: 

Steve Abramowitz (Prince George' s County): pages 5, 71, 82, 89, and 97. 

Francine Bethea (Montgomery County): cover, pages 27, 79, 85, 93, and 101. 
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